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FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

Certain statements contained in this annual information form, including statements that contain words such as
"anticipates”, "can”, "may", "expect”, "believe”, "believes” and "will" and similar expressions, are forward-looking
statements. These statements include, but are not limited to, future capital expenditures, future financial resources,
future oil and gas well activity, outcome of specific events, and trends in the oil and gas industry. These statements
are derived from certain assumptions and analyses made by the Corporation based on its experience and
interpretation of historical trends, current conditions and expected future developments, and other factors that it
believes are appropriate in the circumstances. These statements are subject to a number of known and unknown
" risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from the Corporation's expectations, such
as prevailing economic. conditions; commodity prices; sourcing, pricing and availability of raw materials,
component parts, equipment, suppliers, facilities and skilled personnel; dependence on major customers;
uncertainties in weather and temperature affecting the duration of the service periods and the activities that can be
completed; regional competition; and other factors, many of which are beyond the control of the Corporation.

Consequently, all of the forward-looking statements made in this annual information form are qualified by these
cautionary statements and there can be no assurance that actual results or developments anticipated by the
Corporation will be realized, or that they will have the expected consequences or effects on the Corporation or its
business or operations. The Corporation assumes no obligation to update publicly any such forward-looking
statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except as required pursuant to
applicable securities laws, '
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CALFRAC WELL SERVICES LTD.

Calfrac Well Services Ltd. (the "Corporation”) was formed under the Business Corporations Act (Albertay on March
24, 2004, by the amalgamation of Denison Energy Inc. ("Denison") and a private corporation known as Calfrac Well
Services Lid. ("CWSL"™). On March 8, 2004, Denison completed an arrangement whereby almost all of Denison's
assets were transferred to two new corporations, and on March 24, 2004, Denison acquired all of the shares of
CWSL, then amalgamated with CWSL and changed its name to Calfrac Well Services Ltd.  In this annual
information form, references to the Corporation as at dates or for periods prior to March 24, 2004, relate to CWSL
as it existed prior to its acquisition by and amalgamation with Denison. '

The head office of the Corporation is located at 411 - 8th Avenue S.W,, Calgary, Alberta T2P 1E3 and the registered
office is located at 4500, 855 - 2nd Street S.W., Calgary, Alberta T2P 4K7.

Intercorporate Relationships

At December 31, 2006, the Corporation owned: (i} all of the shares of. Calfrac Well Services Corp., a Celorado
corporation that provides pressure pumping services 10 oil and gas customers in the Rocky Mountain region of the
United States, Arkansas and eastern Oklahoma; (ii) all of the shares of ZAQ CFW Finance, a Russian corporation
that engages in the financing and leasing of pressure pumping equipment in the Russian well servicing market; (iii)
all of the shares of ZAO CWS International, a Russian corporation that provides pressure pumping services to oil
and gas customers in western Siberia in the Russian Federation; (iv} ali of the shares of Calfrac Cyprus Limited, a
Cyprus company that is expected to be used to finance the Corporation's operations outside of North America; and
{(v) 83.3% of the shares of North Aegean Petroleum Company E.P.E. and Sea of Thrace Petroleum E.P.E., which are
Greek companies that, together with the Corporation, collectively hold a 75% interest in certain hydrocarbon
exploration rights in the Sea of Thrace in northern Greece on which ne active exploration is being conducted

" because they are subject to a force majeure due to territorial disputes between Greece and Turkey. The Corporation
also owns 30% of the shares of ChemErgy Ltd. ("ChemErgy"}, a company engaged in the research and development
of new systems and chemicals in connection with oilfield services.

During the first quarter of 2007, in connection with the completion on February 13, 2007 of an offering of US$135
| millien of 7.75% senior notes due 2015, the Corporation formed the following direct and indirect wholly owned
i subsidiaries: (i) Calfrac (Canada) Inc., an Alberta corporation which is the general partner of Calfrac Holdings LP,

the issuer of the senior notes; (ii) Calfrac Holdings LP, a Delaware limited partnership with no material assets or
operations, except in connection with the issuance of the senior notes; (jii) Calfrac (Alberta) ULC, an Alberta
unlimited liability corporation with no material assets or operations, except in connection with the issuance of the
_senior notes; and (iv) Calfrac (USA) LLC, a Delaware limited liability company with no material assets or
operations, except in connection with the issuance of the senior notes.
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junisdiction of incorporation, continuation or formation, as applicable, and the Corporation's ownership interest

The following is an organizational chart of Calfrac Well Services Ltd. and its subsidiaries, showing each entity's
therein.
Calfrac Well
Services Lid.
(Alberta)
100% North Aegean
. Calfrac {Canada) Calfrac Cyprus 100% Co;?;ﬁlf;n; E . 83
99% . . N oy n
Inc. (Alberta) Limited {Cyprus) (Greece)
1% . 100% Sea of Thrace 83%
ZAOCFWF
Calfrac Holdings ?RuSSial)nanCt: Petroleum E.P.E.
LP ‘ {Greece)
{Delaware)
~ Calfrac Well 100% ZAO CWS 100%
100% Services Corp. International
{Colorado) (Russia)
Calfrac (Alberta) |
ULC (Alberta)

100%

(Delaware)

Calfrac (USA) LLC

GENERAL DEVELOPMENT OF THE BUSINESS

The Corporation was incorporated under the Business Corporations Act (Alberta) in June 1999 and commenced
‘ operations in August 1999 from its field station in Medicine Hat, Alberta, with a coiled tubing unit. In September
| 1999, the Corporation acquired its first fracturing spread and successfully completed its first hydraulic fracturing
treatment. By December 31, 2001, the Corporation had expanded its fleet of equipment to seven fracturing spreads
and six coiled tubing units, and had established field stations in Red Deer and Grande Prairie, Alberta.
|

In February 2002, the Corporation expanded its operations into the United States by opening a field office in
Platteville, Colorado. The establishment of operations at Platteville, Colorado was the Corporation'’s first significant
presence in the United States, In addition, the Corporation put into operation its eighth and ninth fracturing spreads
during the year and in early 2003.

The Corporation completed construction of a coiled tubing unit designed specifically to perform fracturing through
coiled tubing in early 2003. In addition, due to the increasing requirement to use coiled tubing units in conventional
fracture jobs as well as natural gas from coal, or coalbed methane ("CBM") fracture jobs, the Corporation signed a
| three year contract in February 2004 with a major supplier of coiled tubing unit services in Alberta under which the
| Corporation was granted a right of first call on six coiled tubing units used for fracturing operated by this supplier in
| 2004 and a right of first call for a maximum of twelve coiled tubing units thereafter, with an option to renew the
contract for an additional year on each anniversary of the contract date commencing in February 2006. In February
2007, this contract was renewed for one additional year to February 15, 2009, "

] '
| In Apri} 2003, the Corporation entered into a two-year fracturing contract with a major exptorer and developer of
i CBM. In order to satisfy its obligations under this contract, the Corporation developed and commissioned unique
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fracturing equipment specifically designed to fracture CBM wells, including the first quint nitrogen pumper built for
use in the fracturing of CBM by any fracturing company. This equipment was placed into service in February 2004
and was the Corporation's eleventh spread. On December 31, 2004, a new contract was signed with this customer.
The contract, which was for two specialized CBM spreads, commenced on January 1, 2005 and expired on the
earlier of the second anniversary of the commencement date and the date that the Corporauon had fractured 800
wells under the contract. The 800 well commitment was fulfilled in the fourth quarter of 2006 and the Corporation
has subsequently signed a one-year agreement with this customer for 2007 which contains no minimum work
commitments.

In May 2004, the Corporation added a second fracturing spread to its U.S. operations.

Also in May 2004, the Corporation signed contracts for a three-year term for the supply of nitrogen and carbon
dioxide. One of the nitrogen supply contracts guarantees the Corporation's right to all of the nitrogen produced at a
plant located near Strathmore, Alberta, and in return the Corporation has committed to monthly payments covering
the cost of production and a recovery of capital costs. These payments commenced February 1, 2005, and terminate
February 1, 2008. In October 2004, the first shipments of nitrogen were made to the Corporation's Canadian
opetations from this plant,

On June 1, 2004, the Corporation acquired 70% of the shares of 1108325 Alberta Ltd., which owned all of the
shares of Ram Cementers Inc. ("Ram"). At the date of acquisition, the major assets of Ram consisted of one twin
and three single pumping units. On February 10, 2005, the Corporation acquired the remaining 30% of the shares of
1108325 Alberta Ltd., and on March 1, 2005, that corporation and Ram were disselved into the Corporation.

" In the fall of 2004, the Corporation added its thirteenth and fourteenth fracturing spreads. One of these spreads was
a combination blender/pumper unit developed primarily to perform sand fracturing in Alberta’s southeastern shallow
gas wells. This unit can be used to perform fracturing that would traditionalty take four individual units, thereby
leaving a smaller wellsite footprint, requiring fewer operators and towering operating and capital costs.

In 2005, the Corporation entered into long-term fracturing contracts with one of the leading oil and natural pas
companies operating in western Canada. The contracts resulted in the allocation of three fracturing spreads to this
customer for contracted terms of four years and contain minimum work commitments for each spread. One of these
spreads is focused on the completion of high rate nitrogen fractures on CBM wells, with the remaining two spreads
dedicated to shallow gas activity in southem Alberta. The contracts are consistent with the Corporation's philosophy
of maintaining a prescribed level of its equipment fleet operating under long-term commitments.

In June 2005, the Corporation entered into contracts for the supply of two deep coiled tubing units including
nitrogen, fluid pumping and related well service equipment to the Russian well service market. The contracted units
were put into field service in western Siberia in the fourth quarter of 2005. The entry into the Russian market’
signaled an intention by the Corporation to review other supply-based opportunities in Russia with the mandate to
grow its Russian operations by diversifying its customer base and expanding its service offerings to include
fracturing, acidizing and cementing. Management of the Corporation believes that the demand for Western
technology in this developing market, coupled with the extensive Russian well service industry experience that
certain of the Corporation's senior executives and management possess, leaves the Corporation well positioned to
effectively and profitably operate and grow in this market.

In September 2005, the Corporation opened its Grand Junction operations facility that services both the Piceance
Basin of western Colorado and the Uintah Basin of eastern Utah and transferred a deep fracturing spread from
Platteville to this new facility. Also in September 2005, the Corporation opened its fourth Canadian district office in
Strathmore, Alberta to support the Corporation's shallow gas fracturing operations in southem Alberta and CBM
fracturing operations in east central Alberta.

In 2005, the Corporation added seven fracturing spreads to the 14 fracturing spreads it had operating at the end of
2004, ‘Two of the fracturing spreads were added in the first quarter of 2005, one was added in the second quarter
and four were added in the fourth quarter. In 2005, the high rate nitrogen spreads designed for stimulating Canadian
CBM wells increased from two to four, conventional sand fracturing spreads in Canada increased from ten to 14 and



82-34909

the U.S, fleet increased from two conventional sand fracturing spreads to three. The Corporation's cementing fleet
increased from four pumpers to nine in 2005, and its coiled tubing well servicing fleet remained at eleven. -

In 2006, the Corporation completed the construction of a conventional fracturing spread, which was deployed to the
Rocky Mountain region of the United States, and a fracturing spread that was deployed to the Russian well service
market during the second quarter of 2006, The Corporation also completed the construction of three coiled tubing
and two cementing units, which were deployed during the first half of the year. The remaining portion of the capital
expenditures related to the 2006 capital program, which included the construction of four additional fracturing
spreads, two deep coiled tubing units, six cementing units, high pressure fracturing and nitrogen pumpers,
transportation equipment, as well as additional infrastructure required to support the operations of the Corporation.
One of the fracturing spreads will operate in the intermediate conventional fracturing market in Alberta and the three
remaining fracturing spreads will be focused on deeper, more technical markets. Of these fracturing spreads, one is
operating in the Canadian market, the second spread was deployed to the United States and the third spread will be
deployed to the Russian well services market. The majority of the additional equipment became operational late in
the fourth quarter of 2006, and the Russian fracturing spread and coiled tubing unit is expected to be deployed
during the first quarter of 2007. Upon completion of the 2006 capital program, the Corporation expects to have 27
fracturing spreads, 16 coiled tubing units and 17 cementing units in operation.

In April 2006, the Corporation negotiated a four-year take-or-pay contract with a major oil and natural gas operator
for a multi-pumper high rate deep fracturing spread to be dedicated to the northwestern Alberta/northeastern British
Columbia operating area.

In December 2006, the Corporation approved a capital program of $76 million for 2007, which, together with
approximately $20 million carried over frem 2006, totals capital expenditures of $96 million for 2007. The majority
of the 2007 capital program is focused on supplementing the pumping capacity of the Corporation's existing North
American fracturing fleet servicing the deeper basin in Canada, as well as providing the necessary equipment for
geographic expansion in the United States. In addition, the 2007 capital program includes capital related to the
Corporation's expansion in the Russian' well service markets as well as the construction of two new coiled tubing
units which are expected to service the Canadian operations. The 2007 capital program alse includes additional
infrastructure required to support the Corporation's expanding operations. The 2007 capital budget will be funded
by the Corporation's cash flow and proceeds from the offering of senior notes by Calfrac Holdings LP completed on

" February 13, 2007,

Also in December 2006, the Corporation concluded documentation related to an increase in its available credit
facilities to $150.0 million with a syndicate of Canadian chartered banks. In connection with the issuance of the
senior notes on February 13, 2007, the Corporation elected to reduce its available credit facilities to $90.0 million.

In 2007, the Corporation has expanded its U.S. presence into Arkansas and castern Oklahoma as a result of a
recently signed contract with one of the leading oil and natural gas companies in the United States. The contract
results in the allocation of a multi-pumper fracturing spread to this customer for a term of two years providing a base
level of work commitments and further expands the scale of the Corporation's operations in the U.S. for the
provision of fracturing services in Arkansas and eastern Oklahoma. The contract will be serviced by the
Corporation's existing fleet of equipment and equipment being manufactured as part of the 2007 capital program. 'In
addition, the Corporation negotiated a one-year contract with a new customer in a new service area in western
Siberia, Russia. This contract is for the supply of a multi-pumper fracturing spread and a deep coiled tubing unit
together with support equipment. The Corporation was also awarded fracturing and deep coiled tubing work for
2007 in Russia with an existing customer in two of its key operating arcas. The award is a renewal of the services
provided by the Corporation in 2006 and calls for an increased volume of fracturing jobs as well as the services of
an additional coiled tubing crew.

BUSINESS OF THE CORPORATION

The Corporation is a leading independent provider of specialized oilfield services in Canada and the United States,
including fracturing, coiled tubing, cementing and other well stimulation services, which are designed to increase
the production of hydrocarbons from wells. The Corporation's operations are focused in western Canada, the United
States and Russia, The Corporation has established this leadership in a dynamic market through an expanding
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geographic network, increased operating fleet and rapidly growing customer base. The Corporation's goal is to
safely and efficiently provide the highest degree of expertise, innovation and service to its customers by maintaining
its focus on people, equipment and technology with the stability provided by a strong financial foundation. The
Corporation's success thus far in achieving this goal is attributable to its ability to meet the needs of its customers by
providing superior service and technologies that work in the field, which has led to strong relationships with a
number of the world's leading ¢il and natural gas exploration and production companies.

The Corporation's business is comptised of the following service lines:
Fracturing Services

The principal focus of the Corporatien's business is the provision of hydraulic fracturing services to cil and natural
gas exploration and production companies. The objective of hydraulic fracturing is to increase the conductivity of
an oil or natural gas zone within a reserveir to the wellbore, thus increasing the flow of hydrocarbons, allowing a
greater proportion of hydrocarbons 1o be extracted or produced from that zone. The Corporation provides both
conventional hydraulic fracturing and unconventional fracturing to produce natural gas found in coal, also known as
CBM fracturing. Deep fracturing is a technically and operationally challenging segment of the fracturing market
that is currently experiencing strong growth worldwide. The Corporation has become a leading service provider in
the deeper, more technical areas of northern Alberta, northeastern British Columbia and western Colorado by
offering innovative equipment, technology solutions and highly trained personnel to execute these difficult projects.
The Corporation currently operates 20 Canadian crews from five facilities located in Grand Prairie, Red Deer,
Strathmore, Medicine Hat and Edson, Alberta, five U.S. crews from three facilities located in Platteville and Grand
Junction, Colorade and Beebe, Arkansas and two Russian crews from three facilities located in Noyabrsk, Khanty-
Mansiysk and Purpe. For the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, fracturing services accounted for 88% and
94% of the Corporation's revenue, respectively.

Conventional Hydraulic Fracturing Services

The Corporation provides conventional hydraulic fracturing by pumping a viscous fluid with suspended proppant
(grains of quartz sand or ceramic material) through the wellbore and into the reservoir zone being stimulated. The
pumping pressure causes the zone to fracture and accept the fluid and proppant. The fluid is designed to
subsequently break, or lose viscosity, and be driven out of the reservoir zone by its pressure, leaving the proppant
suspended in the fracture.

A considerable amount of technology is incorporated into the design of the fracturing fluid, which normally censists
of proprietary chemicals that are combined with a-base fluid. The final fluid can be gelled, emulsified or foamed
and can be preceded by acid. In Canada, most fluids are energized by the introduction of liquid carbon dioxide or
nitrogen gas. In addition to the complex chemical technology used for making the fracturing fluid, fracturing
involves considerable engineering knowledge and experience to design the fracturing process to maximize the
performance of the well. Each fracture is individually designed to take account of the specific temperatures,
pressures, formation permeability and reservoir fluids expected in the producing zone in which fracturing will be
performed. The Corporation's engineering staff provides technical evaluation and job design recommendations as
an integral element of its fracturing service to the customer., |

Hydraulic fracturing services involve the use of sophisticated equipment specifically designed and constructed for
hydraulic fracturing. A complement or "spread” of equipment required to perform a conventional hydraulic
fracturing job normally consists of the following:

. a blender to blend chemicals, base fluid and proppant into specific mixes of fracturing fluids;

. one or more high horsepower fracturing pumpers, with the number dependent upon the pumping pressure
and rate required for the fracture; the Corporation has combined the blender, pumper, data van and iron
truck into a unique fracturing unit designed for fracturing through coiled tubing and fracturing with foam
operations; :
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. a chemical additive unit to-hold and deliver each chemical in controllable quantities in order to blend the
: fracturing fluid; the Corporation sometimes incorporates this unit into its blenders to increase efficiency
and reduce the "footprint" of the spread at a particular well location;

e an iron truck or trailer used for transporting and rigging up the high-pressure lines or "iron" that connect the

vartous components of the fracture spread and welthead;

. a computer van equipped with monitoring, data recording, satellite communication and remote pumper
controls to monitor and control the treatment and also record the data related to each phase of the fracture;

. one or more pumpers to pump the energizer (carbon dioxide or nitrogen); and
. ‘various equipment to transport, store and deliver the proppant and energizer.

The traditional or stage fracture procedure for stimulating a multi-zone well involves numerous trips to the well
location, with each trip stimulating only one or two of the zones. In recent years, procedures have been developed
s0 that all of the zones for a particular well can be fractured in just one trip to the well location. This procedure,
using snubbing units for deeper, more highly pressurized wells and coiled tubing units for shallower wells, involves
accessing the target zone up or down the wellbore by raising or lowering tubing and requires the use of specialized
tools that can isolate the target zone for treatment. The ability to complete the fracturing services for a multi-zone
well in one trip to the well location has become increasingly attractive to customers, as it'reduces the traffic to the
well location and the resulting disturbance to the landowners and allows the well to be brought into production more
quickly. In addition, this procedure simplifies the coordination of the logistics of the fracturing completion,

- CBM Fracturing Services
The Corporation has identified the market niche of supplying fracturing services to exploration and production

companies involved in developing CBM in western Canada as cne in which the Corporation seeks to be a leading
provider, In Canada, Alberta and British Columbia have vast coal resources, and the first commercial CBM

~production projects are located in the Horseshoe Canyon formation in south-central Alberta.

As a result of the Corporation's extensive involvement in various pilot projects evaluating the viability of CBM
production in western Canada, the Corporation, along with its customers, has developed an unconventional method
of fracturing multi-zone CBM wells by pumping nitrogen gas through coiled tubing at very high rates without the
use of proppant, fluid or chemicals.

The Corporation has developed a significant level of expertise and experience in fracturing CBM wells and has
become a leading independent provider of hydraulic fracturing services to customers who stimulate CBM wells in
Canada. Approximately 2,400 CBM wells were drilled in western Canada in 2006. The Corporation has four
fracturing spreads specifically designed to provide high rate nitrogen stimulation services to CBM wells.

Coiled Tubing Services

The Corporation provides coiled tubing services by injecting coiled tubing into wells to perform various well
servicing operations. Coiled tubing units are ofien used together with the appropriate support equipment to pump
nitrogen, acid or air into wells in order to remove unwanted corrosive acids, solids, gels and fluids from the wellbore
and producing zone. Coiled tubing units can also be used to set and remove tools, perform well abandonments and
set siphon or velocity strings, which promote the production of natural gas without the accumulation of fluid in the
wellbore, Since 1999, the Corporation has successfully developed innovative equipment and treating procedures
required to effectively complete coiled tubing assignments, from relatively simple shallow natural gas operations to
the high-tech, deep natural gas. projects. The Corporation's shallow and deep natural gas coiled tubing operations
are currently conducted in Canada with 11 units and in Russia with four units. For the years ended December 31,
2006 and 2005, coiled tubing services accounted for 7% and 3% of the Corporation's revenue, respectively.
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Cementing Services

Drilling for oil and natural gas involves penetrating numerous geological layers many of which may be saturated
with fresh or salt water, oil, natural gas, or combinations of all three. Té accomplish segregation between layers
after a hole is drilled, steel casing is run into the bottom of the well and cemented in place. Once the cement has
hardened, all of the geological formations that have been penetrated are isolated from each other and the completion
of the well can proceed. The Corporation reaffirmed its long-term commitment to grow this service line by
acquiring the remaining 30% interest in Ram Cementers Inc. in 2005 and subsequently adding new equipment. The
Corporation currently operates 14 cementing units stationed throughout Alberta, Canada. For the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005, cementing services accounted for 5% and 3% of the Corporation's revenue,
respectively

Demand for Hydraulic Fracturing Services

Demand for well services in the Corporation's industry is primarily influenced by the level of drilling activity and
development by oil and natural gas companies, which, in tumn, depends largely on current and anticipated future
crude oil and natural gas prices as well as production depletion rates.

Current industry forecasts suggest that demand for oil and natural gas will increase and will be coupled with a flat or
declining production curve, which the Corporation believes will result in a continuation of historically high crude oil
and natural gas commodity prices. The U.S. Energy Information Administration has forecasted that oil and natural
gas consumption will increase in Canada, the United-States and worldwide at an average annual rate of 1.2%, 1.0%,
and 1.8%, respectively, from 2003 through 2030, Meanwhile, oil and natural gas production is expected to decline
in Canada at an average annual rate of 0.8% during the same period. Additionally, oil and natural gas exploration
and production companies within the United States and worldwide seem to demonstrate a flat production curve, as,
according to the U.S. Energy Information Administration, preduction of oil and natural gas is expected to increase at
an average approximate annual rate of 0.3% and 1.8%, respectively, from 2003 to 2030.

As a result, the Corporation anticipates that oil and natural gas production companies will continue to increase their
capital spending in order to respond to an increasing demand for these commodities. According to Baker Hughes nig

“count data, the average total rig count in Canada increased 38.1% from 341 in 2001 to 471 in 2006. Meanwhile, in

the United States, average total rig count increased 42.6% from 1,156 in 2001 to 1,649 in 2006. Moreover,
worldwide average total rig count, excludmg Canada and the United States increased 24.2% from 745 in 2001 to
925 in 2006.

To further understand this increase in capital spending, 2 similar analysis shows that much of this expansion has
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focused on natural gas. For example, according to Baker Hughes rig count data, from 2001 to 2006, the average .

total natural gas rig count in Canada has increased 56.1% from 231 to 361, while in the United States the average
total natural gas rig count has increased 46.2% from 939 to 1,372 during the same period. Even though production
companies in Canada and the United States have increased capital spending in the last five years, Canadian natural
gas production is expected to decline by 0.2% through 2030. This is largely a function of increasing decline rates
for natural gas wells in Canada. The Corporation believes that a continued increase in drilling and workover activity
will be required to meet an expected increase in demand for natural gas.

Competitive Strengths

Strategic position in the top three fracturing markeis. The Corporation believes that it is strategically positioned in
the three most significant fracturing markets in the world: Canada, the United States and Russia. The Corporation is
one of the leading companies in the Canadian market in providing innovative conventional hydraulic and CBM
fracturing services throughout the shallow and unconventional natural gas markets as well as the deeper, more
technical areas of the Western Canadian Sedimentary Basin.- The Corporation continues to expand its presence in
the United States, where oil and natural gas exploration and development activity has reached its highest levels since
the 1980s; The Corporation now services both the western and eastern slopes of the Rocky Mountains in the United
States, including the Piceance and Denver Julesburg Basins, as welt as the Fayetteville shale area in Arkansas and
the Arkoma basin of eastern Oklahoma, and is well positioned for the growing demand for its services in these
regions where fundamentals remain strong. In December 2006, the Corporation entered into a long-term contract
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with one of the leading oil and natural gas companies in the United States. This contract further expands the scale of
the Corporation's operations in the U.S. for the provision of fracturing services in Arkansas and eastern Oklahoma.
In 2003, the Corporation successfully commenced operations in Russia, the world's third largest fracturing market
after the United States and Canada. The Corporation's management team has extensive Russian well service
industry experience, which, together with strong demand in this market for Western technology, enhances its
position to effectively and profitably operate and grow in this robust market. By establishing a presence in each of
these key markets, the Corporation believes it is well positioned for significant future global growth.

Field-proven technologies and specialty equipment. With a comprehensive fleet of specially designed fracturing,
well servicing and cementing units, the Corporation is able to respond quickly to customer demand and new
opportunities by mobilizing equipment and personnel to geographic regions as required with minimal time and cost.
A considerable amount of technology and engineering expertise is incorporated into the fluid chemistry and the
design of fracturing programs. The Corporation has developed proprietary technologies that provide viscosities with
minimum additives that optimize proppant placement and enhance fracturing fluid recovery. The Corporation has
also developed highly innovative and specially designed field equipment that allows it to combine functions,
resulting in less equipment being required at a particular well location, thereby reducing the "footprint" of the
equipment. The Corporation has considerable and valuable experience with performing concurrent multi-zone
. hydraulic fractures through coiled tubing rigs or snubbing units, which avoids multiple trips to the well location and
brings the well into producticn faster for its customers, while allowing the Corporation to achieve higher rates of
equipment utilization.

Strong relationships with a diversified customer base, The Corporation recognizes that the success of its business is
based on high levels of customer satisfaction and strong business relationships. The Corporation has experienced
field operations staff that are supported by highly qualified technical personnel, which enable it to develop an
understanding of each customer's specific needs, then tailor innovative, practical and cost-effective solutions to meet
those needs. The Corporation has strong relationships with over 300 active customers, comprised of a diverse and
balanced mix of large, intermediate and small oil and natural gas exploration and production companies. The
Corporation's largest customers include EnCana Corpoeration, Quicksilver Resources Canada Inc., Occidental Oil &
Gas Corporation, ConocoPhillips Canada Ltd. and Antero Resources Corporation. For the year ended December 31,
2006, the Corporation's ten largest customers collectively represented 48% of the Corporation’s revenue.

Prudent financial management and conservative capital structure. The Corporation's business philosophy places
importance on its financial flexibility and the strength of its balance sheet and it operates, finances its growth and
manages its capital structure in accordance with this philosophy. Historically, the Corporation has operated with
minimal leverage and has tied major initiatives and capital investment with specific contracts. The Corporation's
ability to successfully execute a measured and profitable growth strategy is primarily attributable to its adherence to
strict operating and financial criteria that include rigorously focusing on the Corporation's core businesses,
maintaining an edge over its competition through innovative technologies and equipment, optimizing its assets and
securing unique, long-term contracts with its customers that minimize the Corporation's financiat risk.

Highly experienced and committed senior management ream. The Corporation draws on the global experience of its
management team to maintain its leading market position and strong relationships with its customers. The
Corporation's senior executive management team has an average of 26 years of relevant industry experience, with a
demonstrated track record. The Corporation believes that their significant experience in and knowledge of the
Corporation's specialized business strengthens the Corporation's ability to compete and prudently manage its
business throughout industry cycles. The Corporation's board of directors includes members recognized
individually for their accomplishments in the fields of energy, law, investment banking and private investment. Key
members of the Corporation's senior management team and board of directors own or control approximately 36% of
the Corporation’s outstanding common shares.

Business Strategy

Service First: Provide the highest degree of expertise and service. Central to the Corporation's business strategy and
corporate mission is its goa) to safely and efficiently provide the highest degree of expertise, innovation and service
to its customers by maintaining the Corporation's focus on people, equipment and technology with the stability
provided by a strong financial foundation. To create new value for the Corporation’s customers and greater
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opportunities for its employees, the Corporation continues to strive for operational excellence under its key
principle, Service First. From technology investments to customer care to employee achievement, the Corporation
seeks to maintain its leadership position as the preferred provider to its customers by delivering the Corporation’s
services with the highest degree of quality, efficiency and integrity.

Technologies That Work In The Field: Invest in technologically advanced assets and chemistry. The quality of the
Corporation's assets and chemistry is fundamental to the viability of a long-life, specialized cilfield service company
that serves a global market. Hydraulic fracturing operations are constantly improving through advances in
technology, which are intended to translate into cost savings and enhanced production for the Corporation's
customers. The importance of technology in delivering value-added solutions begins in the Corporation’s own
operations with the ability to share ideas and best practices, support regional and global customers, improve,
productivity, increase efficiency, reduce environmental impact and drive continuing growth. The Corporation will
centinue to invest in technology and engmeenng to maintain its lcadmg market position and serve its customers in
innovative and efficient ways.

Service Line Expansion: Expand and diversify the Corporation's products and services., The Corporation has
invested heavily in specially designed fracturing, coiled tubing, cementing and other well servicing solutions. Each
of these growing service lines offers new opportunities for the Corporation 1o add value through new innovative
technologies and equipment designs that improve operating efficiency, reduce environmental impact, lower finding
costs for its clients and deliver results. The Corporation remains focused on adding complementary service lines
and maintaining a prescribed level of its equipment fleet operating under long-term commitments, thereby helping to
minimize localized weather related issues while responding to industry and market conditions, fluctuations in
regtonal activity tevels and customer demand. The Corporation expects to continue to diversify its activities so that
the Corporation's personnel and equipment can operate at near full capacity year-round.

Geographic Expansion: Expand the Corporation's global presence and network. The Corporation believes that
through its presence in the world's top three fracturing markets, it is well positioned to serve customers in their
major operating areas. The Corporation is optimistic about its continuing growth in Canada and the United States,
as well as its recent entry into the Russian market including the recent addition of a facility in Purpe, Russia. In
2007, the Corporation will expand its U.S. presence into Arkansas and eastern Oklahoma as a result of a recently
signed contract with a large exploration and production company. The Corporation believes that its established
operating bases located in Canada, the United States and Russia will act as a springboard for its future growth by
leveraging off the Corporation's experience, technological advantages and established customer base. Backed by
thorough and detailed research, forecasts and market analysis, the Corporation will continue to prudently enhance its
geographic footprint through customer-driven oppertunities in areas it deems to have an advantage either technically
or politically. )

Internal Expansion: Strengthen the Corporation’s workforce. The greatest challenge facing the oilfield service
industry today is securing a reliable, qualified and dedicated workforce. Empioyee development is a vital part of the
Corporation's efforts to strengthen its organization and assure that it has the right people in place at the right time.
In September 2005, the Corporation opened a new training, research and development facility that has been staffed
with experienced training professionals of various specialties. By providing an environment for ongoing exceptional
learning in both the classroom and the field, the Corporation increases productivity, efficiency and performance
through its people. The Corporation remains committed to building long-term relationships with its employees
through continuous training, diverse skills development and incentive programs.

Customers

The Corporation’s customer base consists of more than 300 oil and naturat gas exploration and preduction
companies, ranging from large multinational public companies to small private companies. The Corporation's five
largest customers in Canada accounted for approximately 40% of its revenue from Canadian operations for the year
ended December 31, 2006. The Corporation's five largest customers in the United States accounted for
approximately 62% of its revenue from U.S. operations for the year ended December 31, 2006. EnCana
Corporation, the Corporation's largest customer, accounted for approximately 24% of the Corporation's revenue
from Canadian operations, approximately 9% of its revenue from U.S. operations and approximately 19% of its total
revenue for the year ended December 31, 2006 and was the only customer that accounted for more than 10% of the




Corporation's total revenue during that period. The Corporation currently has three multi-year agreements to
provide fracturing services to this customer, which expire in February 2009, March 2009 and February 2010,
respectively. Each of these agreements includes minimum level work commitments by this customer.

Contracts . ) .

Based on the Corporation's expertise in providing hydraulic fracturing services and its strong business relations with
its customers, the Corporation has four multi-year agreements to provide fracturing services with two customers,
including three such agreements with EnCana Corporation. These agreements specify a minimum quantity of
fracturing services to be provided by the Corporation under the contract terms. Each contract ranges from two to
four years and provides for minimum work commitments for each fracturing spread.

The Corporation also has a one-year contract with one of the largest oil and natural gas producers in Russia for the
provision of fracturing and coiled tubing services.

Suppliers

The Corporation sources its raw malerials, such as proppant, chemicals, nitrogen, carbon dioxide, diesel fuel, and
component parts, such as coiled tubing, from a variety of suppliers in North America and Russia. The Corporation's
long-term supply arrangements include signed contracts with an Alberta-based company for a term of three years for
the supply of nitrogen and carbon dioxide. The Corporation also has an exclusive relationship with ChemErgy Ltd.
("ChemErgy™), a company in which it has a 30% ownership interest, whereby ChemErgy is required to supply
products and perform research and development for the Corporation on an exclusive basis, and the Corporation is
required to acquire all of the chemical products used in its business from ChemErgy.

The exclusive relationship agreement with ChemErgy is to terminate on May 31, 2011, but wili be autematically
renewed for one-year renewal terms unless terminated with notice by either party. On termination of the exclusive
relationship agreement, the Corporation is entitled to a non-exclusive, worldwide license to use all of the technology
developed by ChemErgy during the term of the agreement. The Corporation also has a three-year contract with an
Alberta-based oilfield service company for the provision of coiled tubing rigs designed specifically to perform
fracturing through coiled tubing. The agreement was signed in February 2004 and includes the option to renew the
agreement for an additional year on each upcoming anniversary of the contract. The contract was extended to
February 2009 by exercise of the Corporation's renewal option in February 2007, '

Competition

The markets in which the Corporation operates are highly competitive. The Comporation operates in Canada, the
United States and Russia and competes against a large number of companies that offer services that overlap and are
competitive with the Corporation's services and products in each geographic area of operation. The Corporation's
competition includes multinational oilfield service companies as well as regional competitors. The Corporation's
major multinational competitors include Schlumberger Lid., Halliburton Company and BJ Services Company. The
Corporation also competes against Trican Well Services Ltd. in Canada and Russia. In addition, the Corporation
competes against a number of smaller and locally oriented businesses in Canada and the United States, which
provide products and services similar to the Corporation's.

Regulation

The Corporation operates under the jurisdiction of a number of regulatory bodies that regulate worker safety
standards, the handling of hazardous materials and the protection of the environment. Environmental laws and
regulations that the Corporation is subject to have become more stringent in recent years and have generally sought
to impose greater liability on a larger number of potentially responsible parties. Because the Corporation provides
services to companies producing oil and natural gas, it may become subject to claims relating to the release of such
sub\stanccs into the environment. '
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Currently, the oil and natural gas industry is facing negative public perception regarding the consequences of CBM
development on nearby groundwater wells. Although new regulations have been put in place in Canada to restrict
fracturing activities to zones below groundwater supplies and to provide monitoring of adjacent water wells before
and after development activities, these new regulations have not alleviated public concern. Accordingly, negotiating
surface rights and obtaining well licenses for CBM dcve]opmcnl is currently relatively more difficult for-the
Corporation's customers.

On October 31, 2006, the Government of Canada announced it was implementing changes to the way inceme trusts
are taxed in Canada. Under the announced changes, income trusts will be taxed at similar rates to their corporate
peers. The results of this change could impact the ability of income trusts to raise capital, which in tum could
impact their capital spending on services like those providcd by the Corporation. The Corporation expects this
change to have a minor impact on its business, as currently income trusts only represent approxnmately 15% of its
Canadian revenue base and less than 12% of the Corporation’s consolidated revenue base.

Intellectual Property

The Corporation's research and dcvelopment efforts are focused on providing specific solutions to the chatlenges
experienced by oil and natural gas exploration and production companies when fracturing and stimulating wells.
The Corporation's success in hydraulic fracturing has been facilitated by its ability to provide proprietary blends of
chemicals that, together with the Corporation's technical expertise and innovative equipment, result in customers’
wells being more productive.

The Corporation conducts a significant amount of its research and development in conjunction with ChemErgy.
ChemErgy is engaged in research and development relating to new systems and chemicals in connection with
oilfield services. ChemErgy also supplies chemical products and provides quality control and logistical services for
the products supplied. ChemErgy operates a fully equipped laboratory in Calgary, Alberta staffed with chemical
engineers, chemists and technicians who are experienced in developing technolegies to be used in oilfield operations
and implementing these procedures in the field. Whenever possible, the Corporation and ChemErgy undertake to
protect intellectual property that they develop through joint applications for patent protection, and the Corporation
and ChemErgy currently have three joint patents pending on chemical systems used to deliver fracturing services.

Facilities and Operating Asscts

The Corporation provides hydraulic fracturing and well stimulation services from its corporate head office in
Calgary, Alberta, regional offices in Denver, Colorado and Moscow, Russia, and 11 operating bases located in
Medicine Hat, Strathmore, Red Deer, Grande Prairie and Edson, Alberta, Platteville and Grand Juncncm, Colorado,
Beebe, Arkansas and Noyabrsk, Khanty-Mansiysk and Purpe in Russia.

As at December 31, 2006, the Corporaticn was operating 21 conventional fracturing spreads. In addition to the
conventional fracturing spreads, it is also operating four CBM fracturing spreads. The Corporation's well servicing
equipment includes five deep coiled tubing units, eight shallow coiled tubing units and one fracturing through coil
rig. The Corporation's cementing equipment consists of seven single and six twin cementers.

As at December 31, 2006, the Corporation had two conventional fracturing spreads, four cementers and two coiled
tubing units yet to be put into service from the 2006 capital program. The manufacturing of this equipment is
expected to be completed before the end of the first quarter of 2007. Upon the completion of the Corporation's 2006
capital program, it expects to have 27 fracturing spreads, 16 coiled tubing units and 17 cement pumpers.

Employees

As at December 31, 2006, the Corporation had approximately 1,200 employees in its operating regions. None of the
Corporation's employees are unionized.
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RISK FACTORS

The financial condition and results of operations of the Corporation are subject to the following risk factors:

]

The Corporation’s business depends on the oil and natural gas industry and particularly on the level of
exploration and development for North American and Russian oil and natural gas, which Is volatile.

82-34909

The demand, pricing and terms for fracturing and well stimulation services largely depend upon the level of

exploration and development activity for North American and Russian natural gas and, to a lesser extent, oil.
Industry conditions are influenced by numerous factors over which the Corporation has no control, including the
level of oil and natural gas prices, expectations about future oil and natural gas prices, the cost of exploring for,
producing and delivering cil and natural gas, the decline rates for current production, the discovery rates of new oil
and natural gas reserves, available pipeline and other oil and natural gas transportation capacity, weather conditions,
political, military, regulatory and economic conditions, and the ability of oil and natural gas companies to raise
equity capital or debt financing. A material decline in global cil and natural gas prices or North American and
Russian activity levels as a result of any of the above factors could have a material adverse effect on the
Corporation's business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

The Corporation is susceptible to seasonal volatility in ifs operating and financial results due to adverse
weather conditions. '

The Corporation's financial results are directly affected by the seasonal nature of the North American oil and natural

gas industry. The first quarter incorporates the winter drilling season when most of the activity takes place. During
the second quarter, soft ground conditions typically curtail oilfield activity in all of the Corporation's Canadian
operating areas such that many rigs are unable to move about due to road bans. This period, commonly referred to
as “spring breakup”, occurs earlier in the year in southeastern Alberta than it does in northem Alberta and
northeastern British Columbia. Consequently, this is the Corporation's weakest three-month revenue period.
Additionally, if an unseasonably warm winter prevents sufficient freezing, the Corporation may not be able to access
well sites and its operating results and financial condition may therefore be adversely affected. The demand for
fracturing and well stimulation services may also be affected by severe winter weather in North America and Russia.
In addition, during excessively rainy periods in any of the Corporation's operating areas, equipment moves may be
delayed, thereby adversely affecting revenues. The volatility in the weather and temperature can therefore create
unpredictability in activity and utilization rates, which can have a material adverse effect on the Corporation's
business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. :

The Corporation’s customer base is concentrated and loss of a significant customer could cause its
revenue to decline substantially. '

The Corporation's customer base consists of more than 300 oil and natural gas exploration and production
companies, ranging from large multinational public companies to small private companies. Notwithstanding the
Corporation's broad customer base, it has one significant customer that accounted for 19% of its revenue for the year
ended December 31, 2006. Prior to December 23, 2003, this customer was one of the Corporation's equity
shareholders. The Corporation currently has three multi-year agreements to provide fracturing services to this

_ customer, which expire in February 2009, March 2009 and February 2010. Each of these agreements includes a

base level of commitments by this customer. However, there can be no assurance that the Corporation's relationship
with this customer will continue, and a significant reduction or total loss of the business from this customer, if not
offset by sales to new or existing customers, would have a material adverse effect on the Corporation's business,
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

If the Corporation is unable to obtain raw materials, diesel fuel and component parts from its current
suppliers it could have a material adverse effect on its business.

The Corporation sources its raw materials, such as proppant, chemicals, nitrogen, carbon dioxide and diesel fuel, and

component parts, such as coiled tubing, from a variety of suppliers in North America and Russia. Should the
Corporation's current suppliers be unable to provide the necessary raw materials and component parts at a price
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acceptable to it or otherwise fail to deliver products in the quantities required, any resulting delays in the provision
of services could have a material adverse effect on the Corporation's business, financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows.

The Corporation is subject to extensive government regulations that may reqmre it to take actions that
will adversely affect its results of operations.

The Corporation's operations are subject to a variety of federal, provincial, state and local laws, regulations and
guidelines, including laws and regulations relating to health and safety, the conduct of operations, taxation, the
protection of the environment.and the manufacture, management, transportation and disposal of certain materials
used in its operations. The Corporation has invested financial and managerial resources to ensure such compliance
and expects to continue to make such investments in the future, Such laws or regulations are subject to change and
could result in material expenditures that could have a material adverse effect on the Corporation's business,
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. It is impossible for the Corporation to predict the cost or
impact of such laws and regulations on its future operations.

The tax attributes available for use by the Corporation has not been audited by governmental authorities
and are almost fully utilized.

The Corporation has reduced its Canadian income tax liabilities from March 2004 through the end of 2006 by using
tax attributes estimated at $220 million for federal income tax purposes and $170 million for provincial income tax
purposes arising from the reorganization of Denison. The Canada Revenue Agency has not audited any of the tax
returns in which the above-mentioned tax attributes were used to reduce the incurrence of Canadian current and
future income tax liabilities. The Corporation's current expectations are that it will fully utilize these tax attributes
during 2007 and, as a result, the majority of its Canadian income for 2007, and all Canadian income for future
periods, will be subject 10 statutory income tax rates in Canada.

The Kyoto Protocol has come into effect and the Corporation is unable to predict the impact of the Kyoto
Protocol on its operations.

Canada is a signatery to the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change and has adopted the Kyoto
Protocol established thereunder to set legally binding targets to reduce nation-wide emissions of carbon dioxide,
methane, nitrous oxide and other so-called "greenhouse gases". Future federal legislation, together with provincial
emission reduction requirements, such as those in effect in Alberta's Climate Change and Emissions Management
Act, may require the reduction of emissions or emissions intensity from the Corporation’s operations and facilities.
Mandatory emissions reductions may result in increased operating costs and capital expenditures for oil and natural
gas producers, thereby decreasing the demand for the Corporation's services. The mandatory emissions reductions
may also impair the Corporation's ability to provide its services economically. The Corporation is unable to predict
the impact of the Kyoto Protocol on the Corporation and it is possible that it may have a matenal adverse effect on
its business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

The Corporation's operations are subject to hazards inherent in the oil and natural gas industry.

The Corporation's operations are subject to hazards inherent in the oil and natural gas industry, such as equipment
defects, malfunction and failures, and natural disasters which result in fires, vehicle accidents, explosions and
uncontrotlable flows of natural gas or well fluids that can cause personal injury, loss of life, suspension of
operations, damage to formations, damage to facilities, business interruption and damage to or destruction of
property, equipment and the environment. These hazards could expose the Corporation to substantial liability for

- personal injury, wrongful death, property damage, loss of oil and natural gas production, pollution and other

environmental damages, The Corporation ¢ontinuously monitors its activities for quality control and safety, and
although the Corporation maintains insurance coverage that it believes to be adequate and customary in the industry,
such insurance may not be adequate to cover its liabilities and may not be available in the future at rates that the
Corporation considers reasonable and commercially justifiable. .

-13-
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Conservation measures and technological advances could reduce demand for oil and natural gas.

Fuel conservation measures, alternative fuel requirements, increasing consumer demand for alternatives to oil and
natural gas, and technological advances in fuel economy and energy generation devices could reduce the demand for
crude oil and other liquid hydrocarbons. The Corporation cannot predict the impact of changing demand for oil and
natural gas products, and any major changes may have a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows. :

The Corporation may become subject to claims or liabilities relating to its transaction with Denison. The
Corporation is subject to several legal actions in Greece relating to the operations of Denison and is
unable to predict the consequences of these actions.

From time to time, there may be legal proceedings pending or threatened a’gainsl the Corporation relating to the
business of Denison prior 1o its reorganization and subsequem acqu1smon of the Corporatlon In March 2004, the
Canadian petroleum and natural gas assets and the mining leases, mining environmental services and related assets
and liabilities of Denison were transferred to two new corporations that provided indemnities to the Corporation for
all claims or losses relating to Denison's prior business, except for matters related to specific liabilities retained by
the Corporation. Despite these indemnities, it is possible that the Corporation may be found responsible for claims
or losses relating to the assets and liabilities transferred by Denison and that claims or losses may not be within the
scope of either of the indemnities or may not be recoverable by the Corporation. Because of the nature of Denison's
former operations (oil and natural gas exploration and production, mining and environmental services), these claims
and losses could include substantial environmental claims. The Corporation cannot predict the outcome or ultimate
impact of any legal or regulatory proceedings pending against Denison or affecting the Corporation’s business or any
legal or regulatory proceedings that may relate to Denison's prior ownership or operation of assets.

The Corporation’s executive officers and key employees are critical to its business and these individuals
may not remain with the Corporation in the future,

The successful operation of the Corporation's business depends upon the abilities, expertise, judgment, discretion,
integrity and good faith of its executive officers, employees and consultants. In addition, the Corporation's ability to
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expand its services depends upon its ability to attract qualified personnel as needed.” The demand for skilled cilfield

employees is high, and the supply is limited. If the Corporation loses the services of one or more of its executive

officers or key employees, it may have a material adverse effect on the Corporation's busmess financial condition, .

results of operations and cash flows.
The Corporation's industry is intensely competitive.

Each of the markets in which the Corporation participates is highly competitive. To be successful, a service
provider must provide services that meet the specific needs of cil and natural gas exploration and production
companies at competitive prices. The principal competitive factors in the markets in which the Corporation operates
are product and service quality and availability, technical knowledge and experience, reputation for safety and price.

~ The Corporation competes with large national and multinational oilfield service companies that have greater

financial and other resources than it does. These companies offer a wide range of well stimulation services in all
geographic regions in which the Corporation operates. In addition, the Corporation competes with several regional
competitors. As a result of competition, the Corporation may suffer from a significant reduction in revenue or be
unable to pursue additional business opportunities.

Fluctuations in currency exchange rates could adversely affect the Corporation's business.

The Corporation incurs a significant amount of its expenses in U.S. dollars and these expenditures are: therefore
directly affected by the Canadian/U.S. dollar exchange rate, which fluctuates over time. Net income from the
Corporation's U.S. operations is denominated in U.S. dollars, so that a decrease in the value of the U.S. dollar will
decrease the Canadian dollar amount of net income from U.S. operations. Russian income is earned in U.S. dollars
but is paid in Russian rubles converted to U.S. dollars at the official conversion rate in Russia on the day prior to

.
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payment. Conversion rates of the Russian ruble to or from U.S. dollars will also affect the Corporation's net income.
The Corporation also incurs expenses in Russian rubles for its operations in that country,

The Corporation's business is capital intensive and it may not be able to finance future growth or
expansion of its operations.

The Corporation's business plan is subject to the availability of additional financing for future costs of operations or
expansion that may not be available, or may not be available on favourable terms. The Corporation's activities may
also be financed partially or wholly with debt, which may increase its debt levels above industry standards. The
level of the Corporation's indebtedness from time to time could impair its ability to obtain additional financing in the
future on a timely basis to take advantage of business opportunities that may arise. If the Corporation's cash flow
from operations is not sufficient to fund its capital expenditure requirements, there can be no assurance that
additional debt or equity financing will be available to meet these requirements or, if available, on favourable terms.

The Corporation's management, through its collective share ownership, may be able to control the
outcome of shareholder voting and may exercise this voting power in a manner adverse lo the
Corporation's securityholders.

Collectively, the Corporation’s management owns or controls common- shares representing approximately 36% of
the total voting power of the Corporation's common shares. As a result, the Corporation's management may have
the ability to direct the election of members of its board of directors and to exercise a controlling influence over its
business and affairs, including any determinations with respect to mergers or other business combinations involving
the Corporation, its acquisition or disposition of assets, its incurrence of indebtedness, its issvance of any additional
common shares or other equity securities, its repurchase or redemption of common shares or preferred shares and its
payment of dividends. Additionally, the Corporation's management may have the power to determine or
significantly influence the outcome of matters submitted to a vote of its sharcholders, including the power to prevent
an acquisition or any other change in control of the Corporation. In any particular transaction, the interests of the
Corporation's management as shareholders may differ from the interests of the Corporation's securityholders and
actions taken by the Corporation’s management as shareholders with respect to the Corporation may not be
favourable to such securityholders.

The Corporation's foreign operations will expose it to risks from abroad, which could negatively affect
its results of operations.

Some of the Corporation's operations and related assets are located in countries outside North America, some of
which may be considered to be politicaily and economically unstable. Activities in such countries may require
protracted negotiations with host governments, national oil companies and third parties and are frequently subject to
economic and political considerations, such as taxation, nationalization, expropriation, inflation, currency
fluctuations, increased regulation and approval requirements, governmentat regulation and the risk of actions by
terrorist or insurgent groups, any of which could adversely affect the economics of exploration or development
projects and the demand for the Corporation's well stimulation services, which may have a material adverse effect
on its business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Denmand for the Corporation's services may be adversely impacted by regulations affecting the oil and
natural gas industry,

The operations of the Corporation's customers are subject to or impacted by a wide array of regulations in the

. jurisdictions in which they operate. As a result of changes in regulations and laws relating to the oil and natural gas

industry, the Corporation’s customers' operations could be disrupted or curtailed by governmental authorities. The
high cost of compliance with applicable regulations may cause customers to discontinue or limit their operations and
may discourage companies from continuing development activities. As a result, demand for the Corporation's
services could be substantially affected by regulations adversely impacting the oil and natural gas industry.
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MARKET FOR SECURITIES

The Corporation's common shares are listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange ("TSX"} under the symbol "CFW".

. The following table sets forth the monthly price ranges and volumes of trading of the common shares on the T8X
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during 2006.
Period High § Low $ Yolume
JANUATY .ot 46.21 39.16 2,445,086
FEDBIUATY ....oooceoeeeeceeeeeee et 44.75 31.45 2,465,918
MATCH oo s s 34 80 2997 9,743,967
April 316.98 31.67 2,724,488
MAY e 36.59 27.82 2,332,695
JUNE Lot 3047 23.03 3,091,502
JULY i e 28.48 23.35 3,674,034
TAUGUSE oot 28.95 24.89 1,467,988
September ..o 25.94 20.57 . 2,717,796
OCLODET ettt sttt s sras et s s as s e e nabe 22.64 19.68 3,164,428
NOVEMDET .o.iiiiiiiiniiniiisiisisiiiesisssisisaiansssissinsessessnsssansssna 21.08 18.07 2,782,058
DECEIMDET 1oovvviviviieeecievr s e e eeras e s e ssesme e e ennessreenes 23.65 19.50 2,668,273

DESCRIPTION OF COMMON SHARES

The holders of common shares are entitled to receive notice of, and to one vote per share at, every meeting of
shareholders of the Corporation, to receive such dividends as the board of directors declares, and to share equally in
the assets of the Corporation remaining upon the liquidation of the Corporation after the creditors of the Corporation
have been satisfied.

CREDIT RATINGS

Credit ratings are intended to provide investors with an independent measure of credit quality of any issue of
securities. The credit ratings assigned by the rating agencies are not recommendations to purchase, hold or sell the
securities, as such ratings do not comment as to market price or suitability for a particular investor. Any rating may
not remain in effect for any given period of time or may be revised or withdrawn entirely by a rating agency in the
future if in its judgment circumstances so warrant.

The following table outlines the credit ratings received by the Corporation in connection with the issuance by
Calfrac Holdings LP of senior notes on February 13, 2007,

Standard & Poor's Ratings Moody's Investors Service

Services ("S&P™) ("Moody's™)
Corporate Credit Rating B+ Bal
Calfrac Holding LP Senior Unsecured Debt B Bt
Qutlock Stable Stable

S&P's long-term credit ratings are on a rating scale that ranges from AAA to D, which represents the range from
highest to lowest quality of such securities rated, Rating of B+ and B by S&P represent the. sixth highest of ten
categories and indicate that the obligor is more vulnerable to nonpayment than obligors in higher-rated categories,
but currently has the capacity to meet its financial commitment on an obligation, although adverse business,
financial or economic conditions are considered likely to impair the obligor's capacity or willingness to meet its
financial commitment on an obligation. The addition of a plus (+) or minus (-) designation after a rating indicates
the relative standing within a particular rating category. The stable outlook implies that the rating is not likely to
change.
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Moody's long-term credit ratings are on a rating scale that ranges from Aaa to C, which represents the range from
highest to lowest quality of such securities rated. Ratings of Ba3 and B] by Moody's are the fifth and sixth highest
of nine categories, respectively. Obligations rated Ba are judged to have speculative elements and are subject to
substantial credit risk. Obligations rated B are considered speculative and are subject to high credit risk. The
addition of a 1, 2 or 3 modifier afier a rating indicates the relative standing within a particular rating category. The
modifier 1 indicates that the issue ranks in the higher end of its generic rating category, the madifier 2 indicates a
mid-range ranking and the modifier 3 indicates that the issue ranks in the lower end of its generic rating category.

DIVIDENDS

The Corporation adopted a semi-annual dividend policy in May 2005. In June 2006, the Corporation declared a
dividend under its semi-annual dividend policy of $0.05 per share. This dividend was declared to all shareholders of
record on June 15, 2006, and paid on July 4, 2006. In December 2006, an additional dividend of 30.05 per share
was declared to all shareholders of record on December 19, 2006, and paid on January 5, 2007. The payment of any
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dividend is at the discretion of the board of directors and depends-on the financial condition of the Corporation and .

other factors.

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

The following table sets forth information with respect to the directors and executive officers of the Corporation.

Name and Residence

Position with the
Corporation

Director Since

Principal Occupation During the Last Five Years

Ronald P. Mathison 7@
Alberta, Canada

Douglas R. Ramsay
Alberta, Canada

Gordon A. Dibb
Alberta, Canada

Tom J. Medvedic
Alberta, Canada

James S. Blair @
Alberta, Canada

Gregory S. Fletcher

Alberta, Canada

Martin A. Lambert ¢
Alberta, Canada

Chairman of the Board
and a Director

President and Chief
Executive Officer and a
Director

Executive Vice President

and Chief Operating
Officer

Vice President, Finance
and Chief Financial
Officer

Director

Director

Director

March 8, 2004 @

March 24, 2004

May 8, 2002

May §, 2002 @

March 8, 2004 ¥
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President, Matce Investments Lid. (a private
investment company).

President and Chief Executive Officer of the

-Corporation. Prior to March 24, 2004, President and
" Chief Executive Officer of CWSL.

Executive Vice President and Chief Operating
Officer and, prior to December 14, 2004, Chiel
Financial Officer of the Comporation. Prior to March
24, 2004, Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
of CWSL.

Vice President, Finance and, since December 14,
2004, Chief Financial Officer of the Corporation.
Prior to July 12, 2004, Treasurer of Ensign Resource
Service Group Inc.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, ExAlta
Energy Inc. (a public oil and gas exploration and
development company) since 2002. Prior thereto,
Senior Vice President and Chief Operating Officer,
Husky Energy Inc. (a public integrated energy
company).

President, Sierra Energy Inc. (a private energy
company).

Managing Director, Matco Capital Lid.
(a private investment company)




Position with the

Name and Residence Corporation Director Since  Principal Occupation During the Last Five Years
R.T. {Tim) Swinton "2  Director March 24, 2004  President, Western Provinces Resources Lid. (a
Alberta, Canada private investment company) since 1997. Executive

Chairman of IPEC Ltd. (a Canadian public pipeline
. and oilfield construction company) from 1999 to

2001,
Notes:
) .Member of the Audit Committee.
) Member of the Compensation Committee
3 Member of the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee.
@ Service prior to March 24, 2004, was as a director of Denison,
) Each director holds office until the close of the annual meeting to be held on May 9, 2006.

As at March 19, 2007, the directors and executive officers of the Corporation beneficially owned, directly or
indirectly, or exercised control or direction over an aggregate of 12,928,310 common shares, representing 35.5% of
the 36,390,408 issued and outstanding common shares.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

As a result of the acquisition and amalgamation with Denison in 2004, Calfrac assumed certain legal obligations
relating to Denison's Greek operations. In 1998, a consortium in which a Greek subsidiary of Denison participated,
terminated employees in Greece as a result of the cessation of its oil and gas operations in that country. Several
groups of employees have filed claims alleging that their termination was invalid and that their severance pay was
improperly determined. In 1999, the largest group of plaintiffs received a ruling from the Athens Court of First
Instance that their termination was invalid and that compensation was due to the employees. This decision was
appealed to the Athens Court of Appeal, which allowed the appeal in 2001 and annulled the above-mentioned
decision of the Athens Court of First Instance. The said group of employees has filed an appeal with the Supreme
Court of Greece, which is scheduled to be heard on May 29, 2007. Several other smaller groups of employees have
filed sirnilar cases in various courts in Greece. Some of these cases were heard in 2004. In general, the finding of
these courts has been that the termination of the employees was valid. In some instances, the courts have awarded
the employees immaterial amounts of additional compensation and, in one case, have referred the matter back to a
lower court to be reheard based on more specific grounds.

As a result of the above-mentioned court hearings, a majority of the number of former employees with respect to the
smaller groups of claimants have received payment of the immaterial amounts awarded to them and waived their
right of recourse to the Supreme Court of Greece. The remainder have filed an appeal to the Supreme Court of
Greece which is scheduled to be heard on November 6, 2007 or have advised that they are waiting for the outcome
of the appeal to the Supreme Court of Greece before proceeding further. The direction and financial consequence of
the potential decisions in these actions cannot be determined at this time.

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR

The transfer agent and registrar for the Corporation's common shares is Computershare Trust Company of Canada at
its principal offices in Calgary, Alberta, and Toronto, Ontario.

INTERESTS OF EXPERTS
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has prepared the auditor's report on the consolidated financial statements of the
Corporation for the year ended December 31, 2006. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has advised that they are

_independent with respect to the Corporation within the meaning of the Rules of Professional Conduct of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Alberta.

- 18 -
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AUDIT COMMITTEE INFORMATION
Audit Committee Mandate

The Corperation's Audit Committee mandate sets out the committee's purposé, organization, duties and
responsibilities. A copy of the mandate is attached hereto as Appendix "A".

Composition of Audit Committee

The Corporation's Audit Committee is comprised of Ronald P, Mathison, Gregory S. Fletcher and R.T. (Tim)
Swinton, all of whom are financially literate and independent, as such terms are defined in Multilateral Instrument
52-110 — Audit Committees ("MI 52-110").

Relevant Education and Expericnce
Ronald P. Mathison

Mr. Mathison is one of the Corporation's founders and has served as a member of its board of directors and as
Chairman since the Corporation's formation in 1999. Mr. Mathison is the President and Chief Executive Officer of
Matco Investments Ltd. and Matco Capital Ltd., private investment firms which specialize in the restructuring of
financially troubled companies as well as providing capital and management expertise to such companies.
Mr. Mathison has extensive experience in restructuring and financing corporations in both the public and private
markets. Until October 2000, Mr. Mathison was a director of Peters & Co. Limited, an investment firm specializing
in the oil and natural gas industry, and prior to 1999 was also a principal of Peters & Co. Limited's corporate finance
department. Prior thereto, Mr, Mathison and two other individuals formed the nucleus of Peters & Co. Capital, a
private merchant banking entity that is widely associated with numerous successful restructurings of oil and natural
gas exploration and production companies and oilfield service companies. Mr. Mathison received a B.Comm.
{Honours) from the University of Manitoba in 1979 and obtained his Chartered Accountant designation in 1982.
Mr. Mathison also holds the designation of Chartered Business Valuator, obtained in 1989, and of Chartered
Financial Analyst, obtained in 1990.

Gregory S. Fletcher

Mr. Fletcher has served as a member of the Corporation's board of directors since May 2002, Mr. Fletcher is an
independent businessman involved in the oil and natural gas industry in western Canada. He has considerable
business experience in the junior sector of the oil and natural gas industry and is currently President of Sierra Energy
Inc., a private ¢il and natural gas company that he founded in 1997. From June 1998 to May 1999, he was also
President, Chief Executive Officer and a director of Canadian Conquest Exploration Inc. and prior to 1997 he was
President, Chief Executive Officer and a director of Aztec Resources Ltd. Mr. Fletcher is also a director of the
general partner of Diamond Energy Services LP, a private oilfield service limited partnership, Peyto Energy Trust, a
public oil and natural gas income trust, and a director of Total Energy Services Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary of
Total Energy Services Trust, a public oilfield service trust. In these roles, Mr. Fletcher has acquired significant
experience and exposure to accounting and financial reporting issues. Mr. Fletcher holds a BSc. in geology from the
University of Calgary. '

R.T. (Tim) Swinton

Mr. Swinton has served as a member of the Corporation's board of directors since March 2004, Mr. Swinton is an
independent businessman. He has considerable business experience in the junior and service sectors-of the cil and
natural gas industry in western Canada. From 1999 to 2001, he was the Executive Chairman of IPEC Ltd., a
Canadian pipeline and oilfield construction company. Prior thereto, Mr. Swinton was Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of Kenting Energy Services Inc., and Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of EnServ
Corporation. Mr. Swinton has also served on the boards of directors of a number of energy services and other
energy-related public companies, including Koch Pipelines Canada Limited, Enserco Energy Service Company Inc.
and Anderson Exploration Ltd. In these roles, Mr. Swinton has acquired significant experience and exposure to
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accounting and financial reporting issues. Mr. Swinton holds a B.A. in economics from York University and a’

Masters of Business Administration from York University.

Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures

The Corporation's Audit Committee mandate requires the Audit Committee to pre-approve all non-audit services to
be provided to the Corporation or any of its subsidiary entities by the Corporation's external auditor or the external
. auditor of the Corporation's subsidiary entities, provided that the Audit Committee may satisfy the pre-approval
requirement by either delegating to one or more members of the Audit Committee the authority to pre-approve non-
audit services or adopting specific policies and procedures for the engagement of non-aundit services.

External Audit Fees by Category

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has served as the Corporation's external auditor since its formation in 1999. The

following table hists the fees paid to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, by category, for the last two fiscal years.

Year Ended

_ December 31,2005  December 31, 2006
Audit fees 368,000 £95,000
Audit-related fees 32,500 35,200
Tax-related fees 82,000 218,100
All other fees 18,000 -
Total fees $200,500 $348,300

Audit Fees

Audit fees were paid for professional services rendered by the auditors for the audit of the Corporation's annual
financial statements or services provided in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements and the
review of the Corporation's interim financial statements.

Audir-related Fees

Audit-related fees were paid for assurance and related services that are reasonably related to the performance of the

audit or review of the annual and interim financial statements and are not reported under the audit fees item above. -

These services included the review of incentive bonus calculations as well as accounting consultations and advice
relating to variable interest entities, lease accounting and accounting for future income taxes.

Tax-related Fees

Tax-related fees were paid for professional services relating to tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning. These
services consisted of tax compliance including the review of original and amended tax retums, tax planning and
advisory services relating to common forms of taxatien including income tax, large corporations tax, goods and
services tax, sales tax and tax consulting related to employee benefit programs.

All Other Fees

All other fees were paid for products or services other than the audit fees, audit-related fees and tax fees described
above.
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Additional information, including directors’ and officers' remuneration, principal holders of the Corporation's '

securities and securities authorized for issue under equity compensation plans, is contained in the Corporation's -
management information circular for the annual meeting of shareholders held on May 9, 2006. Additional financial
information is provided in the Corporation's comparative financial statements and management's discussion and
analysis for the year ended December 31, 2006. . : \

Additional information relating to the Corporation may be found on SEDAR at www sedar.com.
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APPENDIX "A"
CALFRAC WELL SERVICES LTD.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
CHARTER

Calfrac Audit Committee; The board of directors (the "Board") of Calfrac Well Services Ltd. ("Calfrac")
shall appoint an audit committee (the "Comnittee”) that shall have the mandate and responsibilities set out
in this charter. .

Membership: The Committee shall be constituted as follows,
(a) The Committee shall be composed of not less than threg members.

(b) All members of the Committee shall be independent within the meaning set forth in Multilateral
: Instrument 52-110 — Audit Committees ("MI 52-110").

© Each member of the Committee shall be financiaily literate, as defined in MI 52-110. At the date
of adoption of this charter, a member is financially literate if he or she has the ability to read and
understand a set of financial statements that present a breadth and level of complexity of
accounting issues that are generally comparable to the breadth and complexity of issues that can
reasonably be expected to be raised by Calfrac’s financial statements.

(d) Members shall be appointed annually from among members of the Board. A member of the
Committee shall cease to be a member of the Committee upon ceasing to be a director of Calfrac.

Mandate: The mandate of the Committee is to assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities
with respect to .

(a) Calfrac's financial statements and other financial information disclosed by Calfrac to the public,
(b) Calfrac's compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, and
() the performance of Calfrac's external auditor.

The external auditor shall report directly to the Committee but is ultimately accountable to the Board,
which has the ultimate authority and responsibility to select, evaluate and, where appropriate, replace the
external auditor (or to nominate the external auditor to be appointed by the shareholders of Calfrac).

Oversight Responsibility: Subject to the powers and duties of the Board and in addition to any other
duties and responsibilities assigned to the Committee from time to time by the Board, the Committee shall
have responsibility for overseeing

(a) the accounting and financial reporting processes of Calfrac, and

) audits of the financial statements of Calfrac.

Specific Duties and Responsibilities: The Committee shall meet with the external auditor and the senior
management of Calfrac to review all financial statements of Calfrac that require approval by the Board and
shall have authomy and responsibility for the following matters.

(a) Review Calfrac's financial statements, management’s discussion and analysis of financial

condition and results of operations ("MD&A™) and interim earnings press releases before Calfrac
publicly discloses this information.




(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

¢y

(®

Oversee the work of the external auditor engaged for the purpose of preparing or issuing an
auditor’s report or performing other audit, review or attest services for Calfrac, including the
resolution of disagreements between management and the external auditor regarding financial

reporting.
Review annually and recommend to the Board

(i) the external auditor to be nominated for the purpose of preparing or issuing an auditor's
report or performing other audit, review or attest services for Calfrac, and

(i) the compensation of the external auditor.

Discuss with the external auditor

(i) the scope of the audit, in particular the external auditor's view of Calfrac's accounting
principles as applied in the financial statements in terms of disclosure quality and
cvaluation methods, inclusive of the clarity of Calfrac's financial disclosure and
reporting, degree of conservatism or aggressiveness of Calfrac’'s accounting principles
and underlying estimates, and other significant decisions made by management in
preparing the financial statements reviewed by the extemnal auditor,

(i)’ significant changes in Calfrac's accounting principles, practices or policies, and

. (iii) new developments in accounting principles, reporting matters or industry practices that

may materialty affect Calfrac.

Review with the external auditor and Calfrac's senior management the results of the annual audit
regarding ‘

(i) the financial statements,
(i) MD&A and related financial disclosure contained in continuous disclosure documents,

(iii) significant changes, if any, to the initial audit plan,

@iv) accounting and reporting decisions relating to significant current year events and
transactions, :
W) the management letter, if any, outlining the external auditor’s findings and

recommendations, together with management's response, with respect to internal controls
and accounting procedures, and

(vi) any other matters relating to the conduct of the audit, including such other matters as
should be communicated to the Committee under generally accepted auditing standards.

Subject to the Board assuming such responsibility from time to time, review, discuss with
Calfrac's senior management and, if requested by the Board, the external auditor, and approve

(i} the interim financial statements and interim MD&A of Calfrac, and

(ii) any other matters, including all press releases, relating to the interim financial statements

and interim MD&A, including any significant adjustments, management judgements or,

estimates and new or amended accounting policies.

Receive from the external auditor a formal written statement delineating all relationships between
the external auditor and Calfrac, consider whether the advisory services performed by the external
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(h)

()

0

(k)

()

(m)

()

auditor during the course of the year have affected its independence, and ensure that no
relationship or service between the external auditor and Calfrac is in existence that may affect the
objectivity and independence of the external auditor or recommend appropriate action to ensure
the independence of the external auditor.

Pre-approve all non-audit services to be provided to Calfrac or its subsidiaries by the extemnal
auditor or the external auditor of Calfrac’s subsidiaries, provided that the Committee may satisfy
the pre-approval requirement either by delegating to one or more members of the Committee the
authority to pre-appreve non-audit services or by adopting specific policies and procedures for the
engagement of non-audit services.

Satisfy itself that adequate procedures are in place for the review of Calfrac's disclosure of
financial information extracted or derived from Calfrac's financial statements, other than the
public disclosure referred to in subsection (a) above, and periodically assess the adequacy of those
procedures.

Review with the external auditor the adequacy of management's internal .control over financial
reporting and management information systems, discuss with management and the external
auditor any significant risks and exposures to Calfrac that may have a material adverse effect on
Calfrac's financial statements, and review with the external auditor the efforts of management to
mitigate such risks and exposures.

Present a report to the Board regarding Calfrac’s audited financial statements for each fiscal year
and indicate in that report whether

(i) management has reviewed Calfrac’'s audited financial staterments with the Committee,
including a discussion of the quality of the accounting principles applied and significant
judgments affecting the financial statements,

{ii) the external auditor and the Committee have discussed the external auditor's judgments of
the quality of the accounting principles applied and the judgments made with respect to
Calfrac's financial statements,

(iif) the Committee has, without the presence of management or the external auditor,
considered and discussed all the information disclosed to the Committee by Calfrac's
management and the external auditor, and

(iv) in reliance on review and discussions conducted with senior management and the external
auditor, the Commiltee believes that Calfrac's financial statements are fairly presented in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in all material respects and that
the financial statements fairly reflect the financial condition of Calfrac.

Establish procedures for.

(i) the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints received by Calfrac regarding
accounting, internal accounting controls, or auditing matters, and

(ii) the confidential, anonymous submission by employees of Calfrac of concerns regarding
questionable accounting or auditing matters.

Review and approve Calfrac's hiring policies regarding partners, employees and former partners
and employees of the present and former external auditor,

Review annually and report to the Board on the adequacy of the Committee's charter.
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Administrative Matters: The following provisions shall apply to the Committee.

(a)

(®

(©)

(d)

(e)

M

(&)

(h)

0

()

The quorum for meetings of the Committee shall be two members thercof. Business may be
transacted by the Committee at a meeting of its members at which a quorum is present or by a
resolution in writing signed by all the members of the Committee.

Any member of the Committee may be removed or replaced at any time by the Board. If a
vacancy exists on the Commitiee, the remaining members may exercise all of the powers of the
Committee so long as a quorum remains, Subject to the foregoing, each member of the
Committee shall hold office until the close of the next annual meeting of sharecholders followmg
the date of appointment as a member or until a successor is duly appointed.

The Committee may invite such officers, directors and employees of Calfrac and other persons as
it may see fit from time to time to attend at meetings of the Committee and to assist thereat in the
discussion of matters being considered by the Committee. The external auditor is to appear before
the Committee when requested to do so by the Committee.

The Committee shall determine the time and place at which the Committee meetings shall be held
and the procedure for calling and conducting business at such meetings, having regard to the by-
laws of Calfrac.

The chair of the Committee shall preside at all meetings of the Committee. In the absence of the
chair, the members of the Committee present at a meeting shall appoint one of those members to
act as chair for that particular meeting.

Notice of meetings of the Committee may be given to the external auditor and shall be given in
respect of meetings relating to the annual financial statements. Upon the request of the external
auditor, the chair of the Committee shall convene a meeting of the Committee to consider any
matters that the external auditor indicates should be brought to the attention of the directors of
Calfrac.

The Committee shall report to the Board on such matters and questions relating to the financial
position of Calfrac or any subsidiaries of Calfrac as the Board may from time to time refer to the
Committee.

The members of the Committee shall, for the purpose of performing their duties, have the right to
inspect all the books and records of Calfrac and iis subsidiaries, and to discuss such books and
records as are in any way related to the financial position of Calfrac with the officers, employees
and external auditor of Calfrac and its subsidiaries.

Minutes of Committee meetings shall be recorded and maintained. The chair of the Committee
shall report to the Board on the activities of the Committee and the minutes of Committee
meetings will be promptly circulated to the directors who are not members of the Committee or, if
that is not practicable, shall be made available at the next meeting of the Board.

The Committee shall have the authority

(i) to engage independent counsel and other advisers that it determines to be necessary to
permit it to carry out its duties,

(ii) to set and pay the compensation for any advisers engaged by the Committee, and

(ii1) to communicate directly with the internal (if any) and external auditors.
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FORM 52-109F1 - CERTIFICATION OF ANNUAL FILINGS

I, Douglas R. Ramsay, President & Chief Executiv; Officer of Calfrac Well Services Ltd.,, certify that:

1

I have reviewed the annual filings (as this term is defined in Multilateral Instrument 52-109
Certification of Disclosure in Issuers’ Annual and Interim Filings) of Calfrac Well Services Ltd.
(the "issuer") for the financiat year ending December 31, 2006; ‘

82-34909

Based on my knowledge, the annual filings do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact

or omit to state a material fact required to be stated or that is necessary to make a statement not
misleading in light of the circumstances under which it was made, with respect to the period
covered by the annual filings;

Based on my knowledge, the annual financial statements together with the other financial
information included in the annual filings fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the issuer, as of the date and for the periods
presented in the annual filings;

The issuer’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining

disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting for the issuer, and -

we have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused them to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance that material information relating to the
issuer, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which the annual filings are being prepared,

(b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused it to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with the issuer's GAAP; and

{c) evaluated the effectiveness of the issuer’s disclosure controls. and procedures as of the
end of the period covered by the annual filings and have caused the issuer to disclose in
the annual MD&A our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures as of the end of the period covered by the annual filings based on such
evaluation; and

I have caused the issuer to disclose in the annual MD&A any change in the issuer's internal
control over financial reporting that occurred during the issuer's most recent interim period that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the issuer's internal control
over financial reporting.

March 19, 2007

(sighed)”Douglas R. Ramsay"

President and Chief Executive Officer
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A major comerstone of Calirac's success is the collective experience, expertise and performance of cur cmployees.
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Since our Company's inception in 1999, Calfrac Well Services Ltd. has become a leading independent
provider of specialty designed fracturing, coiled tubing, cementing and well servicing solutions
that are designed to increase the production of hydrocarbons from wells drilled throughout
Western Canada, the United States and Russia. Each of our service lines offers new opportunities
for our Company to develop innovative equipment and technologies that improve operating
efficiency, reduce environmenta! impact and deliver superior resuits, as evidenced by our
expanded capabilities to meet the growing demand in the deeper, more technically challenging
basins of Western Canada. We are able to respond quickly to customer needs and new opportunities
by deploying our best-in-class solutions, equipment and personnel to markets as required with
minimal ime and cost. '

Our goal is the same today as it was when we began over seven years ago: to safely and efficiently
provide the highest degree of expertise, innovative technology and service to our customers.

The concept is simple, but the implementation is rot. Although we compete in an arena with
comparnies several times our size, our success is attributable to our ability to meet the needs of
our custamers by providing SERVICE FIRST along with TECHNOLOGIES THAT WORK IN THE FIELD.

Calfrac Is a Canadian corporation headquartered In Calgary, Alberta with regional offices
In Danver, Colorade and Moscow, Russia as well as operating bases focated in Edson,
Grande Prairie, Medicine Hat, Red Deer and Strathmore, Alherta; Grand Junction and
Plattevitle, Colorado; Beebe, Arkansas; as well as Khantj-Mansiysk, Noyabrsk and
Purpe, Russia. The common shares of Gaifrac Well Services Ltd. are listed for trading
on the Toronin Stock Exchange under the symbo) CFW. .
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Calfrac has responded to this market opportunity ry
by expanding the pumping capacity of its fracturing - /”
operations to service the deeper basin ma‘rkets of ,; 7‘
northern Alberta and northeastern British Columbia, Lot
designing specialized eguipment and__using innova- ,‘{ i
tive fluid systems and engineering solutions. This - ™ i a
strategy provides our Company with a competitive . ‘I i
advantage and has resulted in consistently strong 3
revenue and profit growth. By the end of the first :‘; e
quarter of 2007, we expect to be operating 16 1
conventional and four coalbed methane fracturing { s o
spreads, 11 coiled tubing units and 17 cementing PR
units in Canada. - Jae
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- célfréc's expansion in the United States was focused
in the Grand Junction area of western Coforado to
service the deep, multiple fracturing requirements of
the tight sand gas wells in the Piceance and Uintah
Basins. Eastern Colorado was also an area of growth
as the Company secured large volume contracts with
major operators. Late in the year, we finalized a long-
term contract with a leading oil and gas company to
service a new fracturing market encompassing
Arkansas and eastern Oklahoma, and as a result, we
opened a new operating base in Beebe, Arkansas in
early 2007 to facilitate this expansion. it is anticipated
that additional opportunities will be available to Calfrac
in these new shale and tight gas markets as these
basins develop. During the first quarter of 2007, we will
deploy five conventional fracturing spreads from our
three United States operating bases.
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Calfrac comrnenced operatlens i the Riissiar: weII R
> gervices market dunng 2005 and by the end.of 2006 the -
Compan’y was operatlngyone fracturlng* spread andrthree 5 % i
SRS corled tubmg UﬂitS tn Western Srberra A second’ fractunngw'-' e
s spread Was: deployed to our:riewest operating base-
Iocated n Purpe, Western Srbena fn February 2007 Tw0< .
add|t|0nal cerled tubrng unrts are expected to: be deployed
and operatronal; by theaend of the f|rst quarter of 2007., o
Thls equrpmenf‘_fwrll servrce term contracts wrth wo of ' i i
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Dunng 2007, we plan to operate two fracturing
spreads and five coiled tubing units in Western .
Siberia. These expanded and more diversified,
operations have reached a critical mass and are
expected to drive further improvement in the
Company's financia! and operating performance
in this market.
e '
T U
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Years Enced Dacember 31, 2008 2005 Change | e
0005557 par wiers e v 0y ® = o)} ‘
Financial = ST
Ravenusg 426,418 314,325 =
Gross margin ©1 == 135,362 109,098 243 ot
Net income = == 72450 60,113 FIE
Per. share == basic = 2.00 166 202 .
T——r = difited — 198 1.64 2=
Cash flow.from operations. @ S 101,932 80,592 26
——— Per.shiare = basic S 281 2.23 26%
= = dilited 279 2:20 27
EBITDA'® e — 109,533 79,611 38-
Pershare == baslo = == 2.20 375
= diluted e 3.00 2:18 383
Capltal expenditures 155,478 ar.614 59=
S Working capital 31,225 39,396 [Fil)
Total'assets 454,190 336,815 35
Shareholders’ equity. m— 303,510 234,021 302
Market capitaiization'at year-end 804,184 1:.460,201 (45);
Weighted average: Shares (BashE) OUtStARding W e—r—————— 36,286 36,216 = ,
{ona) === = " — ™
Operating:as atiDecember.31 e
Fracturing:spreads
Conventional.fracturing 21 17 242
Coatbed.methans 4 4 =%
Total 25 21 192
Coiléd WbiAG units 14 11 = 97s
Cementifig units 13 9 447 =
S GAATEREYZRES ULTSE S =
I Ouaters Enced March 31, June 30, Septarber 30, [ 3N, fe————
—_— 2006 2005 2000 2005 2008 2005 2000 WS | e
P e P = ——at y T -.
Reveiie T 126,010 ==80,694%! 66,973 ==44,6195] 115,112 =77.37751 118,322 S1n6MziT—————=
Gross margin' 0 49,027 ==32437=] 14,446 ==7,630=; 36,500 =25694=| 34,488 =433 m—————
Net Income:{loss) 34,556 =21,670=i 1,569 T=(1,876):i 19,418 =12,947=! 16,907 =27, 3725 m—me—mm
S Per share == basic 085 ==060=; 0.04 ==005% 054 ===0.36= 047 =015
= diluted = 094 ==059%; 0.04 ==(0.05): 053 =035 0.46 —=10.75>|=———————
Cashi-flow. from operations 41656 =26,0155) 7,208 ==52,280=] 27,560 =18,503=] 25,507 =30784% e
Per_share=— basic 1.15 =072 020 SE=008= 076 ==051=] 0.70 —==09)7|Fmm—m—trme
= = diliiféd 113 =01 020 SSSO06T 076 ==0515] 070 =0T ——r
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‘meaning under. GAAP, and accordingly, may not ba camparabls fo similar used by other

2 Cast fiow i défined &8 *hunds providad by operations, - a8 relkacted I the ia consclidated Btatemen! DI Cash IiGw; Gash Now and Cash Tiow, por shiera are moasires it ———

Drovids Sharenalders - PRIEHA, WvEStors with- Bdditonal: IoTmation fegarding e Company's SRuKIty, ond RS bility, 1o, penerats, fntd 10, ARANGS 113 DpErBIONS e
utiitzes hase nssseamcnmua:mmummmanperamumwmumdcanlmemenmms.casnmmdrammwuzrmumrm-"'—'—'—‘—“"—"—"

that have any meaning prescribac under GAAR, and j, May nok ba ¢ bly b similar measured ussd by oler

EX) EBnmkﬂe&nduhmthemut.mn.dewnhmmaMIm EMDAnmemnnhwwmmmlmmmﬁmu e ]

ing compeniea and e, abirty, 10 service vebl: EBTDA 18 8 Measure thai 003 not have oy standandtred meaning prescritied NGGT GAAR, and ingly, may
nol ba comparable o slmilar. measures used by other

‘t




fcustomer‘satlsfactlon,.operational

eag gl

i

bt e

53

L

FES R TP

€

g

v

g o

L5
£,




Having met our goals over the course of 2006,
Calfrac continues to move forward to address

the new operating and f'geographic opportunities
presented by, the global oilfield services market.
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Letter to Shareholders

We believe that success in-this endeavour lies
in the fundamental values that Calfrac brings
to every initiative: that SERVICE FIRST and
TECHNOLOGIES THAT WORK IN THE FIELD are,
first and foremost, about making our customers
successful. It's. about working in partnership with
our customers to deliver services and solutions
that are right for them. It's about outstanding

, customer support, operating excellence and
industry knowledge. These values have made
Calfrac the industry leader it is today.

We are very satisfied with this year's results.

Our service lines continued to lead the market in
quality of service in Canada, with significant growth
in the Rocky Mountain region of the United States
as well as Western Siberia in Russia. During 2006,
we furthered our business model of operational and
geographic diversification through the deployment
of additional fracturing spreads, coiled tubing units
and cementing units to our operating regions.

FINAHCIAL HIGHLIGHTS -

Calfrac achieved record financial performance‘ as

a result of a strong oil and gas price environment,
an expanded fieet of service equipment and careful
execution of the Company's business strategy. Year-
over-year financial gains included:

. > increasing revenue 36% to $426.4 million;

» growing net income 21% to $72.5 million
of $2.60 per share (basic);

> Improving operating cash flow 26% 1o
$101.9 million or $2.81 per share (basic);
and '

> increasing EBITDA 38% to $109.5 million or
£3.02 per share {basic).

For the year ended December 31, 2006, average
consolidated fracturing revenue per job increased
26% to $56,753 from $45,006 recorded in 2005.
Improvements in operational efficiency, equipment
utilization and market share all positively affected
this key performance indicator.
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Consotidated Fracturing Revenue Per Job s

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS ~

Calfrac initiated a focused capital program during
2006 that totaled $155.5 million, the largest in the
Company's history, to enhance our global fracturing
and coiled tubing equipment fleet as well as to
increase the scale of our Canadian cementing
operations. This extensive and diversified equip-
ment inventory enables “on demand” deployment
of assets to our three global operating regions as
required, which, together with our experienced
workforce, is a key competitive advantage. During
the year, our operaticnal growth included the
following highlights.

Canada

> Expanding our fleet of equipment across
all services lines.

> Adding a new operating base in Edson,
Alberta in order to better service our grow-
ing operations in the west cenlral regions
of the province. n

> Maintaining long-term contracts for three
of our fracturing spreads to sat'_isfy
demand in the coatbed methane and
shallow gas fracturing markets,

United States

> Deploying two additional multi-psmper
fracturing spreads to the U.S. Rocky
Mountain region.

» Signing a long-term take-or-pay contract
to provide fracturing services {o a new
operating district encompassing Arkansas
and eastern Okiahoma.

PG 10 - CALFIAC WELL SERWICES LTDL ‘Ws » 7006 ANNUA( REPOST

Russia

> Opening a new operating base in Khanty-
Mansiysk, Western Siberia.

> Deploying eur first fracturing spread and
coiled tubing unit to the Khanty-Mansiysk
region.

> Receiving work from two of Russia's
largest oil and gas producers for the
provision of services from two fracturing
spreads and five coiled tubing units
in 2007. . ’

QUR FUTURE GROWTH ~»

Our key to growth is looking beyond near-term :
gains and investing in the future.

Working with our Customers

Our customers, as well as the size of jobs that we
are being asked to complets, are getting higger and
we need to partner with them in new and different
ways in order to grow our share of their business.
We continue to add the talent and resources
necessary to capture the increasing demand for
deep zone operations in the Western Canadian
Sedimentary Basin, the United States and Russia.
To that end, we will further expand the pumping
capacity of our fracturing units, convert shallow
fracturing and coiled tubing units to operate in
these deeper, more technicat areas and continue
to develop new fiuid systems and engineering
solutions to enhance operational performance and
efficiency. We are investing more resources to
assist our customers and to help us identify new
6pportunities tor mutual growth.




Extending our Service Lines and Customers to
New Geographic Areas

The focus internationally is to build our service lines
into truly global offerings. We are currently operat-
ing in the world’s top three fracturing markets and
are looking to provide our full suite of services to
each of these regions, We 100k to grow our Company
by further sourcing new customers, expanding cur-
rent offerings to our existing client base and seizing
opportunities that will extend our reach into new
international markets. We will also continue to proac-
tively review the industry for acquisition opportunities
that meet our equipment and safety standards as
well as our strict return on capital criteria,

THE CHALLENGES WE FACE >

We continue to tackle the challenges we face head
on and use them as our competitive edge.

Workforce

Given the current economic and industry climate,
we struggle primarily with finding and retaining

a reliable, qualified and dedicated workforce. We
recognize that a job is more than a pay cheque and
that people want to work for an employer who
respects them as individuals, puts their safety and
health first, creates advancement opportunities
through training and education, encourages team-
work, welcomes ideas and nurtures a collaborative
atmosphere. Good pay and benefits are important,
but so are ethical business practices. These are the
qualities that make Calfrac a great place to work.

Commodity Price Volatility

Over the past nine months, the energy industry has
experienced an erosion in natural gas prices, i
thereby affecting drilling activity levels. Caifrac is
known for proactively working with its customers to
respond to these shifts in operational activities. For
example, our focus on achieving high utilization
rates and on-the-job efficiencies has created an
environment that reduces costs for the service
provider and the customer. We continue {0 work
with our customers to develop and implement
viable solutions to the changing demands of the
energy services business by providing exceptional
service, innovative technologies and state-of-the-
art equipment.

.

LOOKING FORWARD >

As we look to the future, we are keeping a sharp
eye on the climate of the global energy industry. At
Calfrac, we believe our business model that focuses
on pressure pumping service lines and a global
reach allows us to proactively adjust to industry
activity and commodity price fluctuations as
required. Currently, it would appear that high levels
of natural gas storage in North America may have
a negative impact on domestic drilling activity levels
in 2007. However, with a strong balance sheet,

a sophisticated strategy for operating and growing
our business and the strong competitive advantages
that come with being an industry leader, we believe
we have the capacity to ride out any downturn that
may occur in the energy sector.
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Letter to Shareholders

Our objective is to continue to anticipate
and respond to our customers’ needs with
the superior operating equipment, best
practices, global support and expertise they
require to be successful with our solutions,
which will translate into improved business
performance for Calfrac.

Planned capital expenditures for 2007 are antici-
pated to total approximately $96 million, of which
$76 million relates to new equipment, and will be
focused on staying the course with our strategy
of increasing the pumping capacity in Canada to
better serve the deep basin markets In northern
Alberta and northeastern British Columbia, expand-
ing our United States fracturing operations into
Arkansas and eastern Oklahoma and opening and
equipping a new operating base in Purpe, Western
Siberia to support the increasing scale of our
Russian operations. By the end of the first quarter
of 2007, Caffrac expects to have 27 fracturing
spreads, 16 coited tubing units and 17 cementing
units operating globally.

We believe we have the financial flexibility, the
strategy and the team in place to sustain the kind
of financial and operational performance that our
stakehalders have come to expect from Calfrac.
Behind our performance is a team of extraordinary
board members, management and staff who stand
at the core of Calfrac’s success. We extend to them
our sincere thanks for their ongoing dedication to
this Company. To our growing global base of busi-
ness partners, loyal customers and shareholders,
we thank you for your continued support and
confidence in Calfrac.

PG 12 » CALFRAC WELL SEMVICES LTD. W+ 2008 ANNUNL REPORT

This is a tremendously exciting time for Calfrac.
We clearly have momentum and we have great
pecple who are passionate about continuing that
drive. We are looking for another strong year in
2007, and we are putting new energy behind all
service lines to increase their growth in the years to
come, Qur objective is to continue to anticipate and
respond to our customers' needs with the superior
operating equipment, best practices, global support
and expertise they require to be successful with
our solutions, which will translate into improved
business performance for Calfrac.

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

it

RONALD P. MATHISON
Ghairman

DOUGLAS R. RAMSAY
President & Chief Executive Officer

February 26, 2007
Calgary, Alberta
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Operations Review
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Calfrac develops and manufactures a unique
fleet of specialty désigned equipment and utilizes
innovative technologies with four key operating
factors in mind: efficiency, performance, reliability
and environmental protetion.

SEAVEIGE LINES >

Calfrac is-a leading independent provider of oilfield
pressure pumping services, including fracturing,
coiled tubing, cementing and other well stimulation
services, which are designed to enhance_the recov-
ery of hydrocarbons from oil and gas reservoirs in
Canada, the United States and Russia. Calfrac
develops and manufactures a unique fleet of
specialty designed equipment and utilizes innova-
tive technologies with four key operating factors

in mind: efficiency, performance, reliability and-
environmental protection.

During 2006, Calfrac significantly expanded its
global fracturing and coiled tubing equipment fleet
as well as the scale of its Canadian cementing
cperations. At December 31, 2006, the Company's

equipment fleet included 21 conventional and
four coalbed methane (“CBM™) fracturing spreads,
nine shallow and five deep coiled tubing units and
13 cementing units. This extensive and diversified
equipfnent inventory enables the Company to
deploy equipment and personnel to geographic
regions as required with minimal time and cost.

CANADIAN OPERATIONS >

Calfrac's CBM and shallow gas fracturing opera-
tions in southern Alberta lagged expectations due to
the impact of lower natural gas prices, wet weather
and CBM land access, licensing and infrastructure
issues. Consequently, the Company reallocated
some of its equipment and personnel to other
regions within this market that were active in deep
basin projects. By year-end, Calfrac was operating



Operations Review

15 conventional and four CBM fracturing spreads
in the Canadian market. In keeping with the
Company's philosophy of securing a certain level of
business with long-term contracts, in March 2006
a new mufti-year take-or-pay contract was signed
with a major independent Canadian oil and gas pro-
ducer for the provision of a conventional fracturing
spread dedicated to Western Canada’s deep basin
market. Calfrac currently has long-term contracts
on four of its Canadian fracturing spreads that will
support a minimum level of activity during 2007.

. Throughout the upcoming year, the Company expects

to add one conventional fracturing spread and signif-
icant horsepower to its Canadian operations.

The Company’s coiled tubing operations also
continued to expand in 2006. Two new deep coiled
tubing units were added to better service Canada's
growing intermediate and deep basin operations.
At December 31, 2008, the Company had nine
shallow and two deep coiled tubing units operating
in Canada. The Company anticipates that these
operations will continue to become a more signifi-
cant portion of its overall business.

Caltrac continued to enhance the scope of its
cementing operations in Western Canada with a
strategic focus on the deeper, more technically
challenging basins of northern Alberta and north-
eastern British Columbia. During 2006, the
Company increased its cementing equipment fleet
from nine at the beginning of the year to 13 at
year-end with the deployment of four new twin
pumping units to service the region's intermediate
and deep basins. In addition, in August Calfrac
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opened a new state-of-the-art automated bulk
cement plant in Red Deer, Alberta. This modern
facility more than doubles-the Company's previous
blending capacity with the added advantages of full
automation, improved blend quality and an environ-
mentally friendly vacuum system. In December,

a new satellite cementing base and a staging base
for tracturing and coiled tubing operations opened
in Edson, Alberta in order to extend the Company's
operating reach to a growing list of customers in
the region, During the first quarter of 2007, the
Company plans to add four cementing units to its
operating fleet.

UUNITED STATES OPERATIONS >

During the past year, Calfra¢ progressed its global
expansion strategy by deploying additional equip-
ment to the Roecky Mountain region of the United
States. In order to better service the Company's
growing base of customers in the Grand Junction
district, two additional multi-pumper fracturing
spreads were deployed during the year for a total of
five conventional fracturing spreads operating in the
U.S. at year-end. In addition, a long-term take-cr-
pay contract was signed late in the year with a
major U.S. oil and gas company to provide fracturing
services to a new operating district encompassing
Arkansas and eastern Oklahoma. As a resuli, it is
expected that a multi-pumper fracturing spread
will be reallocated from the Company’s Grand
Junction district to its new operating base located
in Beebe, Arkansas late in the first quarter of 2007,
thereby further strengthening the Company's
United States operations.

R |
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RUSSIAN OPERATIONS ~

Calfrac continued to grow its presence in the
Russian well services market by opening a new
_operating base in Khanty-Mansiysk, Western Siberia
in May 20086. During the year, the Company
deployed its first multi-pumper fracturing spread
and a deep coiled tubing unit to this new operating
region. At year-end, the Company was operating
one conventional fracturing spread as well as three
deep coiled tubing units in Russia. In February
2007, the Company deployed a second fracturing
spread to its newest operating base located in
Purpe, Western Siberia. Two additional coiled tubing
units are expected to be delivered to Russia by the
end of the first quarter of 2007. This equipment wilf
work under three annual service awards negotiated
with two of Russia's largest oil and gas companies.
Contrary to Calfrac’s North American operations, its
Russian operations are more heavily weighted to
the oil well pressure pumping services market.

For 2007, it is anticipated that the larger scale of
Russian operations will hetp drive continued
corporate growth and, to some extent, mitigate the
impact of a pessible slowdown in activity in Canada
and the United States. '

During 2006, Calfrac
continued to grow its
presence in the Russian
well services market by
opening a new operating
base and deploying
additional equipment.
These expanded and more
diversified operations are
expected to drive further
improvement in the
Company’s future per-
formance in this market.

1
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Operations Review

' NEW TECHNOLOGY ~

Throughout 2006, the ofl and gas industry contin-
ued its shift in activity towards daveloping deeper
and tighter gas reservoirs, which has resulted in
rising demand for larger stimulation treatments.
Both tight sands and shale gas reservoirs lie near
the bottom of the resource pyramid where, although
reserve potential is high, defiverability through con-
ventional technology is challenging. For stimulation
treatments to be effective in these tight reservoirs
where permeability is measured in terms of micro
and nano Darcys, maximizing the areal contact of
the reservoir to the wellbore is of primary impor-
tance. Large fracturing treatments pumped at very
high rates are known as slick water fracturing, or in
the case of Calfrac, the CWS-600 system. These
fluid and pumping technologies, combined with
innovative completion practices, allow multiple
intervals to be treated in both vertical and horizon-
tal wells. Unlike conventional stage fracturing that
requires multiple trips to the well location, slick
water fracturing technology can stimulate several
intervals cencurrently, thereby reducing the
environmental impact and helping to tower overall
well completion costs. In response to this recent
industry trend, over the past several years Calfrac
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has invested in additional pumping capacity, and
during 2007 it plans to acquire an additional 21
high pressure pumping units for use in Canada, the
United States and Russia. '

During the past year, the Alberta Energy and Utilities
Board (“EUB™) introduced new envirenmental stan-
dards for shallow gas fracmring. More specifically,
fracturing treatments performed in well depths that
are above the base of ground water protection, as
outlined by the EUB, are reguired to use special
stimulation fluids. Calfrac proactively responded to
this new standard by developing a new series of
innovative fluid systems, which successfully passed
stringent Microtox® testing.

The expansion into the Russian market has also
prompted Calfrac to develop a new approach to
traditional fracture fluid systems. Consequently, the
Company has introduced a new continuous mix,
high viscosity, cross-linked fluid system that is
providing for more efficient fracturing operations
and lower costs for customers.

i
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Operations Review

EQUIPMENT »

Calfrac operates a comprehensive fleet of equip-
ment that, on average, is less than three years old.

. A major challenge for the Company continues to be

managing the operational impact of construction
delays for new fracturing, coiled tubing and
cementing equipment. The Company’s equipment
expansion has been slowed by delays as a result of
high activity levels in the equipment manufacturing
sector and a shortage of critical components.
Calfrac continues to meet with its manufacturers
and other third party suppliers to address this
ongoing fssue and has been proactive in obtaining
major components directly from suppliers. In addi-
tion, during 2006 Calfrac continued to increase its
fleet management staff as well as the number of
Canadian, U.S. and international vendors.

HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT ~

The Company utilizes a comprehensive and inte-
grated internal system (the Catfrac Management -
System) to manage, monitor and report on health,
safety and environmental {*HS&E") incidents and
issues. This system is based on business and
industry best practices that meet or exceed all reg-
ulatory standards and provides guidelines to ensure
that a consistent approach is achieved across all of
its global operations. As Calfrac continues to grow
the scope and scale of its operations, it remains
committed to providing a safe work environment for
its employees, third party contractors and customers.

During 2006, the Company continued to educate its
employees on safe work practice methods and
emergency response procedures. Catfrac collaborates
with a number of safety institutions and related
third parties to ensure its employees are trained
and certified in compliance with Company and
regulatory standards. In addition, the Company's
operations and HS&E staff actively participate

with industry partners to develop standards and
protocols to further the industry's best practices.

The Calfrac Management System is a compre-
hensive and integrated internal system that
manages, monitors and reports on Company
HS&E activities. This system is based on
business and industry best practices that meet
or exceed all regulatory standards and provides
guidelines to ensure that a consistent approach
is achieved across all of its global operations.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis o

This Management's Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A") for Catfrac Well Services Ltd. (“Calfrac™ or the
“Company”) has been prepared by management as of February 26, 2007 and is a review of the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company based on accounting principles generally accepted in
Canada. Its focus is primarily a comparison of the financial performance for the three months and years
ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 and should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated
financlal statements and accompanying notes for thosa perlods as well as the MDEA for the three months
and years ended December 31, 2005. Readers should atso refer to the “Forward-Looking Statements” fegal
advisory located at the end of this MDEA. The annual consolidated financial statements have been
prepared In accordance with Canadian generalty accepted accounting principtes ("GAAP®).

All financial amounts and measures presented in this MD&A are expressed in Canadian dollars unless
otherwise indicated. The definitions of certain non-GAAP measures used within this MD&A have besn
included at the end of this MD&A.

2006 HIGHLIGHTS > _

Calfrac is an independent provider of specialized oilfield services in Canada, the United States and Russia,
including fracturing, coiled tubing, cementing and other well stimulation services. The Company has established
a leadership position by providing high quality, responsive service through an expanding geographic network,
increased operating fleet and growing customer base. For the year ended December 31, 2006, Calfrac:

> increased revenue 36% to $426.4 million compared to $314.3 miltion in 2605;
> grew net income to $72.5 million or $2.00 per share {basic), an increase of $12.3 millfon or $0.34
per share {basic) from the previous year; :
> achieved record cash flow from operations before changes in non-cash working capital of $101.9
million or $2.81 per share {basic) compared to $80.6 million or $2.23 per share (basic) in 2005;
* > improved year-over-year EBITDA by 38% to $108.5 million versus $79.6 millian'a year ago; and

> incurred capital expenditures of $155.5 million to expand its equipment fieet across all geographic
markets and service lines. :
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BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT >

Calfrac’s 2006 financia! and operating performance was primarily weighted to its Canadian natural gas fracturing
operations. During 2006, the number of wells drilled in Western Canada decreased 7% to 22,979 from a record
24,803 welis drilled in 2005. The Company’s shallow gas and coalbed methane (“CBM") activity levels were
negatively impacted by customers reducing activity due to concems surrounding lower natural gas commodity
prices. CBM activity levels were also impacted by regulatory and landowner issues.

Gil and Gas Average Benchmark Prices

Years Ended December 31, ’ ’ 2000 2005

. ’ » ]
AECO Price cons/met ] o 6.54 8.78
WTI Price st _ 66.25 56.70

The West Texas intermediate benchmark crude oil price increased 17% in 2006 to average US$66.25 per
barrel compared to US$56.70 per barrel a year ago. The 2006 AECO average spot price was $6.54 per thousand
cubic feet, a 26% decrease from 2005. The Company anticipates that oil and gas prices over the short-term
may remain volatile and that well service market activity levels should continue to be rélatively strong, but
lower than the record levels experienced in 2005.

2006 PERFORMANCE SUMMARY >

Canadian Operations

Revenue from Canadian operations for 2006 increased 14% to $318.0 million compared to $280.1 million in
2005 primarily as a result of higher activity in the deeper, more technical areas of the Western Canadian
Sedimentary Basin offset by lower activity due to the impact of weaker natural gas prices and CBM regulatory
delays. Canadian fracturing revenue totaled $278.2 million, an increase of $15.4 million or 6% from the prior
year. During 20086, the Company COm;ﬁeted 5,238 Canadian fractiring jobs for average revenue of $53,105 per
job compared to 6,063 jobs for $43,334 per job in 2005. The revenue per job for Canadian fracturing operations
was higher In 2006 due primarily to significant increases in the number of jobs compieted in the deeper basins
of northern Alberta and northeastern British Columbia, price book increases for services effective January 1,
2006 and a reduction in the number of CBM and shallow gas jobs completed during the year,

The Company’s revenue from coiled tubing cperations increased $9.3 million in 2006 to $18.2 million compared
to $8.9 million the previous year. In 2008, 5,875 jobs were completed for average revenue of $3,302 per job
compared to 5,262 jobs for $1,698 per job in 2005. Year-over-year Canadian coiled tubing revenue and revenue
per job increased primarily as a result of the deployment of two new coiled tubing units during the second
quarter of 2006, which enabled the Company to generate higher levels of activity in the deeper markets of
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Westem Canada. Additionally, the Company’s coiled tubing operations were focused throughout 2005 on shallow
gas operations in southem Alberta, which historically produce lower revenue on a per job basis. In 20086, these
operations were negatively impacted by decreased drilling activity. Also during 2005, two coiled tubing units
were transferred to Russia during the second and third quarters, which negatively impacted activity and revenue
tfrom this service line during the previous year.

For the year ended December 31, 2006, revenue from Calfrac’s cementing operations totated $21.6 million
versus $8.4 million in 2005, This 158% increase was due primarily to a larger equipment fleet, expanded service
area, including the deeper basin markets of northern Alberta and northeastern British Columbia, as well as the
integration of cementing operations into its sales and marketing team. During 2006, the Company completed
1,974 jobs for average revenue of $10,959 per job compared to 1,007 jobs for average revenue of $8,336 per
jobr in 2005,

United States Operations

During 2006, revenue from Calfrac’s United States operations totaled $86.3 million, up 161% from $33.0 million
the previous year, This increase was primarily a result of a larger fracturing equipment fleet combined with
higher levels of activity. In'late 2005, a fracturing spread was deployed to eastern Colorado and another deep
fracturing spread began opeiating in the Piceance Basin of western Colorado during March 2006. For the year
ended December 31, 2006, the Company completed 1,284 U.S. fracturing jobs for average revenue of $67,037
per job compared to 509 jobs for $64,921 per job recorded a year ago. The year-over-year increase in the
reported revenue per job was partially offset by a stronger Canadian dollar.

Russian Operations

Revenue from Calfrac's Russian operations increased $20.9 million to $22.1 million in 2006 from $1.2 million
a year ago. The Company initially deployed two deep coiled tubing units to Russia during the fourth quarter

of 2005, A third deep coiled tubing unit was added in May 2006, and in June the Company began operating

its first Russian fracturing spread in the Khanty-Mansiysk region of Western Siberia. A second fracturing spread
began operating from Calfrac’s newest Russian operating district in Purpe, Western Siberia during the first quarter
of 2007. Two additional coiled tubing units are’anticipated to be deployed to Russia late in the first quarter of
2007. These expanded and more diversified operations have reached a critical mass and are expected to drive
further improvement in the Company’s future financial and operating performance in this market.
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GROSS MARGIN >

Consolidated gross margin for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased 24% to $135.4 million from
$109.1 million in 2005 primarily as a result of a larger fleet of equipment in all geographic segments and
strong activity levels in the deeper basin markets of Western Canada and the United States. Consolidated gross
margin as a percentage of revenue decreased to 32% from 35% in 2005 as a result of the impact of pricing
pressures in the Canadian market during the latter half of 2006 and increased revenue from Russia, which has
lower gross margins. This was partially offset by improved financial performance in the United States.

EXPENSES »

Operating Expenses

Calfrac’s total 2006 operating expenses increased 42% to $291 .1 million compared to $205.2 million in 2005
due primarily to a larger fleet of equipment and global operating presence, as well as higher activity levels and
district overhead expenses. During 2006, district expenses increased as a result of the Company's growing
scale of operations in each of its three geographic markets; more specifically, the expansion of existing
Canadian districts servicing the deeper basins of Western Canada and the opening of a new district office in

: Russia. Additionally, Calfrac incurred the full year cost impact of new operating bases that were opened in the
latter hatf of 2005 in Strathmqre, Alben_‘la; Grand Junction, Colorado; and Noyabrsk, Russia.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

During 2006, Calfrac’s selling, general and administrative (*SG&A™) expenses declined 4% to $28.4 million
compared to $29.5 million in the previous year primarily relating to lower stock-based compensation expenses,
which decreased to $2.9 million from $4.3 million recorded in 2005. As a percentage of revenue, SG&A
expenses decreased to 7% In 2006 compared to 9% in 2005. During 2005, the Company’s higher relative stock
price resulted in higher than normal expenses related to performance and deferred share units.

Interest, Depreciation and Other Expenses

Net interest expense increased to $2.3 million during 2006 compared to $0.1 million of net interest income
in 2005 as a result of higher long-term debt incurred primarily to finance the Company’s capital program.
A public offering of Calfrac’s shares in August 2004 for net proceeds of $26.8 million resulted in a stronger
cash position and higher interest revenue during 2005 as compared to 2006.

In 2006, depreciation expense increased 50% or $8.6 million to $25.7 million primarily as a result of the
deployment of four fracturing spreads, three coiled tubing units, four cementing units and other related equip- -
ment as well as a full year of depreciation relating to 2005 equipment additions.

E - - - f - -
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INCOME TAX >

During 2008, the Company recorded an income tax expense of $9.0 million compared to $2.5 million a year
ago. The current tax expense for 2006 was $7.5 million, an increase of $6.4 miltion from 2005. As a result

of the business combination with Denison Energy Inc. (“Denisen”) in 2004, Calfrac significantly reduced its
current income tax related to Canadian operations during 2005 and 2006, The increase in the current tax provi-
sion for 2006 was mainly attributed to the increased profitability of the Company's U.S. operations. For the year
ended December 31, 2006, Calfrac recorded a future income tax expense of $1.5 million, up from §1.4 miltion
in 2005. This provision is largely related to the drawdown of tax pools as a result of the Company’s profitability.

NET INGOME ~

For the year ended December 31, 2006, Calirac’s net income was $72.5 million or $2.00 per share (basic)
compared to $60.1 million or $1.66 per share {basic) in 2005. This grawth in earnings was primarily due to
improved financial performance from the Company’s Canadian deep basin and United States operations,

a larger and maore diversified fleet of equipment and less weather related issues than in 2005. -

Net Income VPer Share ¢ basiy
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CASH FLOW »
The Company's cash flow from operations before changes in non-cash working capital was $101.9 million in
2006, an increase of $21.3 million or 26% from $80.6 million recorded the previous year. This increase was
primarily a result of:

> consolidated revenue growing 36% or $112.1 millian to $426.4 million

that was partially offset by:

> operating expenses that increased 42% or $85.8 million te $291.1 million;
> net interest expense that rose $2.4 million to $2.3 million; and
> a $6.4 mitlion increase in the current income tax provision to $7.5 million.
In both 2006 and 2005, cash flow was used to partially finance the Company's capital expenditures.

4

Ca;h F!ow Per S_hare (5 basi)
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LIDUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES »

. Years Ended December 31, o . | 2008 2005
(0005) ® 1]
Cash provided {used in): ]

Operating activities . 110,518 59,005
Financing activities . 42,756 {128)
Investing activities . (136,881) {97,520}
Increase {decreass) in cash and cash equivalents 16,393 (38,643)

Operating Activities

The Company's 2006 cash flow from operations, excluding changes in non-cash working capital, was $101.9
million compared to $80.6 million in 2005, The increase in cash flow was primarily due to higher revenues in
all geographic markets driven mainly by higher activity levels (with the exception of Canadian CBM and shaltow
gas fracturing markets) partially reduced by increased expenses. As at December 31, 2006, Calfrac had positive
working capital of $31.2 million compared to working capital of $39.4 million in 2005, The reduction in working
capital was primarily due to higher trade payables rplated {o the Company's capital expenditures,

Financing Activities

In 2008, total long-term debt increased to $60.0 million from $10.6 million a year ago. During the fourth quarter
of 20086, the Company. finalized the documentation to increase its available credit facilities to $150.0 million
with a syndicate of Canadian chartered banks. The operating line of credit was increased from $20.0 million to
$25.0 million with advances bearing interest at either the bank’s prime rate, U.S. base rate, LIBOR plus 1%

or bankers' acceptances plus 1%. The revolving term loan was increased to $125.0 million from $50.0 million
and bears interest at either the bank's prime rate plus 0.25%, U.S. base rate plus 0.25%, LIBOR plus 1.25% or
bankers' acceptances plus 1.25%. On February 13, 2007, Calfrac completed a private ptacement of unsecured
senior potes for an aggregate principal amount of US$135.0 million. These notes are due on February 15, 2015
and bear interest at 7.75%. As a result of this debt offering, the Company’s revolving term loan was reduced by
$60.0 million to $65.0 million. A portion of the proceeds received from these notes was used to repay the
outstanding amounts related to the existing operating and revelving term credit facilities. As at the date of this
report, the Company has unused credit facilities in the amount of $90.0 million and approximately U$$50.0
million of cash invested in short-term investments. )

On February 7, 2005, the shareholders of the Company veted in favour of a two-for-one subdivision of the
Company’s common shares. Common shares began trading on a split basis on the Toronto Stock Exchange on
February 17, 2005. As at the date of this report, the Company has 36,390,408 common shares outstanding.

In May 2005, Calfrac's Board of Directors adopted a semi-annual dividend policy of $0.05 per common share.
In accordance with this policy, the Company most recently paid a common share dividend on January 5, 2007
totaling $1.8 million to all shareholders of record on December 19, 2006. The Company's dividends qualify as
“eligible dividends™ as defined by the Canada Revenue Agency.
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Investing Activities

During 2008, net cash used for investing activities increased to $136.9 million from $97.5 million in 2005. For
the year ended December 31, 2008, capital expenditures totaled $155.5 million, up from $97.6 million a year
ago. This increase in capital expenditures was primarily due to:

> the construction and deployment of four multi-pumper eonventional fracturing spreads, with
ane spread allocated to each of the Campany’s Canadian and Russian markets and two spreads
serving the U.5. market;

> the construction and deployment of two deep coifed tubing units to Canada and one deep coiled
tubing unit to serve the wel services market in Western Siberia;

> the completion of four cementing units to serve the deeper basin markets of Westera Ganada; and

> construction costs refated to the remaining two atlditional fracturing spreads, two coiled tubing
units and four cementing units from the 2006 capital program.

During December 2006, the Company entered into a long-term contract with a leading independent U.S. oil and
gas company for fracturing services in Arkansas and eastern Oklahoma. Under the terms of this contract,
Caifrac will provide a multi-pumper fracturing spread for a two-year term with minimum work commitments
that will be serviced by Calfrac’s existing fleet of equipment as well as equipment being manufactured pursuant
to the Company’s 2007 capital program. This contract is consistent with Calfrac’s philosophy of having a pre-
scribed level of its equipment fleet operating under long-term contracts. In addition, the Company was awarded
a one-year contract with a new customer in Purpe, Russia. This contract includes the provision of a multi-
pumper fracturing spread, deep ceiled tubing unit and additional support equipment. At the end of the first
quarter of 2007, it is anticipated that Calfrac will be'operating 27 fracturing spreads, 16 ¢oiled tubing units and
17 cementing units.

On February 11, 2005, the Company acquired the remaining 30% interest in Ram Cementers Inc. {(“Ram™),
thereby making Ram a wholly owned subsidiary of Calfrac. Subsequent to this acquisition, Ram was wound-up

" Imto Calfrac and all operating, marketing and financiat activities became fully integrated within the Company.

With its current working capital position, available credit facilities and anticipated cash flow from operations,
the Company expects to have adequate resources to fund its financial obligations for 2007.

CONTRAGTUAL GBLIGATIONS AND GONTINGENCIES » A o
T oo T ST Payert Dus by Perid

Less than 1-3 : 4-5 After

Total 1 Year Years Yeary § Years

0008) ® ® " @ ®
Long-term debt 60,000 ' - 19,200 40,800 -
Operating lzases 26,137 6,643 - 6,688 5,363 7,437
Purchase obligations - 18,373 16,925 1,448 - -
Total contractual obligations 104,510 23,574 . 27,33 46,163 7,437

Calfrac has various contractual obligations related to debt, leasing of vehicles and office space and raw material
purchase commitments as outlined above.
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Russian Value Added Taxes

As described in note 15 to the annual consolidated financial statements, Calfrac is involved in lega! proceed-
ings against the Russian government's tax authorities with respect to the recovery of certain Value Added Taxes
{“VAT") paid when new equipment from North America was imported into the country. The Company believes
that it is entitled to recover these previously paid VATS against the VAT amounts collected from Russian cus-
tomers for the provision of pressure pumping services. As at December 31, 2008, the total recoverable amount
of Russian VAT receivable was $4.5 miliion. During 2008, the Company was successful in similar proceedings
and believes that the recovery of these amounts will be resolved within the next 12 months.

Greek Legal Proceedings

As described in note 15 to the annual consolidated financial statements, the Company is involved in a number
of legal proceedings in Greece. Management evaluates the likelihood of potential liabilities being incurred and
the amount of such liabilities after careful examination of available information and discussions with its legal
advisors, As these proceeding have yet to reach a status where the direction of a court’s decision can be
determined with any reliability, management i$ unable to evaluate its potentia! exposure to these legal proceed-
ings at this time. The Company does not expect these claims to be material.

EVALUATION OF DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PRBGEbURES
AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FIRANCIAL REFORTING »

The President & Chief Executive Officer (“CEO™ and Vice President, Finance & Chief Financial Officer ("CF0”)
of Calfrac are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (“DC&P”) and
internal control over financial reporting (“ICFR") for the Company.

DCAP is designed to ensure that information requiréd to be disclosed in documents filed with securities regula-
tory autharities is recorded, processed, summarized and reported on a timely basis, and is accumulated and
communicated to the Company’s management, including the CEQ and CFO, as appropriate, to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure. ICFR is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
- of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with GAAP.

In accordance with the requirements of Muttilateral Instrument 52-108 “Certification of Disclosure in Issuers’
Annual and Interim Filings,” an evaluation of the design and operating effectiveness of DC&P was carried out
under the supervision of the CEQ and CFO as at the end of the period covered by this report, .

Based on this evaluation, the CEO and CFQ have concluded that, subject to the inherent limitations noted
below, the Company's DC&P is designed and operating effectively to provide reasonable assurance that material
information relating to the Company, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to them by others
within those entities.

The Company's management, including the GEQ and CFO, does not expect that the Gompany's DC&P will prevent
or detect all misstatements or instances of fraud. The inherent limitations in all control systems are such that
they can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that all control issues and misstatements or instances
of fraud, if any, within the Company have been detected. Likewise, ICFR, no matter how well designed, has
inherent limitations. Therefore, ICFR can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement
preparation and may not prevent or detect all misstatements.

There was no change to the Company;s IGFR that occurred during the most recent interim- period that has
materially affected, or is reasonably fikely to materially affect, the Company's ICFR.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES »

Ghanges In Accounting Policies

No changes in accounting principles were adopted in 2006.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Management is assessing new Canadian and U.S. accounting pronouncements that have been issued and are
not yet etfective. These new pronouncements are set out below.

In January 2005, the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants issued Handbook Section 3855 “Financial
Instruments - Recognition and Measurement,” Handbook Section 153C “Comprehensive Income” and Handbook
Section 3865 “Hedges.” In the year ending December 31, 2007, Calfrac will adopt these new standards that
require the presentation of a separate statement of comprehensive income under specific circumstances. The

‘Company does not expect that the adoption of these policies will have a material impact on its consolidated

financial statements.

in July 2008, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) issued FASB Interpretation No. 48,
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — An Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109" (“FIN 48"}. FIN 48
provides guidance for recognizing and measuring uncertain tax positions, as defined in SFAS 109, “Accounting
for Taxes.” FIN 48 prescribes a threshold condition that a tax position be recognized in the financial statements.
Guidance is also provided regarding de-recognition, classification and disclosure of these uncertain tax posi-
tions. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The Company has not yet

determined the impact on its financial position, results of operations or cash flows from FIN 48.

In February 2006, FASB issued SFAS No, 155, “Accounting for-Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments — An
Amendment of FASB Statement Nos. 133 and 140" {*SFAS 155™). SFAS 155 simplifies the accounting for certain
hybrid financial instruments under SFAS 133 by permitting fair value remeasurement for financial instruments
containing an embedded derivative that otherwise would require separation of the derivative from the financial
instrument. SFAS 155 is effactive for all financia! instruments acquired, issued or subject to a remeasurement
event occurring in fiscal years beginning after September 15, 2006. The Company does not expect that SFAS
155 will have a material impact on its financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In September 2006, FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS 157"). SFAS 157 defines
fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value under U.S. GAAP and expands disclosures about
fair value measurements. The statement is effective for fair value measures already required or permitted by
other standards for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 and interim
periods within those fiscal years, The Company has not yet determined the impact on its financial position,
results of operations or cash flows from SFAS 157

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

This MD&A is based on the Company’s annual consolidated financial statements that have been prepared in
accordance with Canadian GAAP. Management is required to make assumptions, judgements and estimates

in the application of GAAP. Calfrac’s significant accounting policies are described in note 2 to the annual
consolidated financial statements. The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires that certain
estimates and judgements be made congerning the reported amount of revenues and expenses and the carry-
ing values of assets and liabilities. These estimates are based on historical experience and management’s
judgement. Anticipating future events involves uncertainty, and cqnsequently, the estimates used by manage-
ment in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements may change as future events unfold,
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additional experience i acquired or the environment in which the Company operates changes. The following
accounting policles and practices involve the use of estimates that have a significant impact on the
Company's financial results. .

DEPRECIATION

Depreciation of the Company's property and equipment incorporates estimates of useful lives and residual
values. These estimates may change as more experience is obtained or as gensral market conditions change,
thereby impacting the operation of the Company’s property and equipment.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

As described in note 8 to the annual consolidated financial statements, the fair value of stock options are esti-
mated at the grant date using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, which includes underlying assumptions
related to the risk-free interest rate, average expected optmn life, estimated volatility of the Company's shares
and anticipated dividends.

INCOME TAXES

As described in notes 9 and 10 to the annual consolidated financial statements, the amount of the future tax
asset and deferred tax credit in respect of the income tax pools available to the Company have been based on
tax filings to date. The income tax rates used to ca]culéte the amount of the future asset have been based on
available information on future income tax rates. The income tax authorities have not audited any of these
pools sa far as they relate to the Company. '

RISK FACTORS »

Calfrac's consolidated financial results are affected by hume_rous risks, including those listed below and those
identified in the Company’s most recently filed Annual lnfgrmqtidh Form available at www.sedar.com.

Volatility of Industry Conditions

The demand, pricing and terms for fracturing, coiled tubinb. cenienting and other we!l stimulation services
largely depend on the level of exploration and development actwnty for North American and Russian natural gas
and, to a lesser extent, oil. Industry condl‘uons are |nﬂuenced by numerous factors over which the Company has
no control, including the level of il and natural gas pnces expectations about future oil and natural gas prices,
the cost of exploring for, producing and delivering oil and natural gas, the decline rates for current production,
the discovery rates of new oil and natural gas reserves, available pipeline and other oil and natural gas trans-
portation capacity, weather conditions, political, military, regulatory and economic conditions, and the ability of
oil and natural gas companies (D raise equity capital or debt financing. A material decline in global il and natural
gas prices or North American and Russian activity levels as a result of any of the above factors could have a
material adverse effect on the Company's business, financial condiiion, results of operations and cash flows.

Seascnality’ . .

Calfrac’s financial resutts are directly affected by the seasonal nature of the Canadian oil and natura! gas
industry. The first quarter incorporates the winter drilling season when most of the activity takes place. During
the second quarter, soft ground conditions typically curtail oilfield activity in all of the Company's Canadian
operaling areas such that many rigs are unable to move about due to road bans. This period, commonly
referred to as “spring breakup,” occurs earlier in the year in southeastern Alberta than it does in northern
Alberta and northeastern British Columbia. Consequently, this is the Company's weakest three-month revenue
period. Additionally, if an unseasonably warm winter prevents sufficient freezing, Galfrac may not be able to
access wellsites, and as a result, the Company’s operating results and financial condition may be adversely
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affected. The demand for fracturing and other welt stimulation services may atso be affected by severe winter
weather in North America and Russia. In addition, during excessively rainy periods in any of the Company's
operating areas, equipment moves may be delayed, thereby adversely affecting revenues. The volatility in the
weather and temperature can therefore create unpredictabiliiy in activity and utilization rates, which can have
a material adverse effect on Calfrac’s business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Sources, Pricing and Availability of Baw Materlals and Component Parts

The Company sources its raw materials, such as proppant, chemicals, nitrogen, carbon dioxide, diesel fuel,
and component parts, such as coiled tubing, from a variety of suppliers in North America and Russia. Should
Calfrac’s current suppliers be unable to provide the necessary raw materials and component parts at a price
acceptable to the Company, or otherwise fail to deliver products in the quantities required, any resulting delays
in the provision of services could have a material adverse effect on Calfrac’s business, financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows.

Operational Risks

Calfrac’s operations are subject o hazards inherent in the oil and gas industry such as equipment defects, mal-
function 2nd failures, and natural disasters that result in fires, vehicle accidents, explosions and uncontroliable
flows of natural gas or well fluids that can cause personal injury, loss of life, suspension of operations, damage
to formations, damage to facilities, business interruption and damage to or destruction of property, equipment
and the environment. These hazards could expose the Company to substantial liability for personal injury,
wrongful death, property damage, loss of oil and gas production, pollution and other environmental damages.
The Company continuously monitors its activities for quality contro! and safety, and although Calfrac maintains
insurance coverage that it believes to be adequate and customary in the industry, such insurance may not be
adequate to cover potential liabilities and may not be available in the future at rates that the Company considers
reasonable and commercially justifiable.

Liabilities From Prior Operations

The Company transferred the Canadian oil and natural gas assets, mining leases, mining environmental services
and related assets and liabilities of Denison to two new public companies that provided indemnities to Calfrac
for all claims or losses relating to Denison’s prior business, except for matters related to specific liabilities
retained by the Company. Despite these indemnities, it is possible that Calfrac may be found responsible for
claims or losses relating to the assets and liabilities transferred by Denison and that the claims or losses may
not be within the scope of the indemnities or the indemnitying party may lack sufficient financial resources to
satisfy its obligations pursuant to the indemnities. Because of the nature of Denison’s former operations, these
claims or losses could include substantial environmental claims. The Company cannot predict the outcome or
uitimate impact of any legal or regulatory proceedings that may relate to Denison’s prior ownership or operation
\ of these assets.

Greek Legal Proceedings

The Company is invalved in several legal procsedings with former employees of Denison Mines Inc. relating to
the cessation of its oil and natural gas operations in Greece during 1998 and 1989, The Company inlends to
defend itsef agalnst the claims of the employees, however the direction and financial consequences of decisions
in these proceedings cannot be determined at this time.
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Competition

Company participates in a highly competitive industry. The principal competitive factors in the markets in which
Calfrac operates include: product and service quality and availability, technical knowledge and experience,
reputation for safety, and quality. The Company competes with regional, national and muiti-national companies
that have greater financial ang other resources than Calfrac. These companies offer a wide range of well stim-
ulation services in all geographic regions in which Calfrac operates. As a result of competition, the Company
may suffer from a significant reduction in revenue or be unable to pursue additional business opportunities. '

Foreign Exchange .

The Company incurs a significant amount of its expenses in U.S. dollars, and as a result, these expenditures
are directly affected by the Canadian/U.5. dollar exchange rate, which fluctuates over time, Russian revenue
is earned in U.S, dollars, but is paid in Russian rubles converted to U.S. dollars at the official conversion rate
in Russia on the day prior to payment. Conversion rates of the Russian ruble to or from U.S. doHars will also
affect the Company's net income. This exposure is mitigated by the Company‘s operations in the United
States and Russia.

Mitigation of Risks Factors

The Company expects that its strong financial position, experienced management team with significant

investments at risk, innovative equipment and services as well as its long-term contractual relationships with

certain customers will enhance its ability to weather the downturns in industry drilling activity and unforeseen
_ adverse events.
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Quarterly Cash Flow s mizens)

Quarters Ended Mar. 31 Jun, 30 Sep. 30 Dec. 31 Total

(000s, except per share and unit data) ] ® ] )] &
(nauditedy
m -
Revenue 126,010 66,973 115,112 118,322 426,418
Gross margin ™ 49,927 14,446 36,500 34,488 135,362
Net incame 34,556 1,569 19,418 16,907 72,450
Per share — baslc 0.95 0.04 0.54 0.47 2.00
- dilyted 0.94 0.04 ) 0.53 0.46 1.98
Gash flow from gperations & ' 41,656 7,208 21,560 25,507 101,932
Per share - basic 1.15 - 0.20 016 . 0.70 2.81
— diluted 1.13 0.20 0.76 0.70 2.79
EBITDA @ 42,736 8,761 29,614 28,421 109,533
Per share - basic 1.18 0.24 0.82 0.78 3.02
- diluted .. 1187 0.24 0.81 0.78 3.00
Capital expenditures 50,631 36,501 23,931 44,415 155.4]’8
Working capital 37.0M 28,741 31,158 31,225 31,225
Shareholders’ equity 21,084 267,559 287,616 303,510 303,510
Fracturing spreads ) ' .
Conventional fracturing 18 19 19 21 21
Coalbed methane 4 4 4 4 4
Total 22 23 . 23 25 25
Coiled tubing units 12 14 14 14 . 14
Gementing units ¢ 9 1] 1" 13 13
1. (‘tmmninhnalheoasrmmeImmmmwemmmmmmaﬁm&mmhhamamtmumtmwmwmm
g prescried under GAAP, and gty may nol ba Hmitr trsed by ather companies.

2. Cash flow is defind a9 “funds provided by opertions,” es reflected in the consotidated statement of cash figws. Cash fiow and cash llow par share are measures that pro-
vm sharehoiders and potaniial investors with sdditonal informabon regarding tha Company's liquidity and its abifity 1o generats funds to france ils operations.
g utilizes these Io assess tha Company's ability 1o finance oparating activities and capital expenditwies. Cash flow and cash flow per share ars not
measures that hava eny standardized meaning prescribed undar GAAR and accordingly, may not ba comparable to simiar mezswres used by other companies.
3. EBITDA & defined as incoma before interest, taxes, depreclation and emoritzation. EBITDA is presented becauss it is frequently used by securities analysts and others for
evaluating companies and thelr ability to service debL EMDAHamemu that does nol have any standardized meaning prescrited under GAAP. and accordingty, may not
be e 1o simitar used by other .
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. Quarters Ended Ma. 31 Jun. 30 Sep. 30 Dec. N Total
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{000s, extcept per share and wiit data) . o . ® ] o] )
{unavdited)
2005
Revenue ' 80,694 44619 77,377 111,634 314,325
Gross margin m 32,437 - 7,630 25,694 43,336 109,098
Net income {loss) 21,670 {1,876) 12,947 27,372 © 80,113
Per share - basic 0.60 {0.05) 0.36 0.75 1.66
- diluted - 059 {0.05) 0.35 0.75 1.64
Cash flow from operations 2 26,015 2,280 18,503 33,794 80,592
Per share — basic 0.72 0.06 0.51 0.93 2.23
. - diluted 0.1 0.06 0.51 0.92 2.20
EBITDA & 25,339 1,907 18,234 34,13 79.611
Per share - basic .70 0.05 0.50 0.94 2.20
- diluted 0.69 0.05 0.50 0.93 218
Capital expenditures 22,108 25,653 29,241 20,612 97,614
Warking capital 49,103 22,301 12,962 39,396 39,396
Sharehplders' equity ‘ 197,091 192,508 207,679 234,021 234,021
Fracturing spreads ) '
Cenventional fracturing 13 13 13 17 17
Coalbed mathane 3 4 4 4 4
Total 16 17 ]7 21 21
Cotled tubing units @ 1 1 1 " 11
Cementing units 5 8 B 9 ]
1. Gross margin is defined as revenus Jes3 ok and amortization. &mmghhnmemuﬂulmmtmmmauedmm
ing prescribed under GAAP, s sccordingly, may not be comparable msimbarmmumcbnmm
zcmlhwhoﬂheds kmdspmiueﬂby " a3 refl Inthe L of cash fows. Cash flow and cash flow per share are measures that pro-
and potontial & with adcitional information regarding the Company's likuidity and its ebility to gensrats fundy to linance ifs operations.
Manag utllzes these to essess the Company's ability W finance operating activities and capital expenditures. Cash flow and cash fiow per share &re not

measures that have any standardized meaning prescribed under GAAF, and accordingly, may not ba comparable Io similar measures usad by other companies.

3, EBITDA i definad a3 coma bekore interest, taxes, depreciabion and emortization. EEITDA i presented becauss it ks frequently used by sscueilies analysts and others for
evaluating companiea and their ability 1o servica debt. EBITDA i3 a measure that does not have y standardized meaning prescribed under GAAF, end accordingty, may not
be comparabie to similar measures uged by pther companles.

FOURTH QUARTER 2006 PERFORMANCE SUMMARY =
For the three months ended December 31, 2006, the Company:

» increased revenue 6% to $118.3 million compared to $111.6 million in the same period of 2005;

> recorded net income of $16.9 million or $0.47 per share {basic), a decrease of 38% from the $27.4
million or $0.75 per share (basic) recorded in the fourth quarter of 2005;

> realized cash flow from operations before changes in non-cash warking capital of $25.5 million or
$0.70 per share {basic) compared to $33.8 million gr $0.93 per share {basic) in the same three-
month period a year ago; and

>-increased income tax provision 63% to $3.2 million due -tn higher profitability of U.S. operations.

Canadian Operations

Revenue from Canadian operations for the fourth quarter of 2006 decreased 17% to $79.8 million compared to
$96.0 million in the same quarter of 2005. Canadian fracturing revenue for the quarter totaled $68.8 miflion, a
decrease of 25% from the $91.5 millien eamed in the corresponding period of 2005, This decrease was primarily
due to lower CBM and east central Alberta drilling activity compared to a year ago. Buring the fourth quarter of
2008, Calfrac completed 1,244 Canadian fracturing jobs for average revenue of $55,295 per job compared to
2,063 jobs for average revenue of $44,346 per job in the same period of 2005. Improved per job revenues were
brimarily due to a substantial increase in the amount of work completed in the deeper, more technicaliy chal-
lenging basins of northern Alberta and northeastern British Columbia as well as higher book prices.
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For the three months ended December 31, 2006, revenue from Canadian coiled tubing operations increased
195% to $5.2 million compared to $1.8 mitlion for the same period in 2005. During the fourth quarter of 2008,
the Company completed 1,922 jobs for average revenue of $2,694 per job compared to 1,723 jobs for average
revenue of $1,020 per job in 2005, The increase in the average revenue per job was due primarily to the
deployment of two coiled tubing units during the second quarter of 2008 into the deeper, more technically chal-
lenging basins of Western Canada. During the 2005 three-month period, the Company’s Canadian coiled tubing
fleet was focused on shallow gas operations, which traditiona_[ly earn {ower revenue on a per job basis.

Revenue from Calfrac’s cementing operations was $5.9 mitlion, a 112% increase from the $2.8 million
recerded in the fourth quarter of 2005. During the 2006 three-month period, the Company completed 480 jobs
for average revenue of $12,234 per job COmparéd to 289 jobs for average revenue of $9,604 per job in the
comparable period of 2005. The improved financial and operating results were due primarily to an expanded
equipment fleet serving the deeper basin markets of northern Alberta and northeastern British Cotumbia
combined with a more integrated sales and marketihg approach.

United States Operations

During the fourth quarter of 2006, revenue from the Company’s United States operations doubled to $29.0 million

from $14.4 million recorded in the same period of 2005. For the three months ended December 31, 2006,

the Company completed 385 U.S. fracturing jobs for average revenue of $75,427 per job compared to 233 jobs

for average revenue of $61,816 per job in 2005; The increase in total and per job revenues was due primarily

1o stronger activity levels in the Piceance Basin of western Colorade and a larger fleet of equipment operating

in the United States in the fourth quarter of 2006 compared 1o the corresponding three-month peried in 2005,

' The increase in the reported revenue from the Company’s operations in the United States was partially offset
by a stronger Canadian dollar. ’ : '

Russian Oheratinns

The Company's revenue from Russian operations in the fourth quarter of 2006 increased 30% to $9.4 miltion
from $7.3 mitlion in the third quarter of 2006 due primarily to higher fracturing activity feve!s. As Caffrac com-
menced Russian coiled tubing operations late in 2005, the prior year's fourth quarter results were not
significant for analytical purposes. :

GROSS MARGIN >

Fourth quarter consclidated gross margin was $34.5 million in 2006, a 20% decrease from the $43.3 million
recorded in the corresponding period in 2005. As a percentage of revenue, consolidated gross margin was
29% for the three months ended December 31, 2006 compared to 39% a year ago. The decrease in consoli-
dated gross margin was primarily a result of competitive pricing pressures in Canada and higher Russian
revenues that have lower gross margins. This reduction was somewhat offset by improved financial results
in the United States. _ - ,

EXPENSES »

Operating Expenses

During the fourth quarter of 2006, operating costs increased 23% to $83.8 million from $68.3 million in the

corresponding three-month period of 2005 due primarily to a larger fleet of equipment, increased levels of

activity in the United States and Russia, and higher district expenses as a result of a larger scale of operations .
in the Company's three geographic markets. In 2006, Calfrac opened a new district office in Khanty-Mansiysk,

Russla and expanded its Grande Prairie and Red Deer, Alberta bases to better serve the Company’s growth into

the deeper and more technical basins of northern Alberta and northeaster British Columbia,
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SGRA Expenses

SG3A expenses were $7.9 million for the quarter ended December 31, 2006 compared to $9.1 million in 2005.
As a percentage of revenue, SGEA expenses for the fourth quarter of 2006 declined to 7% compared to 8%

in the corresponding period a year ago. The decrease in SG&A expenses d.uring the fourth quarter of 2006 was
primarily related to a reduction in bonus expenses due to lower Company profitability partially offset by higher
SG&A costs related to the growing United States and Russian operations and an increase in stock-based
compensation expenses. In the fourth quarter of 20086, stock-based compensation expenses were $0.9 million
compared to $0.3 million in the same period of 2005,

Interest, Depreciation and Gther Expense's o

The Company recorded net interest expense of $702,000 for the duarter ended December 31, 2006 compared
to $67,000 in the comparable period of 2005. During 2006, higher long-term debt levels were required to
partially finance Calfrac’s capital expenditures, which resulted in increased interest costs.

Depreciation expense in the fourth quarter of 2006 grew 61% to §7.6 million from $4.7 million in the corre-
sponding quarter of 2005, The increase in depreciation expense is directly related to the Company's larger
fieet of equipment operating in North America and Russia and the full impact of 2005 capital expenditures on
depreciation expense. ;

INCOME TAX >

The Company recorded income tax expense of $3.2 million for the quarter ended December 31, 2006 compared
to $2.0 million in the same period of 2005. Current tax expense for the quarter was $2.9 million compared to
$0.8 million in 2005, which was largely attributed to profitability of the Company’s U.S. operations. Calfrac
recorded a future income tax expense of $0.3 million for the threé months ended December 31, 2008 compared
to $1.1 million recarded in the fourth quarter of‘2005. The future income tax provision for the fourth quarters
of 2006 and 2005 was primarily related to the drawdown of the Company’s tax pools as a result of profitability
in the quarter as well as the timing of deductibility of certain expenses for tax purposes.

HET INCOME ~

During the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company’s net income totaled $16.9 million or $0.47 per share (basic},
a 38% decrease from the $27.4 million or $0.75 per share (basic) recorded in the same quarter a year ago.
This decrease was primarily related to lower prbﬁtability in Canadian operations dye to competitive pricing
pressures and lower CBM activity levels. '

CASH FLOW =

Cash flow from operations before changes in non-cash working capital for the three months ended December
31, 2006 decreased 25% to $25.5 million or $0.70 per share (basic) compared to $33.8 million or $0.93 per
share (basic} in 2005.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES ~

During the 2006 three-month period, the Company incurred capital expenditures of $44.4 million compared

10 $20.6 million in the same period of 2005. The majority of these costs related to the completion of the
Company's 2006 capital program, which included the deployment of two fracturing spreads and two cementing
units during the quarter, as well as the construction of two conventional fracturing spreads, two coiled tubing
units and four cementing units that are expected to be deployed in the first quarter of 2007.

CALFAAL WELL SERVICES LTE. » 2006 ANNUAL REPORT » P 35

82-34909




1
82-34909

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

QUTLOOK >

Calfrac believes that the long-term fundamentals for natural gas prices are strong, but concerns surrounding
short-term natural gas pricing may negatively impact 2007 drilling activity levels in Western Canada, specifically
in the CBM market. The Canadian drilling forecast for 2007 from the Petroleum Services Association of
Canada estimates that 21,500 wells will be drilled during the year. Although this is a reduction from the
record drilling levels experienced in the Jast several years, it still represents histerically strong activity levels.

The Company is focused on the growing pressure pumping markets of the deeper, more technical areas of the
Westem Canadian Sedimentary Basin. Despite the weakness in near-term natural gas prices, activity levels in
the deeper regions of northern Alberta and northeastern British Columbia were strong throughout 2006 and are
expected to remain steady in 2007. New coiled tubing and cementing equipment related to the Company's
2006 capital program was deployed in the fourth quarter and additional units are expected to become opera-
tional by the end of the first quarter of 2007 to service these deeper regions. Calfrac anticipates that the low
levels of activity experienced in the Canadian CBM market during the past year will continue to be mitigated by
the Company’s contracts related to two fracturing spreads servicing these operations. Calfrac afso expects that
the utilization of its shallow gas fracturing spreads will be strong for at lgast the first quarter of 2007 as a
result of its contractual relationship with a méjor customer.

The strong performance of Calfrac's United States fracturing operations was a major driver of the Company's
2006 financial resuits. Unlike the Canadian market, drilling activity levels in the U.S. Rocky Mountain region
have remained robust, primarily in the Piceance Basin of western Colorado. Fracturing activity in eastern
Colorado and the Denver Julesberg Basin gained momenturn throughout the year with the number of jobs
increasing during the fourth quarter of 2006. Calfrac’s newest operating base located in Beebe, Arkansas will
open by the end of the first quarter of 2007, thereby further diversifying the Company’s fracturing operations
within the United States market. One multi-pumper fracturing spread will serve the Fayetteville and Arkoma
Basins in Arkan§as as well as eastern Okiahoma under the terms of a long-term contract with a leading U.5. oil
and gas company. From this operating base, theré is potential for additional growth as more equipment is
deployed into the area to better serve this new market. In 2007, Calfrac anticipates that this important
geographic segment will continue to generate strong financial and operating results,

During the last half of 2006, the Company operated one fracturing spread and three colled tubing units in

Russia. In early 2007, an additional fracturing spread was deployed to a new operating base in Purpe, Western

Siberia. Two additional coiled tubing units are expected to be opergﬁonal by the end of the first quarter of 2007,

Building on the momentum ¢of Russia’s improvedwopeiating and financiat performance during the fourth quarter of

2006, Calfrac believes that these operations have attained sufficient critical mass and are well positioned tor . '
future growth and profitability. The expanded equipment fieet, combined with the Company's relationships with

two of Russia’s largest il and gas companies, is expected to drive improved financial and operating perform-

ance from this geographic segment throughout the upgoming year and provide a more significant contribution

to Catfrac’s consolidated financial results. ’ ‘

The Company's financial position was strengthened further as & result of the closing of its recent US$135.0
million debt financing. The offering provides the Company with additional financial flexibility to grow organically,
and alternatively, may also allow the Company to pursue strategic acquisition opportunities that may arise in

. the future.

Calfrac will continue to maximize equipment utitization and profitability by redeploying equipment to higher
activity regions within its global operating reach. )
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ADVISORIES »

Forward-Looking Statements

In order to provide Calfrac shareholders and potential investors with information regarding the Company and its
subsidiaries, including management’s assessment of Calfrac’s future plans and operations, certain statements
made in this Annual Report may contain words such',as “anticipate,” “can,” “may,” “expect,” “believe,” “intend,”
“forecast,” or similar words suggesting future outcomes or statements regarding an outlook, which constitute
forward-looking statements or information (“forward-looking statements”). These statements may include, but
are not limited to, future capital expenditures, future financial resources, future oil and gas well activity, out-
come of specific events and trends in the il and gas industry. Readers are cautioned that the foregoing list of

_ significant factors is not exhaustive. These statements are dérived from certain assumptions and analysis made

. by the Company based on its experience and interpretation of historical trends, current conditions, expected
future developments and other factors that it believes are appropriate in the circumstances. These statements
are subject to a number of known and unknown risks and uncertainties, which are discussed previously in this
report, that could cause actual results to ditfer materially from the Company’s expectations. Although Calfrac
believes that the expectations presented by these forward-looking statements are reasonable, there can be no
assurances that actual results or developments anticipated by the Company will be realized or such expecta-
tions will prove to be correct, Furthermore, the forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report are
made as at the date of this report and Calfrac assumes no obligation to update publicly, except as required by
applicable securities Iaws any such forward-looking information whether as a result of new information, future
events or otherwise. The forward-looking staternents cnntamed in this Annual Report are expressly qualified
under this cautionary statement. :

Non-GAAP Measures

Certain measures in this Annual Report do not have any standardized meaning as prescribed under Canadian
GAAP. such as gross margin, cash flow from operations, cash flow, cash flow per share (basic}, cash flow per
share (diluted), EBITDA, EBITDA per share (basic) and EBITDA per share {diluted}, and therefore, are considered
non-GAAP measures. These measures may not be com'parable to similar measures presented by other entities.
These measures have been described and presented in this Annual Report in order to provide shareholders and
potential investors with additional information_regarding the Company's liquidity and its ability to generate
funds to finance its operations. Management's use of these measures has been disclosed further in this Annual
Repart as these measures are discussed and presented.

1

ADDITIGNAL INFORMATION »

Further information regarding Calfrac Well Sefvices i1d. can be accessed on the Company's website at
www.calfrac.com or under the Company’s public filings found at www.sedar.com.

,).@@w? | ng@

DOUGLAS R. RAMSAY .. TOM J. MEDVEDIC
President & . " Vice President, Finance &
Chief Executive Offlcer Chief Financlal Officer
February 26, 2007

Calgary, Alberta

CALFRAC WELL SENVICES LTDL - 2008 ANNUAL REPORT 1 PG 37




¢ ;u'.'-‘t_s'if_ T g iy

LAk RN,

PR UE A W b:

PN LT >
it )

')

514
A

%

AL
£ :.ff,,”ﬁ
’y

B & ‘}'
¥ M : &
‘» o . % o X
> d . 4 £
3 y :
b " g 3 ; ...fv.‘l
A ) S5 YT
oo &} : VT W e
N ;i 3 Pt b3 0 1)
2 ) ; 'j‘ 2o n i e b
S e i by N b o i 2y
i

Al
84909

I




i
]
|
+
.
3
v
N
3

N Y :
A CIRE] SIrEeER
T Growth, -
’ . . . l' ”:. ‘,.,‘- 3’* )
1. N . _‘),i.
N ; o - v~;‘!‘ . ‘g
: B o g ey We willbuild Jeading positions
s W, EEE In our ndustry’s fastest growing
W "1 servicelines and gedgrapl

ic markets. .

-34909

!
%
]



- LSS
s =3 o
-ﬂxw._ﬂ_..« e
B

S WJlf.lﬂ..” =
it i e JE
T by
——

L eppmm ety

o), .=




82-34909

D e e i e L i+ e

_..Managemem's Fteport

"The accompanymg consolrdated ﬁnancral statements and aII mformatron in 1 the Annual Report are the responsr_

= bility of; managernent -The consolldated ted fi nancral statements have been prepared by rnanagernent in accordance
~w1th the accounttng pohcres set_out In_the accompanymg notes _to the consolldated ﬁnancnal statements When = ,;_—- H

....<

Management mamtams appropnate systems of |nternal contro__ Policies and procedures are desrgned to gwe o ) . .

reasonable assurance that transacttons are property authonzed assets are; safeguarded and f nancial records

-PncewaterhouseCoopers iR, an dependent firm, of Chartered Accountants Was, engage a5 approved by.a) a voteh ) _:. ;

hotders at the Company S most recent annual meettng, to aud|t the consolldated flnanctal statements i
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-We. have audlted the consolldated balance sheets o, Catfrac Well. Servu:es Ltd as at December 31 2006 and: _; T i—, - s

T LT T T e A —— e — -

??f-:_'-—* ~2005 and the consolrdated statements of operatmns rand retalned eamlngs and of. cash flows-for the y years tnen TS

_reqmre that we: plan and nerform- an audrt to obtaln reasonable assnrance whether the ﬁnancral statements aie’

s:gmﬁcant estlmates made-b management as weII as evaluating the overall f nanmal statement presentatlon ‘-

-tn -OUE: oplnion these consolrdeted f nancralistatements present tairly,-mrall materiat respects the ﬁnancral

—w e e oo =
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*NotestoConso i'dat&:l Financial: Statements e e -

ompany orlglnany Incorporated on June 28 1999} and Denlson Energy Inc on March 24 2004 under me Business Corporattons

Act (Alberta) The Company provrdes specrallzed or!field sennces Includrng fracb.rring, cotlod tubing cemenlrng and other well

areful judgement The finanoral statemems have' in managemems optnton been properly prepared within reasoname fimits of ==
it

reparanon of ftnanc|al Statements: necessanly involves, me use of estlmates and approximauons that havé been rnade usmg -

'“"'"-“'""(n) Foroign Curroncy Translatron.-

4 o eean

S i SThe financlal accounts of the Dompany’s U, S and Russian subsicllades are lranslated Into | Canadian currency usmg r.he tem- o
s poral! method of:translation:Under:the:temporal method,”m onetary Hems’are-! translated at Ine rata” of exchange_at: me o

= - -ba!ance sheet ‘date; while'r non.monetary ilemg are tanslated atthe hrstoncal fate appllcable on the date of the transactmn

- gwmg Tise to.the_non- monelary balance. Revenies and’ £Xpenses-are. are. translated at the t thie monthty aver g

—

- Galns or.1655e5+in. ransiation are reoognized In Income as mey occur

o

st
S i

—-—-Tno Company equrty accounts’ for, Its’ Investiient in shares of a’company. over Whigh'it has srgnrf iEant IRflizence: Under the

o -equuy memod oi acooun‘ung mvestmenls are camed at meir orrglnal cost pius the’ companys oumulatrve share of éarn-"_-
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(k) Varfabls interest Entities == =o=ac z
- Canadlan Acg:oummg Guldellne 15 "Consohdatlon of Varlable Interest Entities™ ( VIEs } reqmres consol:datlon of aVIE wher

enllty absorbs 2 majorlty of aVlE’s Iusses receives a ma]onty of ms returns or ] both Under these rules it was determmed

il Computers and computer softwa{re

LEasehold improvements
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ét December 31 2006 (mcludmg_sszs ‘of uncleared cheques) 'The faclllty is sec ‘secured byE General _Secunty Agreemem mrer aII ks
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Debenture bear g mterest at 8 95% requrnng paymem of accrued lmerest

’o--.- i

80,000 | 10615
- ~ (2615} - :
60000 8000 (.7 TG

%Tha term and commencerr;e:nt of prrnclpal repaymems on the $125,000 extendlble revoivrng capltal fac:hty may be extended by -

oNg year. on.each anniversary Uats at thie request of the Company. and ‘agteptance by the lenders. At December.31,:2006; the

ZCompany had $65,000 ot undrawn credit avallable under this facility, On February 13, 2007, the Company closed 2 US$135,000°
debt’ eflering and the extendrble revotvinq capltal facrlrty was fully repard. In’ con]unctron wnh thrs offerlng. the revolvmg term -

Scheduled prrncrpa! repayments requrred in each year 10 rétifa 1ong term debt as at December 31 2005 are as follows (assum—

£I=ming the. facility. IS ot extznded on the next anniversary date being December 5, 2007): -

_: -Issued U eXBIGise of slock nptions— ST oo T e ] : :
== zDecember.31;2005_ . .- . LR - o - 36,333,276 138,767 -
- ) - 85132 - 1,074, 5 i

_-_--lssuedupon exercrseofstockopbons ."_ — .
- oo ~ - c L N 1398403 . T -

2005 me-shareholdars of the Company voted In favour ur a- two lor-one subdwislon of the" [:ornpanys-,
common shares that took effect on February.ﬁ -2005. Cbmparalive per share information has been restated to reflecl the twn-

—wand as 547,182 ¢ umneu (200’5 35 16, 499 baslc 3 an‘a 36,600,855 drluted) The dlrference between__ basic_and d dlluteu shares is - : -
liutive etfect of. stock op:lons lssued by me cornpany and tha shares held in trust (see note: 7} el I
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= 7 * SHARES | HF.LD IN musr

R The Company has establtshed a Trust to purchase and hdld Company stock on behalf of certa:n employees whc have elected tp

recelve a porllun df thelr annual bonus entltlement’ in the formof. company shares. During: 2006, 113,508 shares were pur-.
chased onthe'open. market at a'cost of $3,869 (2005 =43, 637 shares at a cost of $1 ,385). These shares vest with empioyees
in"March’of the year following their purchase. at. whlch time they are distributed to those-individuals: partlclpatlng in the.plan.

Z_These:shares are:r not’ eenslder_ed ulnstanding for_ purposes ef cafculating basic: eamings: per share. but are induded in'the

. 818,578 1839 | - .7 840200~ - . BT L
Granted Boring th year 776,550 2589 ST LeTmgT '
N - Exercised for. cammon shares. - {55,132) 15.73 |- (118722) . 1573 o
: ~Forfeited =2 ,::;_.“. {34,200) T Cus000y LT rerh -
"Balancc Ducember 3 e e 1505796 22,15 inoo - BIB 578 . .~ 13:39

:The _number ol’ uptions putstandlng at January 1 2005 has been adjusted to reflect me two for one common share spllt on -
. . _February 17, 2005, -

— Al stock cptjene vest equally over mree years and exptre three and one hah‘ years from the date cf grant The estlmaled fair
< vaiue of opllons granted is determlned by using the Black-Schales 0 uptlen Pricing modsl with the followlng assumptions: risk-
- free Interest ‘rate of 4%,-average expected life-of-2.83:years,. expected volatility of- 34% to 36% and expected dividends of
~$0.10 per annum: This-amount js.charged to compensation expense over “the vestlng ‘period. When stack dptions-are exer-

] .clsed Tthe prcceeds logether wllh lhe amou'nt df compensatlen expense prev:cusly recorded in conmbuted surplus is added

Cernmencrng in 2004 the nmpany uegan grantlng deferred stock umts 1o its eutsrde drrectors These unlts vest one year

om the date of grant and are settled In either cash (equal o tne ‘market value of the underlying shares at tne time of exer-—=

lse) of-In Company shares purchased on th' open markeL -The. e fair value of. the'deferred stock Lnits is recognized equally
over.the one-year vestlng period, based on the cirent market pnce of lhe Gnmpany y's shafes Dunng 2006 5328 ol com-.

nsatlon expense was recognlzed fur detened stuck unlts (200

Commenc:ng in 2004 the Cernpany began grantmg performance stock-units vto_the_Cpmpanys st semur uftrcers wne -

are npt included in the stuck nptton plan The amcunt of the grant_s eemed is Ilnked to Eurporate performance and vest dne

—iear t‘rorn the date pf granl. As wlth tne deterred stdcl_( untts pedormance steck umts are settled In elther cash or Cempany

the Gc anys obllgatlons under the déferred and perfprmance stnck unit plans whlch arise from- ﬂucmatlene in
lhe mar‘xet velue of t the Cornpany s snares underlytng these compensauon prpgrams, are recorded as the share value changes

CoTww = o SRS mi W
3o Capitaldsses . oz ee (4ns)i: . 9,038
T - f-—Canadlan explorallcm expenses - 11,081 ¢ 7,668 -
Losses carrled forward - 5405 i1 '_ -TI8 -
. 2009 . " 2486
2,269 | 2,328 | .
2,069 - 2,831 .
9048 ;- 32029




The prowsmn for nncomes taxes in the statement of operattons and retalned earnmgs vanes trom the am
computed by applylng the expected tax rate ol 32, 1.2% {2005 — 33 62%) to income before i mcome taxes. The pnncipal reasons

PRt Y

or’ dlﬁerences between such expected mcome tax expense. and the’ amount actually recorded are as tollows e T Sqa Tl

322
26,176

Drawdown of deferred ‘credit= =2 (20,811} 3

o . o i - 1.811

-Non deductlble expenses e S
1,0M

1,333

-——-—~—-—recogn|zed in lhe current year“—“ e - : {673)

~0n me amalgamatron of Denlson Energy lnc Den ) i
- crated wlth Denison’s | lncome tax pools was recogmzed In tne accoums Denlson had. tax pools of approxrmately $220,000. for
T federal’income: tax | purposes and $170,000:for prowncral income tax’ purposes “After-tax “affecting these pools at applicable.
- federal and provmmal mcome Tie tax rates; a futlrg i |ncome : tax asset of $70,77.1 was recorded The fair value paid for the tax pools
*"doquired. was esfimated.f6.be $11 QDQ_The drﬂerence between-the futute’ mcome tax asset recognrzed and the fair vatue of
of $59 771

[Ty

Thi Company Ras lease; commitments tor premlses eqmpment vehrcles and storage_facilities ‘under:agreements- requlnn

aggregate mlnrmum payments over- the nexl five-years,-fram: December 37 2006; as; tollow

years thal tota apprux:matnly $1 B 4 m||||on .



“The ¢ Company Is & xposed to nterest rar_e_ca_sl! f_low rlsk on debt subjecr o} floatlng nterest rares The Companys eﬁectlve
interest rate. for lhe year| ended December 31 2006 was 5 75% (December kil 2005 8. 14%] .

- m L
‘-'creoere) SRR
(3.457) .

o sse)yi- T -
T 08100 -
625

2,167.1.
(21,587)
.- 350
© 443

Greeerperebons '-__ 5- - 7: . 'A-=:; J

T Asaresult of the’ acqursmon and amalgamarron with Denrsnn in 2004 the Company assumed certain legal obligations relaung
-’to DemsonsGreek operauons FR . -

r:essaunn of ns url and’ gas uperatrons in mal country Several groups of e_mpluyees have tlled clarms allegrng lhat thelr lerml-

and that compensanon was due te lne employees This declsron was appealed to the Alhens Court of Appeal which allowed the _ . .-
—appeal in 2001:and annulled the above=méntiened decision of the Athens Court of First Instance..The’said group of ernployees - i
hg§ filed &n appeal witti.the Supreme Court of Greece , which i5 ¢ scheduled 1o be heard on May. 29, 2007.== S

T s

Several other srnaller groups of employees have lrled errmlar cases in varrous courts rn Greece Some ol these cases were heard _ .=

) have awarded rl're employees rrnmaterral amounts of additionat compensarron and in one case have referred the marler back to
T-1 adower courl ro be. reheard based on more speclhc grounds = - -

. “Asa resull dl the_above- rnentloned court hearings, a ma|ority of the number of former employees with respecl to these smaller
To.. .- "——.groups of claimants have recelved payment of the immaterial amounts awarded to.them and waived their right of recourse to
T the Supreme ‘Court of Greece The remainder. halre fited an appeal to the Supreme Court of Greece or have advised that they.are .

- warrmg for the outcome’ or me May 29 2007 hearlng of the Supreme Court of Greece before proceedlng further, -

N .The dlrectron and fi nancral consequence ol the potermal decrsron in. lhese acﬂons cannul be determmed al mis ume

whrch it has pa pard on. lhe rmporlalron of. equrpmenl rnlo Russra The- amount in. drspum I8 lhe equwalenl of. $4,500, whlch is
! lncluded in accounts recelvable at December 31, 2006. The Company has successfully defended slmrlar VAT challenges ln the
TTUAl R TR past and belreves the matter will he resulved in rts favour wrlhrn tha coming monlhs - ’
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¥ -_ The Companys actlvhies are conducted ln three geographlc markets Canada me Umted States and Russm Al actwmes are
- -.relatod to fracturlng, oiled tubing, cemontlng and well stlmulanon servlces for-the oil'and gas Industry. o T -

United Intersegment

Eliminationy Conzolicated

[ X7 S
(88243) * 454,190 . .
- '. <45 - 1S6AT8 L. ot

ey Capital expendltures

- . Goodwnll ) ot TR ¥ < I A
T -YearEndedDecomberSI 2005 R LT o ' - "
T 7T TRevemwex. . T 260,068 =t 1212- 0T 33045 T -t 3143257 - o

.- ) - VJ'{,{Q_E-'_-_ :(2.48_5)__ .o 4652-. o L~ . 79,631- . .
EE S IETLTT . 336018 ""'14 061" 7 21,133 7 C T(34,397) - 336,815 |- o
T —'c'ap'tgi{_éxpénﬁm}_aé?-' T AH-, 7 g5586-.= = -10175“' _"- 6021 - '(4,143')--'_, 97,614 - ’
et Tt GO0OWIN . o eeim i o JEmmiame mB003 I amen = s oL lu— o L.6003.0 ) B

(1) Operating tnonme [\oel) L] dofmd =] lmrm less waming exper:m tonctudm deprec:a m and unorttzaoon) md oellng gonoral and udmlntstmbon oxmu
- 12) Assaty op j by e Company’s U.S. ¥ wers acmoomumalmomemem mtnmecammanparml cnmnmr ’fhecwl busaufmeaemah ST

..was!s:tznatnmmorm 2006[335.t495toocomber 31, 2005 sy s AT T L

" GENERALI.Y ACCEPTED ACCOUHTING PRlNCIPLES

I measurement dtﬂerences only and do- not reﬂect any dls
HmToys BT T T T

(a)StockBasodcompensaﬁon. I - : « ,' ST

-Under nder.Canadian GAAP the Company recogmzes compensanon cost lor the I'alr value of stock oouon grants over, the vestrng' ) .
- Fperigd of. mesa grants'as’a charge to compensation expense ‘and 'z credit to contribited surplus The Company also recog-
B ~nizes compensaﬁon co_st. over. their vestmg period, Ior the 1, fair vatue | of deferred stock umts and performance stock umts

Effective January 1 2006 yt_e Eomp_any adopted usmg the modlfied prosp_eotlve transrtronal provisrons the rovlsed .

= standards outlined-under SFAS 123R.*Share-Based Payment.” Previously, the Company followed SFAS 123 *Accounting .~ -~ -
- -for Stock Based: Compensatron which’ determmed stock based compensatlon cost for hoth the stock options and stock

- T *l_lnder SFAS 123R ne Company Is required 0 determine and incorporam 2 fortenure mumpller into its calculaﬂon of stock-
- Ji-. =-2" -based compensation cost lor its stock eptions and stock units.-Under. Canadian GAAP tho Company aCCounts for forfoitures
Lo s T Tas they occur, The Company esilmates, that the Imoact ul any fon‘euture rnuItnptler wou!d no: result in 8 srgmfu:ant dlﬂerence

,.
‘

H LT betweenCanadlanandUS GAAR-- - -

A -In addltion the-fair- valug;of. the:Company' 5 Stock LIS™ would be: estlmated Uising:a- Brack Scholes ‘opticn pricing . model,
P L Aremeasured at‘each réporting ‘dats,- as: opposed ‘10 vakling “the- stock units” based- on:the current market price of the -
E Company ] shares The Company estimatos that| tho Impact of remeasunng stuck unlts outstandlng using mo Black-SohoIes

1Pt 50 » CALFRAC WELL SERYICES LTD. ‘ws » 2008 ANNUAL REPORT




.._Consolidatlonrof Vanahle Interest Enmies Under-the Canadlan_GéAP_tr_artsrtlonal provrsrons, adoptron was.required: for" R

~years'commencing January 1, 2005 whereas under U S. GAAP, adoption . was requlred one year. earlier commencing on.
January 1, 2004 Under Canadran GAAP, the Gompany rdentrf ed and consoildated one VIE lor the years ended December 31

- The uture income tax accountlng standard under Canadlan GMP is similar to 4.8 GAAP SFAS 109, Accounting for Income oo
“Taxes.” Pursuant to, Canadian GAAP, substantrvely enacted tax rates are are, uséd to calculate frture’ income tax; whereas'U.S, — _-

_.GAAP appllee enacted: tax rates There are’ no dlﬂerences for the years ended December 3, 2006 and 2005 relaung - -

e U] Comprehenshre income -. "-_' SRR

§: GAAP requires the presentatron of net lncome and comprehensrve rncome Cornprehensrve income includes net tncome

tus omer comprehenslve incoma ltems as specillcally Identllled by U LS GAAP The Company currently has no tinancial items - — "=

ST S that would be |ncluded as other comprehensrve lncorne ‘and therefore net ingome and comprehenswe |ncome are eourva- ’
. . lent . . . -

T (elStatementsulCaehFIomandOporaﬂona L Lo - oL S

i "= —The differences between Canadiin GAAP and U.S. GAAP have not resulted in any mgnllrcant variances concernm. the con-- -
TIUTIT 7T Tsolivated statements of cash flows 8 réported, except that under. .S, GAAP the. presentation of funds fiom operations‘as'
.a sub total In the operatlng activldes section of the consolidated statements of cash ﬁows would not be permrtted

n addmon under Canadran GAAP hank_overdratts used to manage day to day cash can be ctassitred as r:ash and cash equnr-
~alents. lnder t1.5; GAAP, bank gverdrafts are liabilities that should be considered a form of short-term financing and classified

-as cash ﬂows from financlng actlvltles The etfect of this Is an outliow ot cash from flnanclng actlvmee ol $8 658 tor the year

;fl'lje. low fions- Iha Rave been [Ssied by the:| inancial Accourting Standards: Board-
ASB? ) which are not yet In etfect lor the- years presented hut would comprlse U S GAAP when implemented o

- "Juiy 2008, FASB Issued ‘FASB- Interpretatlon No 43 A FtN 48 ) "Accounting tor Uncertainty in. Income Taxes -an

Interpretatlon of, FASB Statement No.:109.” FIN 48, provides guldance for- recognlzlng and measurrng uncertarn tax positions, -
‘SFAS-109, “Accountlng for. Taxee FIN'48 prescribes a'threshold condition that a tax position must meet for _
ny of the Benefit of the uncertam tax posrtlon to' be recogmzed in:the lrnanclal siatements Goidarice is also prowded
regarding de recognltlon classltlcation and dlsctosure of these uncertaln tax posittons FIN 48 is effectlve lor flscal years

0. “ln February 2006 the FASB Issued SFAS No. 155 “Accountlng for Certain’ Hyhrrd Fnancral Instruments An Amendment of _
- 7 =7 TTZFASB Statement Nos.133and 1407 (*SFAS-1557). SFAS 155 simplifies the' accountlng ¥ of certain hiybrid financial mstruments.
e T .._,under SFAS:.133; by. permrtting fair value: remeasurement tor financlal. lnstruments containing an embedded Uérivative. that_
=ptherwise would: requlre saparation of the derlvatjve l‘rom the' financial:instrument. SFAS-155 is effective for- all financial )
~ Instruments acquired, issued or-subject to'a remeasurement avent occurring in-fiscal years beginning after - September-15, o
. 2006 The: Company does nat expect that SFAS 155 erI have a materral ‘impact on rts financial position, results of opera-

n September 2006, the FA_SB issued SFAS No-157; "Farr\r‘alue Measurements ("SFAS 157‘] SFAS 157 def nes fair value. .
P P establlshes a framework for. rneasuring falr valye under GAAP and expands dlsclosures ‘about fair, value measurements The... .. .
LT -statement Is: eftective lor falr value measures already required or permitted: by other standards for-financial statements® L

R _” Issued for fiscal years’ beginmrtg after November 15 2007 and lnterlm perrods within those fiscal years The Company has ' B

ST - -On February 13 2007 “the: Company completed a private placement of unsecured senior- notes for an: aggregate amount of”
US$135,000. The notes are due in full on February 15, 2015 and bear interest at 7. ?5% payabie | semr-annually A portron ot the

I oo -.proceeds of.t the t oﬁerlng was used 10 repay.the Cempany s exrstmg nperaung and revolvtng term credrt facilities. In eonructron-

U wlt.h thi ofterlng the Company s exlstlng revolvlng term credit far:llrty w reduced from $125, 000 to 865 000 Rl -
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426,418
135,362
72,450 i-
200 i
198
101,932
. 2.81
' & diluted 278
T 109,533
302 i
3.00 i

155,478

1ogn i
454,190
Vorking Capial .. ~_ 3 31,225
 Uoing-term debt= === - 60,000
=Futurg Incoms tax asset (abiliy) = —omrs = 9,048
§hareholders Uity =X =% 303510

36,388
36,286

46.21
18.07
210
39,272

]

: -:..:f__'—._.:i"—-Cunventlanal fracturing :Ef.?f

2= Coalbed methang == <. o ==

1 _mrhtk:pmappmvudbylrwehomnm Fenrm? 2005

3, Cash 11w 5 definsd 55 ~Hins providod by o5 X 150 i e Consoldat o1 cash Rows. Cish Do B A o o shase s eaSuees it -
T - ——wmmwwmmmmmmmw ing e .wmnumwwwmbmmﬁmmm . .- -
’ . ment uilizes thezo measi bmhﬂowmy‘:wihwaﬁw ing activities and capilal itres. Cash flow and cash flow per share ard nol - L.
- ﬂmrﬂmm mmwmmwwmmmmNMhhmmnmbﬂMm - P

<4, EBITDA &8 defined 2% income beforg interesi, txes, depreciabon and amortization. EBFTDA i p beceuss t ks Heguenty used by sscuribes analysts and others for
- mwmwwkmmnwmunEarrminmmuummrmmm;mansummmmamwwmmmmaymt

* be comp 10 slnilar wsed by other e, ] i .
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i
News release via Canada NewsWire, Calgary 403-269-7605

Attention Business/Financial Editors:

< .3
Calfrac Announces Fourth Quarter and Year-End Results - %;a ﬁﬁ
Ll - 4
2 Y o i .
CALGARY, March 1 /CNW/(~ Calfrac Well Services Ltd. ("Calfrac“aﬁT?SXfCwa?
-5 ek s

is pleased to announce its financial and operating results for the three o
months and year ended December 31, 2006. ol
' |

<< , ¥

HIGHLIGHTS

‘Three Months Ended Years Ended

December 31, December 31,
2006 2005 Change 2006 2005 Change
{000s, except (%) (%) (%) (%) (% (%)
per share and
unit data) !
{(unaudited)
Financial
Revenue 118,322 111,634 6 426,418 314,325 36
, Gross margin(1l) 34,488 43,336 (20) 135,362 109,098 24
Net income 16,907 27,372 {38) 72,450 60,113 21
Per share
- basic 0.47 .75 (37) 2.00 1.66 20
- diluted 0.486 0.75 (39) 1.98 1.64 21
Cash flow from
operations (2) 25,507 33,794 (25) 101,932 80,592 26
Pér share
- basic 0.70 0.93 (25) 2.81 2.23 26
‘ - diluted 0.70 0.92 (24) 2.79 2,20 27
"“EBITDA(3) 28,421 34,131 (17) 109,533 79,611 38
Per share
- basic 0.78 0.94 (17) 3.02 2.20 37
- diluted 0.78 0.93 (16) 3.00 2.18 38
Working capital 31,225 39,396 (21) 31,225 39,396 (21)
Shareholders' .
equity 303,510 234,021 30 303,510 234,021 30
A Weighted average
common shares
outstanding
{No.)
Basic 36,270 36,283 - 36,286 . 36,216 -
Diluted : 36,384 36,679 {1} 36,547 36,601 -
(unaudited) (No.) (No.) (%)
Operating Assets
as at December 31
Fracturing
Conventional 21 17 24
Coalbed methane 4 4 -
Total 25 21 19
* Coiled tubing units ' 14 11 27
" Cementing units 13 9 44

(1) Gross margin is defined as revenue less operating expenses excluding
depreciation and amortization. Gross margin is a measure that does
not have any standardized meaning prescribed under GAAP, and
accordingly, may nct be comparable to similar measures used by other
companies.




(2}

(3}

>>

Cash flow is defined as "funds provided by operations," as reflected
in the consolidated statement of cash flows. Cash flow and cash flow
per share are measures that provide shareholders and potential
investors with additional information regarding the Company's
liquidity and its ability to generate funds to finance its
operations. Management utilizes these measures to assess the
Company's ability to finance operating activities and capital

expenditures. Cash flow and cash flow per share are not measures that
have any standardized meaning prescribed under GAAP, and accordingly,

may not be comparable to similar measures used by other companies.

EBITDA is defined as income before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortization. EBITDA is presented because it is frequently used by
securities analysts and others for evaluating companies and their
ability to service debt. EBITDA is a measure that does not have any
standardized meaning prescribed undér GAAP, and accordingly, may not
be comparable to similar measures used by other companies.

PRESIDENT'S MESSAGE

I am pleased to summarize the Company's financial pérformance and
operational highlights for the three months and year ended December 31, 2006
as well as provide an outlock for 2007.

Financial Summary

The Company had the following financial results for the three months

ended December

<<

>>

31, 2006:

increased consclidated revenue 6% to $118.3 million;
recorded net income of $16.9 million or $0.47 per share (basic); and
realized cash flow from operations before changes in non-cash working
capital of $25.5 million or $0.70 per share (basic).

For the year ended December 31, 2006, Calfrac:

grew revenue 36% to $426.4 million from $314.3 millicon in 5005;
improved net income to $72.5 million or $2.00 per share (basic), an

increase of 21% from $60.1 million or $1.66 per share (basic) recorded

in 2005; and

achieved cash flow from operations before changes in non-cash working
capital of $101.9% million or $2.81 per share (basic) compared to
580.6 million or $2.23 per share (basic} in the prior year.

Operational Highlights

Activity in the pressure pumping services industry in Canada lagged
expectations throughout the fourth quarter due to the impact of lower natural
gas prices and CBM land access, licensing and infrastructure issues.
Consequently, the Company reallocated some of its equipment and personnel to
other regions within this market that were active in deep basin projects. By
year-end, Calfrac was operating 15 conventional and 4 CBM fracturing spreads
in the Canadian market. In keeping with the Company's philosophy of securing a
certain level of business with long-term contracts, Calfrac currently has
long-term contracts on four of its Canadian fracturing spreads that will
support a minimum level of activity during 2007.

Calfrac continued to enhance the scope of its cementing operations in
Westéern Canada with a strategic focus on the deeper, more technically
challenging basins of northern Alberta and northeastern British Columbia.

82-34909
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During the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company increased its cementing
equipment fleet from 11 at the beginning of Octocber to 13 at year-end with the
deployment of 2 new twin pumping units to service the region's intermediate
and deep basins. In December, a new cementing base and a staging base for
fracturing and coiled tubing operations opened in Edson, Alberta in order to
ekxtend the Company's operating reach to a growing list of customers in the
region. During the first quarter of 2007, the Company plans to add four
cementing units to its operating fleet.
During the past year, Calfrac progressed its international expansion

strategy by deploying additional equipment to the Rocky Mountain region of the
United States. In order to better service the Company's growing base of
customers in the Grand Junction district, an additional multi-pumper
fracturing spread was deployed in December of 2006 for a total of five
conventional fracturing spreads operating in the U.S. at year-end. In
addition, a long-term take-or-pay contract was signed late in the year with a
major U.S. oil and gas company to provide fracturing services to a new
operating district encompassing Arkansas and eastern Oklahoma. As a result, it
is expected that a multi-pumper fracturing spread will be deployed to the
Company's riew operating base located in Beebe, Arkansas late in the first
guarter of 2007, thereby further strengthening the Company's United States
operations. | . ' i

* Calfrac continued to grow its presence in the Russian well services
market by opening a new operating base in Khanty-Mansiysk, Western Siberia in
May 2006. During the year, the Company deployed its first multi-pumper
fracturing spread and a deep coiled tubing unit to this new operating region.
At year-end, the Company was operating one conventional fracturing spread as
well as three deep coiled tubing units in Russia. In February 2007, the
Company deployed a second fracturing spread to its newest operating base
located in Pourpay, Western Siberia. Twe additional deep coiled tubing units
‘aré expected to be delivered to Russia by the end of the first quarter of
2007. This equipment is operating under three term commitments hegotiated with
two of Russia's largest oil and gas companies. Contrary to Calfrac's North
American operations, its Russian operations are more heavily weighted to the
oil well pressure pumping servicés market. For 2007, it is anticipated that
the larger scale of Russian operations will help drivé continued corporate
growth and, to some extent, mitigate the impact of a possible slowdown in
activity in certain segments of the North American pressure pumping markets.

Outlook

| Calfrac believes that the fundamentals for natural gas prices over the »
long-term are strong, but concerns surrounding short-term natural gas pricing
may negatively impact 2007 drilling activity levels in Western Canada,
specifically in the CBM market. While Canadian drilling activity is expected
to be lower than the record levels experienced in the recent past, it still is
anticipated to be relatively strong from a historical perspective. The Company '
is focused on continuing to grow in the pressure pumping markets of the
deeper, more technical areas of the Westérn Canadian Sedimentary Basin.
Despite the weakness in near-term natural gas prices, activity levels in the
deeper regions of northern Alberta and northeastern British Columbia were '
strong .throughout 2006 and are expected to remain steady in 2007. Cadlfrac ’
anticipates that the low levels of activity experienced in the Canadian CBM
market during the past year will continue to be mitigated by the Company’'s
contracts servicing these operations. Shallow gas activity is expected to
remain strong for at least the first quarter as a result of the Company's
contractual relationship with a major customer.

The strong performance of Calfrac's United States fracturing operations

was a major driver of the Company's 2006 financial results. Unlike the
Canadian market, drilling activity levels in the United States have remained
robust. Calfrac's newest operating base located in Beebe, Arkansas will begin
operations servicing the Fayetteville and Arkoma Basins by the end of the
first quarter of 2007, further diversifying the Company's fracturing
‘operations within the United States market. From this operating base, there is
potential for additional growth as more equipment could be deployed into the
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area to better serve this new market. In 2007, Calfrac anticipateés that the
United States operating segment will continue to generate strong financial and
operating results.

Building on the momentum of Russia's improved cperating and f£inancial
performance during the fourth quarter of 2006, Calfrac believes that these
operations have attained a sufficient critical mass and are well positioned
for future growth. The expanded equipment fleet combined with commitments,
based on awarded bids, with two of Russia's largest oil and gas companies, is
expected to drive improved financial and operating performance from this
geographic segment throughout the upcoming year and provide a more significant
contribution to the Company's consclidated financial results.

The Company's financial position was strengthened further as a result of
the closing of its recent US$135 million debt financing. The offering provides
the Company with additional financial flexibility to grow organically, and
alternatively, miy also allow the Company to pursue strategic acquisition
opportunities that may arise in the future.

Calfrac will continue to maximize equipment utilization and profitability
by redeploying equipment to higher activity regicons within its global
operating reach.

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

Douglas R. Ramsay
President & Chief Executive Officer

February 28, 2007

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

‘This Management's Discussion and Analysis ("MD&A") for Calfrac Well
Services Ltd. ("Calfrac" or the "Company") has been prepared by management as
of February 26, 2007 and is a review of the financial condition and results of
operations of.the Company based on accounting principles generally accepted in
Canada, Its focus is primarily a comparison of the financial performance for
the three months and yeéars ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 and should be read
in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and
accompanying notes for those periods as well as the MD&A for the year ended
December 31, 2005. The annual consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles
("GAAP") .

All financial amounts and measures presented in this MD&A are expressed
in Canadian dellars unless otherwise indicated. The definitions of certain
non-GAAP measures used within this MD&A have been included at the end of this
MD&A .

Fourth Quarter 2006 Performance Summary

<<
, For the three months ended December 31, 2006, the Company:

- increased revenue 6% to $118.3 million compared to $111.6 million in
the same period of 2005;

- recorded net income of $16.9 million or $0.47 per share (basic), a
décrease of 38% from the $27.4 million or $0.75 per share (basic)
recorded in the fourth quarter of 2005;

- realized cash flow from operations before changes in non-cash working
capital of $25.5 million or $0.70 per share (basic) compared to
$33.8 million or $0.93 per share (basic) in the same three-month
period a year ago; and

- increased income tax provision 63% to $3.2 million due to higher
profitability of U.S. operations.

>>
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Canadian Qperations

Revenue from Canadian operations for the fourth quarter of 2006 decreased
17% to $79.8 million compared to $96.0 million in the same quarter of 2005.
Canadian fracturing revenue for the quarter totaled $68.8 million, a decrease
of 25% from the $91.5 million earned in the corresponding period of 2005. This
decrease was primarily due to lower coalbed methane ("CBM") and east central
Alberta drilling activity compared to a year ago. During the fourth quarter of
2006, Calfrac completed 1,244 Canadian fracturing jobs for average revenue of
$55,295 per job compared to 2,063 jobs for average revenue of 544,346 per job
in the same period of 2005. Improved per job revenues were primarily due to a
substantial increase in the amount of work completed in the deeper, more
technically challenging basins of northern Alberta and northeastern British
Columbia as well as higher book prices.

For the three months ended December 31, 2006, revehnue from Canadian
coiled tubing operations increased 195% to $5.2 million compared to
$1.8 million for the same period in 2005. During the fourth quarter of 2006,
the Company completed 1,922 jobs for average revenue of $2,694 per job
compared to 1,723 jobs for average revenue of 51,020 per job in 2005. The
increase in the average revenue per job was due primarily to the deployment of
two coiled tubing units during the second quarter of 2006 into the deeper,
more technically challenging basins of Western Canada. During the 2005
three-month period, the Company's Canadian coiled tubing fleet was focused on
shallow gas operations, which traditionally earn lower revenue on a per job
basis.

. Révenue from Calfrac's cementing operations was $5.9 million, a 112%
increase from the $2.8 million recorded in the fourth quarter of 200S. During
the 2006 three-month period, the Company completed 480 jobs for average
revenue of $12,234 per job compared to 289 jobs for average revenue of $9,604
per job in the comparable period of 2005. The improved financial and operating
‘results were due primarily to an expanded equipment fleet serving the deeper
basin markets &f northern Alberta and northeastern British Columbia combined
with a more integrated sales and marketing approcach.

United States Operations

During the fourth quarter of 2006, revenue from the Company's United
States operations doubled to $29.0 million from 514.4 million recorded in the
same period of 2005. For the three months ended December 31, 2006, the Company
completed 385 U.S. fracturing jobs for average revenue of $75,427 per job
compared to 233 jobs for average revenue of $61,816 per job in 2005. The
increase in total and per job revenues was due primarily to stronger activity
levels in the Piceance Basin of western Colorado and a larger fleet of
equipment operating in the United States in the fourth quarter of 2006
compared to the corresponding three-month period in 2005. The increase in the
reported revenue from the Company's U.S. operations was partially offset by a
stronger Canadian dollar.

Russian Operations

The Company's revenue from Russian operations in the fourth quarter of
2006 increased 30% to $9.4 million from $7.3 million in the third quarter of
2006 due primarily to higher fracturing activity levels. As Calfrac commenced
Russgian ceiled tubing coperations late in 2005, the prior year's fourth quarter
results were not significant for analytical purposes.

Gross Margin

Fourth quarter consclidated gross margin was $34.5 million in 2006, a 20%
decrease from the $43.3 million recorded in the corresponding period in 2005.
As a percentage of revenue, consolidated gross margin was 29% for the three
months ended December 31, 2006 compared to 39% a year ago. The decrease in
consolidated gross margin was primarily a result of competitive pricing
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pressures in Canada and ﬁigher Russian revenues that have lower gross margins.
This reduction was somewhat offset by improved financial results in the United
States.

Expenses
Operating Expenses

During the fourth quarter of 2006, operating costs increased 23% to
$83.8 million from $6B.3 million in the corresponding three-month period of
2005 due primarily to a larger fleet of equipment, increased levels of
activity in the United States and Russia, and higher district expenses as a
result of a larger scale of operaticons in the Company's three geographic
markets. In 2006, Calfrac opened a new district office in Khanty-Mansiysk,
Russia and expanded its Grande Prairie and Red Deer, Alberta bhases to better
serve the Company's growth into the deeper and more technical basins of
northern Alberta and northeastern British Columbia.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative ("SG&A") expenses were $7.9 million
for the quarter ended December 31, 2006 compared to $9.1 million in 2005. As a
percantage of revenue, SG&A expenses for the fourth quarter of 2006 declined
to 7% compared to 8% in the corresponding period a year ago. The decrease in
SGEA expenses during the fourth quarter of 2006 was primarily related to a
reduction in bonus expenses due to lower Company profitability partially
offset by higher SG&A costs related to the growing United States and Russian
operations and an increase in stock-based compensation expenses. In the fourth
quarter of 2006, stock-based compensation expenses were $0.9 million compared
to $0.3 million in the same period of 2005.

Interest, Depreciation and Other Expenses

The Company recorded net interest expense of $702,000 for the quarter
ended December 31, 2006 compared to 567,000 in the comparable period of 2005.
During 2006, higher long-term debt levels were required to partially finance
Calfrac’'s capital expenditures, which resulted in increased interest costs.
Depreciation expense in the fourth quarter of 2006 grew 61% to
$7.6 million from $4.7 million in the corresponding quarter of 2005. The
increase in depreciation expense is directly related to the Company's larger
fleet cof equipment operating in North America and Russia and the full impact
of 2005 capital expenditures on depreciation expense.

Income Tax

The Company recorded income tax expense of $3.2 million for the quarter

' ended Deceémber 31, 2006 compared to $2.0 million in the same period of 2005.

Current tax expense for the quarter was $2.9 million compared to $0.8 million
in 2005, which was largely attributed to profitability of the Company's U.S.
operations. Calfrac recorded a future income tax expense of $0.3 million for
the three months ended December 31, 2006 compared to $1.1 million recorded in
the fourth quarter of 2005. The future income tax provision for the fourth
quarters of 2006 and 2005 was primarily related to the drawdown of the
Company's tax pools as a result of profitability in the quarter as well as the
timing of deductibility of certain expenses for tax purposes,

Net Income

During the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company’'s net income totaled
$16.9 million or $0.47 per share (basic), a 38% decrease from the
$27.4 million or §0.75 per share (basic) recorded in the same quarter a year
ago. This decrease was primarily related to lower profitability in Canadian
operations due to competitive pricing pressures and lower shallow gas and CEBM
activity levels,




' Cash Flow
. cash flow from operations before changes in non-cash working capital for
the three months ended December 31, 2006 decreased 25% to $25.5 million or
$0.70 per share (basic) compared to $33.8 million or $0.93 per share (basic)
in 2005.
Liquidity and Capital Resocurces
During the 2006 three-month period, the Company incurred capital
expenditures of $44.4 million compared to $20.6 million in the same period of
2005. The majority of these costs related te the completion of the Company's
2006, capital program, which included the deployment of two fracturing spreads
and two cementing units during the quarter, as well as the construction of two
conventional fracturing spreads, twoe coiled tubing units and four cementing
units that are expected to be deployed in the first quarter of 2007.
<<
Summary of Quarterly Results
Three Months Ended Mar.31, Jun.30, Sep.30, Dec.31,
' 2005 2005 2005 2005
{000s, except per share {$) ($) ($) ($)
and unit data)
{(unaudited)
Revenue 80,694 44,619 77,377 111,634
Gross margin(l) 32,437 7,630 25,694 43,336
Net income 21,670 {1,876y 12,947 27,372
Per share
- basic - -0.60 (0.05) 0.36 0.75
= diluted 0.59 (0.05) 0.35 0.75
Cash flow from operations(2)} 26,015 2,280 18,503 33,794
Per share : .
- -basic - T 0.72 0.06 0.51 0.93
: - diluted 0.71 0.06 0.51 0.92
EBITDA(3) 25,339 1,907 18,234 34,131
Per share '
- basic 0.70 0.05 - 0.50 0.94
4+ = diluted 0.69 0.05 0.50 0.93
* Capital expenditures 22,108 25,653 29,241 20,612
' Working capital 49,103 22,301 12,962 39,396
: Shareholders' equity 197,091 192,508 207,679 234,021
Fracturing spreads (No.)
Conventional fracturing 13 13 13 . 17
Coalbed methane 3 4 4 4
‘ Total 16 17 17 21
- Coiled tubing units (No.) 11 11 11 11
 Cementing units (No.) 5 6 8 9
Three Months Ended Mar.31, Jun.30, Sep.30, Dec.31
2006 2006 2006 2006
($)

(0008, except per share ($) (%) (%)
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and unit data)

(unaudited)
Revenue . 126,010 66,973 115,112 118,322
Gross margin(l) 49,927 14,446 36,500 34,488
Net income 34,556 1,569 19,418 16,907
Per share '
- basice 0.95 0.04 0.54 0.47
- diluted 0.94 0.04 0.53 0.46
Cash flow from operations(2) 41,656 7,208 27,560 25,507
Per share
- basic 1.15% 0.20 0.76 0.70
. - diluted 1.13 0.20 0.76 0.70
EBITDA(3) 42,736 8,761 29,614 28,421
.Par share
- basic 1.18 0.24 0.82 0.78
- diluted 1.16 0.24 0.81 0.78
Capital expenditures 50,631 36,501 23,931 44,415
Working capital 37,071 28,741 31,158 31,225
Shareholders’ equity 271,084 267,559 287,616 303,510
- Fracturing spreads (No.)
Conventional fracturing 18 19 19 21
Coalbed methane 4 4 4 4
Total 22 23 23 25
Coilaed tubing units (No.) 12 14 14 14
Cementing units (No.) 9 11 11 .13

{1) Gross margin is defined as revenue less operating expenses excluding
depreciation and amortization. Gross margin is a measure that does
not have any standardized meaning prescribed under GAAP, and
accordingly, may not be comparable to similar measures used by other
companies.

{2} Cash flow is defined as "funds provided by cperations," as reflected
in the consolidated statement of cash flows. Cash flow and cash flow
per share are measures that providée shareholders and potential
investors with additional information regarding the Company's
liquidity and its ability to generate funds to finance its
operations. Management utilizes these measures to assess the
Company's ability to finance operating activities and capital
expenditures. Cash flow and cash flow per share are not measures that
have any standardized meaning prescribed under GAAP, and accordingly,
may not be comparable to similar measures used by other companies.

(3) EBITDA is defined as income before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortization. EBITDA is presented because it is frequently used by
securities analysts and others for evaluating companies and their
ability to service debt. EBITDA is a measure that does not have any
standardized meaning prescribed under GAAP, and accordingly, may not
be comparable to similar measures used by other companies.

2006 Year-End Performance Summary
For the year ended December 31, 2006, Calfrac:

increased revenue 36% to $426.4 million compared to $314.3 million in
2005;

grew net income to $72.5 million or $2.00 per share (basic), an
increase of $12.3 million or $0.34 per share (basic) from the previous
year; o
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- achieved record cash flow from operations before changes in non-cash
working capital of $101.9 million or $2.81 per share (basic) compared
to $80.6 million or $2.23 per share (basic) in 2005;

- improved year-over-year EBITDA 38% to $109.5 million versus
$79.6 million a year ago; and

- incurred capital expenditures of $155.5 million to expand its
equipment fleet across all geographic markets and service lines.

>>

Revenue
Canadian Operations

Revenue from Canadian operations for 2006 increased 14% to $318.0 million
‘compared to $280.1 million in 2005 primarily as a result of higher activity in
the deeper, more technical areas of the Western Canadian Sedimentary Basin
offset by lower activity due to the impact of weaker natural gas prices and
CBM regulatory delays. Canadian fracturing revenue totaled $278.2 million, an
increase of $15.4 million or 6% from the prior year. During 2006, the Company
completed 5,238 Canadian fracturing jobs for average revenue of $53,105 per
job compared to 6,063 jobs for $43,334 per job in 2005. The revenue per job
for Canadian fracturing operations was higher in 2006 dve primarily to
significant increases in the number of jobs completed in the deeper basins of
northern Alberta and British Columbia, price book increases for services
effective January 1, 2006 and a reduction in the number of CBM and shallow gas
jobs completed during the year.

The Company's revenue from coiled tubing operations increased
$9.3 million in 2006 to $18.2 million compared to $8.9% million in the previous
year. In 2006, 5,875 jobs were completed for average revenue of $3,102 per job
compared to 5,262 jobs for $1,698 per job in 2005. Year-over-year Canadian
coiled tubing revenue and revenue per job increased primarily as a result of
the deployment of two new coiled tubing units during the second quarter of
2006, which enabled the Company to generate higher levels of activity in the
deeper markets of Western Canada. Additionally, the Company's coiled tubing
operations throughout 2005 were mainly focused on shallow gas operations in
southern Alberta, which histerically produce lower revenue on a per job basis.
In 2006, these operations were negatively impacted by decreased drilling
activity similar to fracturing operationsa. As well, during 2005 two coiled
tubing units were transferred to Russia during the second and third quarters,
which negatively impacted activity and revenue from this service line during
the previocus year.

For the year ended December 31, 2006, revenue from Calfrac's cementing
operations totaled $21.6 million versus $8.4 million in 2005. This 158%
increase was due primarily to a larger edquipment fleet, expanded service area,
" including the deeper basin markets of northern Alberta and northeastern
British Columbia, as well as the integration of cementing éperations into its
sales and marketing team. During 2006, the Company completed 1,974 jobs for
average revehue of $10,959 per job compared to 1,007 jobs for average revenue
of §8,336 per job in 2005.

United States Operations

. During 2006, revenue from Calfrac's United States operations totaled
$86.3 million, up 161% from $33.0 million the previous year. This increase was
primarily a result of a larger fracturing equipment fleet combined with higher
levels of activity. In late 2005, a fracturing spread was deployed to eastern
Colorado and another deep fracturing spread began operating in the Piceance
Basgin of western Colorade during March 2006. For the year ended December 31,
2006, the Company completed 1,284 U.S. fracturing jobs for average revenue of
$67,037 per job compared to 509 jobs for $64,921 per job recorded a year ago.
The year-over-year increase in the reported revenue per job was partially
offset by a stronger Canadian dollar.

Russian Operations

82-34909




82-34909

Revenue from Calfrac's Russian operations increased $20.9 million to
$22.1 million in 2006 from $1.2 million a year ago. The Company initially
deployed two deep coiled tubing units to Russia during the fourth quarter of
2005. A third deep coiled tubing unit was added in May 2006, and in June the
Company began operating its first Russian fracturing spread in thé
Khanty-Mansiysk region of Western Siberia. A second fracturing spread began
operating from Calfrac's newest Russian operating district in Pourpay, Western
Siberia during the first quarter of 2007. Two additional coiled tubing units
are anticipated to be deployed to Russia late in the first quarter of 2007.
These expanded and more diversified operations have reached a critical mass
and are expected to drive further improvement in the Company's future
financial and operating performance in this market.

Gross Margin

' Consolidated gross margin for theé year ended December 31, 2006 increased
24% to $135.4 million from $109.1 million in 2005 primarily as a result of a
larger fleet of equipment in all gecgraphic segments and strong activity
levels in the deeper basin markets of Western Canada and the United States.
Consclidated gross margin as a percentage of revenue decreased to 32% from 35%
in 2005 as a result of the impact of pricing pressures in the Canadian market
during the latter half of 2006 and increased revenue from Russia, which has
lower gross margins. This waa partially offset by improwved financial
performance in the United States.
I
|

Expenses
Operating Expeénses

Calfrac's total 2006 operating expenses increased 42% to $291.1 millien
compared to $205.2 million in 2005 due primarily to a larger fleet of
equipment and a larger global operating presence, as well as higher activity
levels and district overhead expenses. During 2006, district expenses
increased as a result of the Company's growing scale of operations in each of
its three geographic markets; more specifically, the expansion of existing
Canadian districts servicing the deeper basins of Westarn Canada and the
opening of a new district office in Russia. Additionally, Calfrac incurred the
full year cost impact of new operating bases that were opened in the latter
half of 2005 in Strathmore, Alberta; Grand Junction, Colorado; and Noyabrsk,
Rusgsia.

. Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

During 2006, Calfrac's selling, general and administrative ("SG&A")
expenses declined 4% to $28.4 million compared to $29.5 million in the !
previous year primarily relating to lower stock-based compensation expenses,
which decreased to $2.9 million from $4.3 million recorded in 2005. As a
percentage of revenue, SG&A expenses decreased to 7% in 2006 compared to 9% in
2005. During 2005, the Company's higher relative stock price resulted in
higher than normal expenses related to performance and deferred stock units,

Interest, Depreciation and Qther Expenses

Net interest expense increased to $2.3 million during 2006 compared to
$0.1 million of net interest income in 2005 as a result of higher long-term
‘debt incurred primarily to finance the Company's capital expenditures program.
A public offering of Calfrac's shares in August 2004 for net proceeds of
$26.8 million resulted in a stronger cash position and higher interest ravenue
during 2005 as compared to 2006.
In 2006, depreciation expense increased 50% or $8.6 million to
. $25.7 million primarily as a raesult of the deployment of four fracturing
spreads, three coiled tubing units, four cementing units and other related
equipment as well as a full year of depreciation relating to 2005 equipment




- additions.

Income Tax

During 2006, the Company recorded an income tax expense of $9.0 million
compared to $2.5 million a year ago. The current tax expense for 2006 was
$7.5 million, an increase of $6.4 million from 2005. As a result of the
business combination with Denison Energy Inc. ("Denison") in 2004, Calfrac
significantly reduced its current income tax related to Canadian operations
during 2005 and 2006. The increase in the current tax provision for 2006 was
mainly attributed to the increased profitability o¢f the Company's U.S.
operations. For the year ended December 31, 2006, Calfrac recorded a future
income tax expense of $1.5 million, up from $1.4 million in 2005. This
provision is largely related to the drawdown of tax pools as a result of the
‘Company's profitability.

Net Income

For the year ended December 31, 2006, Calfrac’'s net income was
$72.5 million or $2.00 per share (basic) compared to $60.1 million or $1.66
per share (basic) in 2005. This growth in earnings was primarily due to
improved financial performance from the Company's Canadian deep basin and
United States operations, a larger and more diversified fleet of equipment and
less weather related issues than in 2005.

Cash Flow

The Company's cash flow from operations before changes in non-cash
working capital was $101.9 million in 2006, an increase of $21.3 million or

26% from $80.6 million recorded the previous year. This increase was primarily
a result of:

<<
- consolidated revenue growing 36% or $112.1 million to $426.4 million

that was partially offset by:

- operating expenses that increased 42% or $85.8 million to
$291.1 million;
- net interest expense that rose $2.4 million to $2.3 million; and
- a $6.4 million increase in the current income tax provision to
§7.5 million.

In both 2006 and 2005, cash flow was used to partially finance the

Company's capital expenditures.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Yaars Ended Daecember 31, 2006 2005
(000s) , ($) (%)
Cash provided (used in):
Operating activities 110,518 59,005
Financing activities ' 42,756 (128)
Investing activities {136,881) {(97,520)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 16,393 (38,643)
>>

Operating Activities
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' The Company's 2006 cash flow from operations, excluding changes in
non-cash working capital, was $101.9 million compared to $80.6 million in
2005. The increase in cash flow was primarily due to higher revenues in all
geographic markets partially reduced by increased expenses. As at December 31,
2006, Calfrac had positive working capital of $31.2 million compared to
working capital of $39.4 million in 2005. The reduction in working capital was
Primarily due to higher trade payables related to the Company's capital
expenditures.

Financing Activities

In 2006, total long-term debt increased to $60.0 millien from
$10.6 million a year ago. During the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company
finalized the documentation to increase its available credit facilities to
$150 million with a syndicate of Canadian chartered banks. The operating line
of credit was increased from $20 million to $25 million with advances bearing
interest at either the bank's prime rate, U.S. base rate, LIBOR plus 1% or
bankers' acceptances plus 1%. The revolving term loan was increased to
$125 million from $50 million and bears interest at either the bank's prime
rate plus 0.25%, U.5. base rate plus 0.25%, LIBOR plus 1.25% or bankers'
acceptances plus 1.25%, On February 13, 2007, Calfrac completed a private
placemént of unsecured senior notes for an aggregate principal of
US$135 million. These notes are due on February 13, 2015 and bear interest at
7.75%. As a result of this debt offering, the Company's revolving term loan
facility was reduced by $60 million to $65 million. A portion of the proceeds
received from these notes was used to repay the outstanding amounts related to
the existing operating and revolving term credit facilities. As of the date of
this report, the Company has unused credit facilities in the amount of
$90 million and approximately US350 million of cash invested in short-term
investments,

On February 7, 2005, the shareholders of the Company voted in favour of a
two-for-one subdivision of the Company's common sharés. Common shares began
trading on a split basis on the Toronto Stock Exchange on February 17, 2005.
As at the date of this report, the Company has 36,390,408 common shares
cutstanding.

In May 2005, Calfrac's Board of Directors adopted a semi-annual dividend
policy of $0.05 per common share. In accordance with this policy, the Company
most recently paid a common share dividend on Janvary 5, 2007 totaling
$1.8 million teo all shareholders of record on December 19, 2006. The Company's
dividends qualify as "eligibleé dividends" as defined by the Canada Revenue
Agency.

Investing Activities

During 2006, net cash used for investing activities increased to
$136.9 million from $97.5 million in 2005. For the year ended December 31,
2006, capital expenditures totaled $155.5 million, up from $97.6 million a
year ago. This increase in capital expenditures was primarily due to:
. <<
'~ the constructicn and depleoyment of four multi-pumper conventional
fracturing spreads, with one spread allocated to each of the Company's
Canadian and Russian markets and two spreads serving the U.S. market;
- the construction and deployment of two deep coiled tubing units to
Canada and one deep coiled tubing unit to serve the well services
market in Western Siberia;
- the completion of four cementing units to serve the deeper basin
. markets of Western Canada; and
- construction costs related to the remaining two additional fracturing
spreads, two coiled tubing units and four cementing units from the
2006 capital program.
>>
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During December 2006, the Company entered into a long-term contract with
a leading independent U.S. o0il and gas company for fracturing services in
Arkansas and eastern Oklahoma. Under the terms of this contract, Calfrac will
provide a multi-pumper fracturing spread for a two-year term with minimum work
commitments that will be serviced by Calfrac's existing fleet of equipment as
well as equipment being manufactured pursuant to the Company's 2007 capital
program. This contract is consistent with Calfrac's philosophy of having a
prescribed level of its equipment fleet operating under long-term contracts,
In addition, the Company was awarded a one-year contract with a new customer
in Pourpay, Russia for the provision of a multi-pumper fracturing spread. At
the end of the first quarter of 2007, it is anticipated that Calfrac will ke
operating 27 fracturing spreads, 16 coiled tubing units and 17 cementing
units.

On February 11, 2005, the Company acquired the remaining 30% interest in
Ram Cementers Inc. ("Ram"), thereby making Ram a wholly owned subsidiary of
Calfrac. Subsequent tc this acquisition, Ram was wound-up into Calfrac and all
operating, marketing and financial activities became fully integrated within
the Company.

With its current working capital position, available credit facilities
and anticipated cash flow from operations, the Company expects to have
adequate resources to fund its financial obligations for 2007.

D ce
Contractual Obligations and Contingencies

Less than 1 -3 4 -5 After
Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years

{000s) (%) (%) (%) (%) ($) .
Long-term debt 60,000 - 19,200 40,800 -
Operating leases 26,137 6,649 6,688 5,363 7,437
Purchase obligations 18,373 16,925 1,448 - -

- Total contractual

obligations 104,510 23,574 27,336 46,163 7,437

Calfrac has various contractual obligations related to debt, leasing of
vehicles and office space and raw material purchase commitments as outlined
above.

Greek Legal Proceedings

. As described in note 8 to the interim consolidated financial statements,
the Company is involved in a number of legal proceedings in Greece. Management
evaluates the likelihood of potential liabilities being incurred and the
amount of such liabilities after careful examination of available information
and discussions with its legal advisors. As these proceeding have yet to reach
a status where the direction of a court's decision can be determined with any
reliability, management is unable to evaluate its potential exposure to these
legal proceedings at this time. The Company does not expect these claims to be
material.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures and

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The President & Chief Executive Officer ("CEO") and Vice-President,
Finance & Chief Financial Officer ("CFO") of Calfrac are responsible for
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estaﬁlishiﬁg and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures ("DC&P") and
internal control over financial reporting ("ICFR") for the Company.

. In-'accordance with the requirements of Multilateral Instrument 52-109
Certxflcatlon of Disclosure in Issuers' Annual and Interim Filings,
evaluations of the design and operating effectiveness of DC&P and the design
effectiveness of ICFR .were carried out under their supervision as of the end
of the period covered by this report.

Based on these evaluations, the CEQO and CFO have concluded that the
Company's DC&P are designed and coperating effectively to provide reasonable
assurance that material information relating to the Company, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to them by others within those
entities. They have also concluded that the Company's ICFR is deésigned
effectively to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and thé preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with GAAP.

There was no change to the Company's internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the most recent interim period that has
materially-affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
Company's ICFR.

. Outlook

Calfrac believes that the long-term fundamentals for hatural gas prices
are strong; but concerns surrounding short-term natural gas pricing may
naegatively impact 2007 drilling activity levels in Western Canada,
specifically in the CBM market. The Canadian drilling forecast for 2007 from
the Petroleum Services Association of Canada estimates that 21,500 wells will
be drilled during the year. Although this is a reduction from the record
drilling levels experienced in the last several years, it still represents
historically strong activity levels.

The Company is focused on the growing pressure pumping markets of the
deeper, more technical areas of the Western Canadian Sediméntary Basin.
Despite the weakness inh near-term natural gas prices, activity levels in the
deeper regions of northern Alberta and northeastérn British Columbia were
strong throughout 2006 and are expected to remain steady in 2007. New coiled
tubing and cementing equipment related to the Company's 2006 capital program
was deployed in the fourth quarter and additional units are expected to become
operational by the end of the first quarter of 2007 to service these deeper
regions. Calfrac anticipates that the low levels of activity experienced in
the Canadian CBEM market diiring the past year will continue to be mitigated by
the Company's contracts related to two fracturing spreads servicing these
operations. Calfrac also expects that the utilization of its shallow gas
fracturing spreads will be strong for at least the first guarter of 2007 as a
result of its contractual relationship with a major customer.

The strong performance of Calfrac’'s United States fracturing operations
was a major driver of the Company's 2006 financial results. Unlike the
Canadian market, drilling activity levels in the U.S. Rocky Mountain region
have remained robust, primarily in the Piceance Basin of western Colorado.
Fradturing;activity in eastern Colorado and the Denver Julesberg Basin gained
momentum: throughout the year with the number of joébs increasing during the
fourth quarter of 2006. Calfrac's newest operating base located in Beebe,
Arkansas is operational and the Company expects to complete its first
fracturing job in March 2007, thereby fuither diversifying the Company's
fracturing operations within the United States market. One multi-pumper
fracturing spread will sérve the Fayetteville and Arkoma Basins in Arkansas as
well as eastern Oklahoma under the terms of a long-term contract with a
leading U.S. o0il and gas company:. From this operating base, there is potential
for additional growth as more equipment is deplecyed into the area to better
-serve this new market. In 2007, Calfrac anticipates that this important
geographic segment will continue to generate strong financial and operating
results.

During the last half of 2006, the Company operated cne fracturing spread
and tliree coiled tubing units in Russia. In early 2007, an additional
fracturing: spread was deployed to a new operating base in Pourpay, Western
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Siberia., Twd additional coiled tubing units are expected to be operational by
the end of the first quarter of 2007. Building on the momentum of Russia's
improved operating and financial performance during the fourth quarter of
2006, Calfrac believes that these operations have attained sufficient critical
mass and are well positioned for future growth and profitability. The expanded
equipment fleet combined with the Company's relationships with two of Russia's
largest oil and gas companies, is expected to drive improved financial and
operating performance from this geographic segment throughout the upcoming
. year and provide a more significant contribution to the Company's consolidated
financial results. .

The Company's financial position was strengthened further as a result of
the closing of its recent US$135 million debt financing. The offering provides
the Company with additional financial flexibility to grow organically, and
alternatively, may alseo allow the Company to pursue strategic acquisition
opportunities that may arise in the future.

Calfrac will continue to maximize equipment utilization and profitability
by redeploying equipment to higher activity regions within its global
operating reach.

Conference Call

Calfrac will be conducting a conference call for interested analysts,
brekers, investors and media representatives to review its fourth gquarter and
year-end results at 10:00 a.m. (Calgary time) on Thursaday, March 1, 2007. The
conference call dial-in number is 1-800-732-1073 or 416-644-3434. The
seven-day replay numbers are 1-877-289-8525 or 416-640-1917 and enter 21218774
followed by the pound key. A webcast of the conference call may be accessed
via the Company's website at www.calfrac.com.

Calfrac is an independent provider of specialized ocilfield services in
Canada, the United States and Russia, including fracturing, coiled tubing,
cementing and other well stimulation services, The Company has established a
leadership position through an expanding geographic network, increased
operating fleet and growing customer base. The common shares of Calfrac are
listed for trading on the Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbol CFW. For
additional information, visit the Company's website at www.calfrac.com.

Advisories

*

kﬁForward-Looking Statements

In order to provide Calfrac shareholders and potential investors with
information regarding the Company and its subsidiaries, including management's
assessment of Calfrac's future plans and operations, certain statements
contained in this press release constitute forward-looking statements or
information {("forward-looking statements"). Ferward-looking statements
contained in this report, including statements that may contain words such as
"anticipate," "can," "may," "expect," "believe," "intend," "forecast," or
similar words suggesting future outcomes or statements regarding an outlook.
These statements may include, but are not limited to, future capital
expenditures, future financial resources, future oil and gas well activity,
outcome of specific events and trends in the oil and gas industry. Readers are
cautioned that the foregoing list of significant factors is not exhaustive.
These statements are derived from certain assumptions and analysis made by the
Company based on its experience and interpretation of historical trends,
current conditions, expected future developments and other factors that it
believeés are appropriate in the circumstances. These statements are subject to
a number of known and unknown risks and uncertainties, which are discussed
previocusly in this report, that could cause actual results to differ
materially from the Company's éxpectations. Although Calfrac believes that the
expectations presented by these forward-looking statements are reasonable,
there can be no assurances that actual results or developments anticipated by
the Company will be realized or such expectations will prove to be correct.
Furthermeore, the forward-looking statements contained in this deocument are




made as of the date of this news release and Calfrac assumes no obligation to
update publicly any such forward-looking information whether as a result of
new information, future events or otherwise. The forward-locking statements
contained in this press release are expressly qualified under this cautionary
statement.

Non-GAAP Measures

Certain measures in this press release do not have any standardized
meaning as prescribed under Canadian GAAP, such as gross margin, cash flow
from operations, cash flow, cash flow per share (diluted), cash flow per share
(basic), EBITDA, EBITDA per share (diluted) and EBITDA per share (basic), and
therefore, are considered non-GAAP measures. These measures may not be
comparable to similar measures presented by other entities. These measures
have been described and presented in this press release in order to provide
shareholders and potential investors with additional information regarding the
Company's liquidity and its ability to generate funds to finance its
operations. Management's use of these measures has been disclosed further in
this press release as these measures are discussed and presented.

Additional Informaticon
Further information regarding Calfrac Well Services Ltd. can be accessed

on the Company's website at www.calfrac.com or under the Company's public
filings found at www.sedar.com.

g .
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As at December 31, 2006 2005
(0008) (unaudited) (%) ($)
- Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents . 5,580 -
Accounts receivable 84,481 91,693
Inventory 13,387 6,145
Prepaid expenses and deposits 7,463 2,219
110,911 100,057
Capital assets 327,832 198,302
Long-term investment 396 324
Goodwill 6,003 6,003
Future income taxes 9,048 32,129
454,190 336,815
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Bank indebtedness ' - 10,813
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 7) 77,344 46,748
Income taxes payable 2,342 485
Current portion of long-term debt - 2,615
79,686 60,661
Long-term debt 60,000 8,000
Other long-term liabilities 4,743 6,306

Deferred credit 6,251 27,827

;i
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150,680 102,794
Shareholders’' equity
Capital stock (note 4) 139,841 138,767
Shares held in trust (note 5) (3,869) {1,385)
Contributed surplus 4,303 2,317
Retained earnings 163,145 94,322
303,510 234,021
454,190 336,815

" ‘Saee accompanying notes te¢ the consolidated financial statements.

CONSCLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND RETAINED EARNINGS

Three Months Ended Years Ended
December 31, : December 31,
2006 2005 2006 2005
(0005, except per share data) . ($y - {$) () (%
{unaudited)
Revenue 118,322 111,634 426,418 314,325
Expenses .
Operating 83,834 68,298 291,056 205,227
Selling, general and :
administrative 7,929 9,147 28,350 29,467
Depreciation 7,621 4,740 25,699 17,143
Amortization of intangibles - - - 36
Interest expense (income) 702 67 2,341 (129} \
Equity share of income
from long-term investments - - (72) (324)
Foreign exchange (gains)
losses and other (1,837) 6l (2,516) 192
(Gain) loss on disposal
of capital assets (25) (3) © 67 152 :
98,224 82,310 344,925 251,764
Income before income taxes 20,098 29,324 81,493 62,561
Income taxes
Current 2,903 844 7,538 1,069
Future 288 1,108 1,505 1,400
3,191 1,952 9,043 2,469
Income before non-~
controlling interest 16,907 27,372 72,450 . 60,092
Non-controlling interest - - - {21)
Net income for the period 16,907 27,372 72,450 60,113
Retained earnings, .
beginning of period 148,052 68,764 94,322 37,832
Dividends {(1,814) (1,814) (3,627) (3,623)

Retained earnings,
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end of period 163,145
' Earnings per share

Basic ; 0.47

Diluted 0.46

163,145 94,322
2.00 1.66
1.98 1.64

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Three Months Ended

Net change in non-cash
working capital from
purchase of capital

Years Ended

December 31, December 31,
2006 2005 2006 2005
~ (000s) (unaudited) ($) (%) (%) (%)
- Cash provided by {used in):
Operating activities
Net income for the period 16,907 27,372 72,450 60,113
Items- not involving cash
Depreciation and :
amortization 7,621 4,740 25,699 17,179
Stock-based
compensation 716 577 2,283 2,093
‘Equity share of income
from long-term
investments ' Lo - (72} {324)
{Gain) loss on disposal
of cdpital assets {25) (3) 67 152
Future income taxes 288 1,108 1,505 1,400
Non-controlling interest - - - (21)
Funds provided by
operations 25,507 33,794 161,932 80,592
Net change in non-cash
' operating assets and
liabilities . (257} {30,912) 8,586 (21,587)
25,250 2,882 110,518 59,005
Financing activities
Issue of long-term debt 11,583 10,000 56,583 12,013
Long-term debt repayments (1,908) (2,534) (7,198) {9,000) \
Dividends (1,814) {1,814) {3,627) {3,623)
Purchase of common shares
{note 5) - - (3,869} (1,385)
. Net proceeds on issuance
. of common shares 85 207 867 1,867
7,946 5,859 42,756 {128}
_ Investing activities
Purchase of capital assets {44,415} (20,612) {155,478} (97,614)
Proceeds on disposal of
capital assets 130 3 4,289 52
Acquisition of subsidiary,
net of cash acquired - - - (3,000)




‘assets 11,542 5,181 14,308 3,042

Increase (decrease) in

cash position 453 (6,687) 16,393 (38,643)
Cash and cash equivalents

(bank Indebtedness),

beginning of period 5,127 (4,126} {10,813} 27,830
. Cash and cash equivalents
{bank indebtedness),
end of period 5,580 {10,813) 5,580 {(10,813)

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

NOTES TC CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Three Months and Years Ended December 31, 2006 and 2005
(000s, except per share data) (unaudited)

1. Basis of Presentation
These financial statements do not conform in all respects to the
requirements of generally accepted accounting principles for annual
financial statements. These financial statements should be read in
conjunction with the most recent annual audited financial statements.

. 2. Seasonality of Operations
The business of Calfrac Well Services Ltd. (the “"Company"”) is
seasonal in nature. The lowest activity levels are experienced during
the second quarter of the year when road weight restrictions are in
place and access to wellsites in Canada is reduced.

3. ‘Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
These financial statements follow the same accounting policies and
methods of their application as the most recent annual audited
financial statements.

4. Capital Stock

Authorized capital stock consists of an unlimited number of common
shares,

The continuity of issued common shares and related values are as

follows:
Shares Amount
(No.) (%
December 31, 2004 18,107,277 136,473
Two-for-one split, February 17, 2005 18,107,277 ~
Issued upon exercise of stock options 118,722 2,294
December 31, 2005 36,333,276 138,767

Issued upon exercise of stock options 55,132 1,074

82—349}09
|
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December 31, 2006 36,388,408 139,841

On'february 7, 2005, thée shareholders of the Company voted in favour
of a two-for-one subdivision of the Company's common shares that took
effect on February 17, 2005. Comparative per share information has
been restated to reflect the two-for-one split.

Shares Held in Trust

The Company has established a Trust to purchase and hold Company
.stock on behalf of certain employees who have elected to receive a
portion of their annual bonus entitlement in the form of Company
shares. During 2006, 113,508 shares were purchased on the open market
at a cost of $3,869 (2005 - 43,637 shares at a cost of $1,385). These
shares vest with employees in March of the year following their
purchase at which time they are distributed to those individuals
participating in the plan. These shares are not considered
outstanding for purposes of calculating basic earnings per share, but
are included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share.

Stock Options

Continuity of

Stock Options 2006 2005
Average Average
Exercise Exercise
Options Price Options Price
{No.) A$) (No.) (%)
. Qutstanding, January 1 818,578 . 18.39 - 840,200 16.07
Grantéd during the year 776,550 25.89 140,100 29.92

Exercised for common

shares (55,132) 15.73 (118,722) 15.73
Forfeited (34,200) 27.18 (43,000) 17.97
Balance, December 31 1,505,796 22.15 818,578 18.39

The niimber of optiohs butstanding at January 1, 2005 has been ;
adjusted- to reflect the two-for-one common share split on
February 17, 2005,

All stock options vest equally over three years and expire three and
one-half years from the date of grant. The estimated fair value of
optiéns granted is determined by using the Black-Scholes opticn
.pricing model with the following assumptions: risk-free interest rate k
of 4%, average expected life of 2.83 years, expected volatility of :
34% to 36% and expected dividends of $0.10 per annum. This amount is
"charged to compensation expense over the vesting period. When stock
options are exercised, the proceeds, together with the amount of
compensation expense previocusly recorded in contributed surplus, is
added to capital stock.

Related Party Transactions
During 2006, the Company purchased $26,890 (2005 - $17,487) of

products and services from a company in which it holds a 30% equity
interest. At December 31, 2006, accounts payable included $7,234 of




indebtedness to the related party (December 31, 2005 - $2,941}.
Contingencies
Greek Operations

As a result of the acquisition and amalgamation with Deniseon in 2004,
the Company assumed certain legal obligations relating to Denison's
Greek operations.

In 1998, a consortium in which a Greek subsidiary of Denison
participated, terminated employees in Greece as a result of the
cessation of its oil and gas operations in that country. Several
groups of employees have filed claims alleging that their termination
was invalid and that their severance pay was improperly determined.

In 1999, the largest group of plaintiffs received a ruling from the
Athens Court of First Instance that their termination was invalid and
that compensation was due to the employees. This decision was
appealed to the Athens Court of Appeal, which allowed the appeal in
2001 and annulled the above-mentioned decision of the Athens Court of
First Instance. The said group of employees has filed an appeal with
the Supreme Court of Greece, which is scheduled to be heard on

May 29, 2007.

Several other smaller groups of employees have filed similar cases in
various courts in Greece. Some of these cases were heard in 2004. In
general, the finding of these courts has been that the termination of
the employees was valid and in some instances have awarded the
employees immaterial amounts of additional compensation and in one
case have referred the matter back to a lower court to be reheard
based on more specific grounds.

As a result of the above-mentioned court hearings, a majority of the
number of former employeesa with respect to these smaller groups of
claimants have received payment of the immaterial amounts awarded to
them and waived their right of recourse to the Supreme Court of
Greece. The remainder have filed an appeal to the Supreme Court of.
Greece or have advised that they are waiting for the outcome of the
May 29, 2007 hearing of the Supreine Court of Greece before proceeding
further.

The direction and financial consequence of the potential decision in
" these actions cannot be determined at this time.

Segmented Information
The Company's activities are conducted in three geographic markets:
Canada, the United States and Russia. All activities are related to

fracturing, coiled tubing, cementing and well stimulation services
for the cil and gas industry.
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Inter-
segment
United Elimin- Consoli-
Canada Russia States ations dated

Three Months Ended

December 31, 2006
Revenue 79,837 9,446 29,039 - 118,322
Operating income

{loss) (1)} 16,746 671 9,142 - 26,559

|
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Segmented assets(2) 438,879 66,012 35,547 {86,248) 454,190
Capital expenditures 33,313 7,934 3,235 (67) 44,415
Goodwill 6,003 - - - 6,003
Three Month Ended
December 31, 2005

Revenue 96,019 1,212 14,403 - 111,634
Operating income

(loss) {1) 33,434 {2,48%9) 3,244 - 34,189
Segmented assets (2} 336,018 14,061 21,133 (34,397) 336,815
Capital expenditures 14,018 10,175 567 (4,148) 20,612
Goodwill 6,003 - - - 6,003
Year Ended

December 31, 2C06
Revenue 318,018 22,123 86,277 - 426,418
Operating income

(lossa) (1) 81,033 (2,389) 28,368 - 107,012
Segmented assets(2) 438,879 66,012 35,547 {(86,248) 454,190
Capital expenditures 114,402 35,615 5,216 245 155,478
Goodwill 6,003 - - - 6,003
Year Ended

December 31, 2005
Revenue 280,068 1,212 33,045 - 314,325
Operating income

{loss) (1)} 77,468 {2,489) 4,652 - 79,631
Segmented assets {2} 336,018 14,061 21,133 (34,397) 336,815
Capital expenditures 85,566 10,175 6,021 (4,148) 97,614
Goodwill 6,003 - - - 6,003

(1) Cperating income (loas} is defined as revenue less operating
expenses (excluding depreciation and amortization) and selling,
general and administration expenses.

{(2) Assets operated by the Company's U.S. subsidiary were acquired
through a lease arrangement with the Canadian parent company. The
cost base of these assets was $63.3 million at December 31, 2006
($35.1 million at December 31, 2005).

The following table sets forth consolidated revenue by service line:

Three Months Ended Years Ended

‘ December 31, December 31,

2006 2005 2006 2005

(%) (%) ($) {$)

Fracturing 103,531 105,890 374,086 295,782
Ceciled Tubing 8,919 2,969 30,689 10,149
Cementing 5,872 2,775 21,633 8,394
118,322 111,634 426,418 314,325

Subsequent Events
On February 13, 2007, the Company completed a private placement of

unsecured senior notes for an aggregate amount of US$135.0 million,
The notes are due in full on February 13, 2015 and bear interest at
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) 7.75% payable semi-annually. A portion of the proceeds of the
| offering was used to repay the Company's existing operating and
5 revolving term credit facilities. In conjunction with the offering,
the Company's existing revolving term credit facility was reduced
from $125.0 million to $65.0 million.
>>

$SEDAR: 00002062E

; /For further information: Douglas R. Ramsay, Pfesident and Chief
‘ Executive Officer, Telephone: (403) 266-6000, Fax: (403) 266-7381; Tom J.
‘ Medvedic, Yice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer, Telephone:
- (403) 266-6000, Fax: (403) 266-7381/
: (CFW.)

CO: Calfrac Well Services Ltd.

CNW 06:00e 01-MAR-07
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(21,587} |

Net change in non-cash operatlng assets and Ilabllmes note 14)

110,518

59,005

56,563
{7,198)
(3,627)
{3,869)
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12,013
(9.000)
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(136,881) }.
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27,830

“Cashi and ‘cash equivalerlts {bank Indebtedness), end of year

5,580

(10,813}
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See BCCOMpPENYing NOtES w the wnsouda!ed financigl statements:. .
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Notes to consolldated Fnancial Stﬂternents
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d Calfrac Well Servlces Ll.d (the “Company )was formed threugh the amalgamatlon pf Calfrac Well Services Ltd: (predecessor

company orlglnally lncorporated onJune 28; 1999) and Denlson Energy Inc. on March 24; 2004 under the Business Corporations~ N

= Act (Alberta} "The Company provides specialized ollfield services, - including fracturing, coiled tubing, cementing and other well .~ -~ - -
stlmulatlon semces to the DII and gas industrles ln Canada, the United States end Russia. -

S - 2 SI.IMMAHY ﬂF SIGHIFIGANT ACGOUNTING POLICIES

accountmg pnnclples Because a preclse determination of many assets and liabilities is dependent upon future events ‘the

P __‘p‘repa’ragen uf ﬂnancsal statements necessarily involves the use.of estimates and approximations that have been made using -

) - carefut |udgemenL The llnanclal statements have, in managements opmlon been properly prepared within reasonable limits of N
- materlallty anu wlthln the l'ramework of the signllicant accounljng pollcies summarized below ’ . .

The ﬁnanelal accounts of ths Cnmpany 3 U.S. end Hussian subsldlanes are lranslated into Canadian currency using the lem- .

‘balance sheet date white rion- munetary iterns are translaled at thé historlcal rate applicable on the date of the transactlen . - .
gnrlng rise.to. lhe non- menetary balance Revenues and expenses are; translated at the: manthly average exchange rates. | R

~Cash and msh equwalencs conslst of. cash an depesn, shorl term mvestments wnh unglnal maturities within 90 days and - B

R lnvenmw—-;— L SRS SR LONCLY '-. aa CRRES

T nventury consrsts Tof chemlcals nitregen carbon dluxlde cement and proppants used tn stimulate wells and is stated at the

10 years ]
. Wyears_ _ . _. .- o T
oo Syears. - —-- S -
- 3 years
Term of the lease. _

- ::-':—-—The Company equrty aocounts for_its” investment in shares of.a company “over which it has siqnlllcanl influence. Under Ihe~ - R

equny melhod ol aceountlng, lnvestmems are carned al tne:r org:nal Tostplus me Companys cumulatlve share of earn-. -~ - 7-1

- Bood_wrll represents thé excess el ‘oSt aver the fair value of net assets acqurred lntanglble assets are recognrzed apart frem IR -
"=~ "goodwiil and are amortized over their estimated useful fives. Goodwill Is assessed by the Company for impalment at least
annually. The lmpalr_ment test Is carrled out in two stsps in the first step. the carrylng amount is compared with its fair vatue.
- Whénthe fair value exceeds its carrylnq amount, goodwill is considered not to be impaired and performance of the second

- T step of the, lmpa:rment testis unnecessary The second step eempares the implied fair value of the poodwill with its carry-

ng amnunt to measure the ameunt ol the Impalrmem loss, ll any.

The Company fnllows the liabll:ty methnd ot determimng |ncome laxes where future income taxes are determined based on
- "‘temporary differences between the tax bases of assets or Iiabillties and their carrying amounts in. the financlal statements. -

(i)_wenuenecogmtion_- B R

_Révenue s recogmzed as servn:es are enmpleted and wnen delrvery oceurs fer products
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(k) \fariable Interest Enutlus

t s Canadlan Accoummg Guldeline 15 "Cunsolidation of Varlabls Interest Entities® (‘VIEs ) requlres cunsolldatmn of a VIE where
=an emlty absorbs a ma]o:lty ol a VlE‘s losses, recelves a ma]ority of lts retums or.both, Under.these rules, it was determlned
-th_at me Company s reqmred to consolldahe the Trusl whtch was’ estabhshed tu purchasa and’ holg* Cumpany stock as

38,073

- . 248,614

69,805
1,336
1,510
2,821
322
75,794 © =50, 312~ .
Asseis under cunstruction ) ) 78,080 " 38, 073
- i’eld eqmpment S - == 220,640 142, 518"
dings— - . : 16,039 9,791.
B - I - 9,252 5322
" E Shop. office and other equment i ! 1,869 1,235
) Compuiers and compuler software - 1,444 BO1
"“Leasehold: mprovements.. % i 508 Do, 582 b
. 327,832 | - - 198,302. _A ’
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——-al‘December 31,:2006 (lncludlng $626 of. unciearéd cheques) “The I‘acmty is'secured by a General Secun_ty Agreemenl over all
Canadnan assets ssets of the Company The balance uuistandmg ont the facility b has been net‘led agalnst cash on deposlt in these finan-

290,445 188,861
17,375 . - _' 10,432
9,252 .- .- 753227
Snop, office-and uther equlpment 3,379 { ~ 2,248
c::mputets and computer sottwdre 4,265 | . 2,866
B30 =% - -2~
403,626 i<
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10,615 _
: -1 (2615 ;
i -

eo,ouo - © 8000

: The term and commencemerlt uf prrncipal repayments on the $125 000 extendrble revolvmg caprtal Vfaclltty may be ertended by . .ot

N y6ar on eath anniversary daté at the. request of the Company and acveptance by the lendars: At Décember 31,2006, the”

- Company had 365 000 of undrawn credlt avallable under thls !aclmy On February.13, 2007 the Company tlosed a US$135, 000
debt offering and lhe extendlble revolvlng capnal fagllity was rully repaid In’ conjuncuon wnm mls oﬂerlng. the revolvmg term oot s

) Scheduled princmal repayments requured in each year to reure iong -term dabt as at: December 31 2006 are as follews (assum-

lng the Aacllity.is not e exﬁended on the next anmversary date being Decemper 5. 2007 - ovnoTo T ‘*_ .

- 18,107,277 = ~134737 - L Lo

18107277 R T .
: -,----113722- o229t TS
TaT. . c oIt 36,033,276 - 0 138767 f

-Deeember 31 2005"“ ‘.':*_:'_— =
: 55,132 - 1,074
36,388, 408 -139,841

, On February T;-2005 ‘the- shareholders “of the_-_cempany “voted - 1avour ‘of a two—for-one subdlwslnn of me Companys
common shares that took effect an February 17; 2005: Comparatrve per share |nfurmat|on has been restated to reflect the two- ST
.-.tor-une split_'. - T . ::- . : . -t - --

e -The - welghted: e.verage number of comman shares outstandmg fur the year. ended December 31; 2006 was 36, 286 332 basrc - o
: ‘and 36 547,182 dlluted (2005 36, 216,499 basic and 36,600,855 dlluted} The dlfference bstween basic and diluted shares is T i

- ‘- attributable to the diiutive’effect ol stock options issued by the Company and the shares held in trust (see note 7).

-5 R — eI — I - - . -
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A B - 'The Company has estahllshed aTrust to purchase and hofd Cumpany sfnck on behalf of cenam employees who have elected to .
ST © T receive a portlon of thelr gnnual bonus entitlement in the.form of Company shares. During 2006, 113,508 shares were pur-
. - chased on the open marke! at a cost of $3,869 (2005 - 43,637 shares at a cost of $1,385). These shares vest with employees
in March of the: year followlng their. purchase at which time they are distributed to those individuais partrcmatrng in the- plan

= -These. shares 2 are: nut consfdered qumtandlng for purposes of oa!culattng ‘basic’ eamings per share but are. Included in: the

= e'afeulatlon of drlufed eamlngs per sharg:

Averapa

Exerciss . B:en:se:_' -
Options Prica Optiony _ Prica
U] ® Cm ]
= Dutstandlng. January l' LT T 818,578 1838 | . 840,200 _ 1607
. Granted durmg the year -~ 7 - ',-' A 776,550 25.89 140,100 2092
e Exerclsed for common sharés o T {55,132) 15.73 (118,72'2) 15.73
ST -Forfeited = ;-.:_:_'-‘ - il {34,200) 27.18 - {43.000) 17.97
) Bafanoe December 31 R 1,505,796 2215 ' 818'578 T 1839

LAl stock optlons vesf equajfy over tfrre_e years and exprre three and one- haff years from me dale of granl. The. esumated farr
= ~Vafue of options granted is delermined by Using the Biack-Scholes aption pricing mode! with the following assumptions: risk-

7~ free: Imerest rate_of 4%, average; expecfed lita of'2.83 years, expected volatility of 34% fo 36% and expecied dividends of N
$0:10/pér anniim;-This amount is charget 16, compensatron expense over the vesting period. When stock options are exer- - .
- -cised; the procse together With the’ amouint of compensauon expense prev:ously recnrded in oontrlbufed surplus; is added -

T to capital smck

" (b Stock Umf.s

. e TITIIT

mmenomg in 2004 fhe Company began granfmg deferred stock: unns to its outside directors: > These units vest one year

Trom ihe date of grant and are seftled in gither cash (équal ta the market value of the underlying shares at the time of exer-
-cise) or in Company shares’ purchased en the open market- The fair value of the deferred stock units is recognized equally

“over.the Gne-year vesting’ period; based ‘on the ‘current market’ pnce ‘of the” COmpanys shares During 2006, $328 of com-

. pensatlon eXpense was recogmzed for defemed stock unifs {2005 - "$1.860); - R .

Commencmg in 2004 the Company began granting performance stock units ta the Company’s most senior officers who
'_- are not |ncluded in the stock optron ptan. The amount of the grants earned is linked to corporate performance and vest one
year. from the date of grant. “As with the deferred stock units,’ performance stock units are settled in either cash or Company
'shares purchased on the opsn market. Durmg 2006 $265 of compensation expense was recognized for performance stock

_.units' (2005 ~ $395). o . )

R Ghanges in the Companys oblrgauons Linder the deferred and performanoe siock unit plans, which arlse from fluctuations in
. - L. - cthem market vafue of lhe Company’s shares underfymg mese eompensauon programs. are reoorded as the share value ohanges

The foflowmg table summarizes lhe income fax effect of temporary dlfferences fhat grve rrse fo the future |ncome tax assef af k

-Decemberal'.;,:"_';"*'_.,_"“f"’;'_‘v."ﬁ___ N U ey

As 2t December 31, 2008 2005 -
- ",,,_7 R N m . m.: - -
, =TT s Tans) - 9,038
T_Canadlen exploration e expenses e 11,081 - 7668 1
Losses’ carrled forward - ; - . . "7-: Tl L 5,405 7,778
- =" "Defemred compensation payame ST T T e ; 2,939 T 2,486
" Deferred finanting: and share istue costs R . 2,269 2,328
R ther e e X P _ .o L= - 2,069 280
e T | 9,048 - 32129

.
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computed by applylng the expected tax rate of 32 12% (2005 33 62%) to income: before income taxes Tha pnnclpal reasons s

for drﬂ'erences between such expected incame tax expense’ and lhe amounl actually reourded ae as follows - -

2008
®: - -
81,493
3212
26,176
@oginyi = “oqeeni - - 7T
1,811 910-;
1071 | My
1,333 | .4 CoeTee
Rl S
g7 i - TTi o coEis oo
2. I
- e T
LaFg'e'Eorporetionslax -1 - 234" SRR
- ;.‘(1.@70).:: T
(L R U I
BO43 T - 24695 . .

federal and provmcral income tax rates a luture income tax asset of $?0 771 was recorded The fair vaiue paid for the tax poois

acqurred ‘was.estimated.fo.be $11; 000 The drtterence between the l‘uture' ncome tax asset recogmzed and the fair value ot -

these tax pools was recordad as'a “deferred credit-in the amaunt of $59,77-

i e A Y 30% equity “interest (see’ also note 2. (f})‘At Decembe' at, ‘2006 A ounts pa ble I cluded $7 234 'firnclebt dn

“°‘~—-'—-w"'_‘—_—v‘“—=related party (December 317 2005“"32 941 X

aggregate minimum payments over-ih the next Five | years lrom Decemher 31; 2006; as follows

[WOS) ) ) - - .

r
W
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The Company ls exposed to |nterest rate cash ﬂow rrsk an debt eubject to floatmg mterest rates The Company s et"lechve
nterest rate lor the year ended December 3t 2006 was'5.75% (December n, 2005 5. 14%}

Change in non- casb operatlng"assets and llabllmes are asfollows - i e ] ' .

- Years Ended December 31, 2006

EE N
359

443 1

o Demsons Greek operatlons

IR 1998 a consortlum in. vvhlch a Greek subsn!lary of Denlson parbcrpated termlnated ernployees |n Greece as a result of the ’ e
-gessation of. its oil" and gz gas operatlons in.that o_ounlrv Several groups of employees have filed cla|ms alleglng that theu termi- -

nation.was lnvalld and that their.severance pay_was Improperly determine

in 1999 the largest group of plaanhﬂs recerved a rulmg lrom the Athens Court of First lnstance that their termlnatlon was mvahd
and that compensatlon was due to the employees This decusnon was appealed {0 the Athens Court of Appeal which allowed the < . -
appeal-in'2001 and annwlled the above-mentioned decision of-the Athéns Court of First Instance. The said’ group ol employees N
has filéd an appeal wlth thi Supreme Court ol Greece whlch is scheduled to be heard on Mav 29 2007 ’

==in 2004 |n general the lmdmg of. these courts has been that ¢ the terrmnatlon of the employees was valid and in some rnstances
have awarded the employees rmmatenal amounts ot addltlonal compensatron and In one case have referred the matter back to

me,..m et S -

As a result of the above-mentloned count hearlngs ‘a majonty of the' number of former employees wnh respect to these smaller
groups of clgimants"have received ‘payment of the immaterial- amounts awarded to themand-waived their right of recourse to.
-the Supreme Colrt of Greece. The Temainder. have filed an appeal tothe Supreme Court of Greéce or have advised that they are . S

-for.the outcome of i Ma' 29 2007 ﬁearing of me Supreme Coun ‘ot Greece before proeeeding further

N Gmpany. is tnvolved ing- drspute with e Russiar tax authorlties Tégaiding: the’ recovery_ol_ Value Added Taxes ('VAT ), )
which:it has; paid on the:importation of ‘equigment into. Rssia: The .amount in dispute.is thé-equivatent of $4,500, whichiis ~ - =
B |nclucled in accounts receivable at December 31, 2006. The Company has successiully defended 5|m||ar VAT challenges in the

past and belleves the matter. will: be resolved in ns favour within the comlng months )L - . -
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Notes to Consohdated Flnancral Statements AP ;-

wreizi o T oI
457 1554781
cn, 6,008 7

yaatz - a5
6,003

) e

< “Year.Ended Decembor 3, 2oos Il e i -
.- T S _ - 280,068 “T21z 33,045 - 34325 o
ﬂperatlng lncome 18 (10ss} Wi S 77468 1 (248%%.. .--4852 - .. - 796311 i

36,0087 214,061 21133 . _ . 2(34.097) © '335815- -7 -
85,566 -~ © 10.1]"5_- T - 6,021 = 4,148) 97,51'4-
FEN 6003 - “:ée [CREET-S CThe el T 6003‘ - R

a'mm., bym o 'US : mnmedﬂmwlleuammomemmmmmommmlmmThewﬂbalunilhmml!
wassssﬂumccumuu 2mam5149albecember§1 2005] LT AT - -

The fullnwing table sets forth consolldated revenue by servuce Irne

Years Endad Oecamber 31, 2006 2005

T -; -.,“ = ,.,;-." —_ - - T . -z . ° ,m DR - 4]
- Voo s o : 374,09 295,782
e Coited Te Tublng B 30,689 .. 103497
T 7 TcementingsT - ¢ SR R . 8394 i
AR el - EEEE 426,418 S314,325- -

_:pnnclples {“GAAR") whlch ;in most res"pects conforms to Us. GAAP Any drrferences in accountmg pnnclples between Canadran
GAAP.and U.S. GMP as mey apply tot me COmpany are not materlal excep! as described, below. The adjustments. | below are -

. ‘ﬁeasurement dltferences only and” do nor retlect any. dlsclosure ditferences  that> may "exist_ betwean Canadian GMP and

USIGRTIn T TS R S e T s e -

- asdlscussedbelow - : Lo el

) (a) Stock-Based compensauon

,'—I 'Under Canadian GAAP the: Company recogmzes compensatron cost for the fair value of stock opllon grams over the vestrng
perrod of thesa grantsa as'a charge to cornoensatlon expense and a credit to contributed surplus The Company als¢ recog-

..Etfectlve January 1 2006 _t_he_ c_qmpany adopted using the modifred prospective transitional provisions, tne revrsed :
= standards outlined under "SEAS -123R:“Share-Based Payment.® Previously, the Company followed SFAS 123 'Accountrng ’
“for Stock- Based'Compehsation ' which determined stock-based compensation cost for both the stock options and stock
S L “units using the same:method as under. Canadran GAAP with no ad]ustments tc reported net: Income for the year ended

“'Decemoer31 2005: :f"_-—_.;v L : ]

. Under SFAS 123R, the Company.is requrred to determlna aod lncorporate a torfero.rre munlplier inte its calcutation of stock-

-based compensation cost for its stock options and stock units. Under Canadian GAAR, the Company accounts for torfgitures

7" . as'they occur. The Company estimates rhat the impact of any I'orferture multiplier would not result in a sugnifrcant drﬁereoce
- between Canadlan and U.5. GAAP. e

PRIt addition; the fair value of the. Company's ‘stock units. would be estimated-using a Black-Scholes option pricing-medel,

s =Temeasured at-each-reporting date, as opposed to valuing the stock units. based on' the current market price- of . the SN
ST e e - Company s shares. The Company esumates that the Impact of remeasuring stock unrte outslandlng using the Black-Scholes




T‘ne arrable Interesl enuties (‘VlE ) aecuunhng standard under Canadran GMP rs srmllar to U S. GMP AN 4GH
.__':_Conso!rdaﬂon of Variahle Imerest Entities.” Under the. Canadtan GAAP transmcnal provrsrons -adoption. was required. for
- .- ST Iyears ccmmenclnq Janua.ry 1; 2005 :whereas under .5, GAAP, adoptrcn was requrred one. year earlier commencing-on
o - January 1, 2004. Under Canadian GAAP, the Company identified and consolidated one VIE for the years ended December 31
: ’—2006 and 2005; which also would have’ been cnnsohdaled for. LI S GAAP purposes ) .

S RN =I. - - . - e

-{e) | Future’ IncumeTaxes - - . T -

. > The future Income tax aceounting standard under Canadian GAAP Is similar to U.S, GMP SFAS 109, Accountlng for Income

sl SR s ool L Taxes™-Pursuant to Canadian GAAP, substantively enacted tax rates are used to calculate future income tax, whereas U.S.

ST *GAAP applles enacted tax rates. There are no differences for the years ended December 31, 2006:and 2005 re!alrng .
o  TiTer T Income tax rals dlfferences _oT=l A ; o

Z(d) | COmprehensive Incume‘

olldated statemems oI’ cash flows as: reponed BXCEpt that under U.S. GAAP the' presentation of tinds from operations as I

.U T In addnlon under Canadlan GMP bank cverdrafts used to manage uay-m-day cash can be classrlled as cash and cash equrv- .. .
LT T alents. ‘Under. L. S GAAP, hank overdrafts are liabilities that should be considered a form of short- term financing and classified -
a8, cash flows from frnancing activitles, The eﬂecl of this is an outflow of cash from financing activities of $8,658 for the year '
-~ended December:33, 2006 (2005 inflow. of cash from’ fmancmg activities of $12,065).'As a result, the consolidated balance .- -~
-‘sheel would be ad]usted to reflect cash and cash equlvalenm of SB 387 (2005 $1 \252) and bank indebtedness of $3,407 -
‘(2005 $12 065} T

'The_ falluwrng are stanc!ards and interpretanons mat have been |ssued by. Ihe Fmarr(:lal Acccumrng Standards Board
ASB') whlch are nm yet in effecl for the years presemed hul wculr! comprlse U 57 GAAP when Impremented - -

LUl s e defined in SFAS 109 'Accounlrng for Taxes FIN48- prescrlbes a threshold condition that a tax pesition must meet fcr
’ - T B any .of the benefit'of the uncertain tax pusrtion to be" reccgnrzed in the. financial statements. Guidance is alse provided

- - regarding o8- recognition classification and disclosure of these unceriain tax.positions. FIN 48 is etfective for fiscal years
S T= T *beginning aﬂer December 15, 2006. The Company_ has ncl yet deterrnlned the lmpact on the financial positicn resuhs of

g i0E operations or cash flaws from FIN 48. -

- '- ‘In February 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 155, 'Accwnung for Certaln Hybrid Financial Instruments — An Amendment of

ot -—FASB Statement Nos:133 and 1407 ("SFAS 1557 ). SFAS 155 simplifies the accounung of certain hybrrd financial instruments
nder SFAS 133 by permitting lair value remeasuremem far !rnancral rnstmmems contammg an embedded derwanve that

N nstruments acqulrecl Issued or subjecl to a remeasuremenl event occurrrng in fiscal years begmn[ng after Seplember 15 -
2006 The Company does not expern that SFAS 155 will have a rnatenal lmpacl on rts i nancral posruon results of opera—

e _uunsorcashﬂows-- L nol AT T

-In September 2006 the. FASB issued SFAS No. 157 "FarrVaIue Measuremen!s ("SFAS 157 ) SFAS 157 def ines fair vatue,
e ! 1z eslablishes a iramewurk tor measurln| falr value under GAAP and expands dlsc!nsures about fair vatue measuremems The

-0 T - statement'is’ etfecﬂve for fair’ ‘valua measures_already-required or permitted by other standards for financial statements
=Tl . .- Cissued for fiscal years begmnrng after November 15; 2007 and interim periods within those fiscal years. The Company has

Tan T : - -*nut yet determrned the |mpac1 on lts Irnanclai posruon resuhs of operatlons or. cash f!ows from SFAS 157 -

ST n sussecusursvems_- - e s e

EaN g 0 on: February 13 2007 lha-GEmpany complaieu a pnvate placernent of unsecured senior no!es 1ur an aggregate amount of
- | US§135,000. The notes are due in full on February 15 2015 and bear intefest at 7.75% payable semi-annually. A portion of the
- prnceeds cl ha eﬂering was used to 0 repay.th the. Compaﬂy ] exlsung operallng and revolving-term credit lacllrhes In conjuction
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s
This Management's Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) for Calfrac Well Services Ltd. (" Caltrac'{ér me
*Company™} has been prepared by management as of February 26, 2007 and is a review of thé ﬂnanbnal
condition and results of operations of the Company based on accounting principles generally acceptad In
Canada. hts focus is primarily a comparison of the financial performance for the thres months and years
ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 and sheuld be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated
financial statements and accompanying notes for those periods as well as the MD&A for the three months

J_EFI\:f«TI“r.."_
RATE FiIKNANCE

and years ended December 31, 2005. Readers should also refer to the “Forward-Looking Statements® legal -

advisory located at the end of this MD&A. The annual consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Canadian generalty accepted accounting principles (“GAAP®).

Al financial amounts and measures presented In this MDBA are expressed in Canadlan dollars unless
otherwise indicated. The definitions of certain non-GAAP measures used within this MD&A have been
included at the end of this MDEA

Calfrac is an independent provider of specialized oilfield services in Canada, the United States and Russia,
B _ including fracturing, coiled tubing, cementing and other well stimulation services, The Company has established
| a leadership position by providing high quality, responsive service through an expanding geographic network,
| increased operating fleet and growing customer base. For the year ended December 31, 2006, Calfrac:
I
|
|

>

>

Revenue s misonsy . -
smﬁ S S - - - .- .
w
| ! .
|
' 300 314.3‘

increased revenue 36% to $426.4 miilion compared to $314.3 miilion in 2005;

grew riét income to $72.5 million or $2.00 per share (basic), an increase of $12.3 miltion or $0.34
per share {kasic) from the previous year;

adhieved recofd cash fiow from operations before changes in non-cash working capitat of $101.3
mitlisn or $2.81 per share (kasic) compared to $80.6 million or $2.23 per share {basic) in 2005;

improved year-over-year EBITDA by 38% o0 $109.5 million versus $79.6 million a year ago; and

incurred capital expenditures of $155.5 million to expand its equipment fleel across all geographic
markets and service lines,
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‘ Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Revenue Mlx ™

:
Vo
y

'
HE

" Well Stimulation

BUSINESS ENVIRONMERT ~

) Calfrac’s 2006 ﬁnan'cial and operating performance was primarily Weighted to its Canadian natural gas fracturing
operations. During 2006, the number of wells drilled in Western Canada decreased 7% to 22,979 from a record
24,803 wells drilled in 2005. The Company's shallow gas and coalbed methane (“CBM") activity levels were
negatwely impacted by customers reducing activity due to concerns surrounding lower natural gas commodity
prices. CBM activity levels were also impacted by regulatory and landowner i |ssues

i'

0il and Gas Average Benchmark Prices

' Years Ended December 31, - 2006 2005
' . : ' ® s
AECO Price congimen C T - . 854 8.78
WTI Price usson b o 66.25 56.70

The West Texas Intermediate benchmark crude oil-price increased 17% in 2008 to average US$66.25 per
barret compared to US$56.70 per barrel a year ago. The 2006 AECO average spot price was $6.54 per thousand
cubic feet, a 26% decrease from 2005. The Company anticipates that ofl and gas prices over the short-term
may remain volatile and that well service market activity levels should continue to be relatively strong, but
lower than the record {evels experienced in 2005. '

2006 PERFORMANCE SUMMARY »

Canadian Operatlons -

Revenue from Canadian operations for 2006 increased 14% to $318.0 million compared to $280.1 million in
2005 primarily as a result of higher activity in the deeper, more technical areas of the Western Canadian

"Sedimentary Basin offset by lower activity due to the impact of weaker natural gas prices and CBM regulatory -
delays. Canadian fracturing revenue totaled $278.2 million, an increase of $15.4 million or 6% from the prior
‘year, During 2006, the Company completed 5,238 Canadian fracturing jobs for average revenue of $53,105 per
job compared to 6,063 jobs for $43,334 per job in 2005. The revenue per job for Canadian fracturing operations
‘was higher in 2006 due primarily to significant increases in the number of jobs completed In the deeper basins
of northern Alberta and northeastern British Columbia, price book increases for services effective January 1,
2006 and a reduction in the number of CBM and shallow gas jobs completed during the year.

The Company’s revenue from coiled tubing operatibns increased $9.3‘milli0n in 2006 to $18.2 million compared
to $8.9 million the previous year. In 2005, 5,875 fobé were complefecf for average revenue of $3,102 per job
compared to 5,262 jobs for $1,698 per job in 2005. Year-gver-year Canadian coiled tubmg revenue and revenue
per job increased primarily as a result of the deployment of two new coiled tubing units during the second
quarter of 2006, which enabled the Company to generate higher Igvels.of activity in the deeper markets of
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Western Canada. Additionally, the Company's coiled tubing operations were focused throughout 2005 on shallow
gas operations in southern Alberta, which historically produce lower revenue on a per job basis. [n 2006, these
operations were negatwely impacted by decreased drilling activity. Also during 2005, two coiled tubing units
were transferred fo Russia during the second and thlrd quarters, which negatively impacted activity and revenug
from this serwce line during the previous year.

For the year ended December 31, 2006, revenue from Calfrac's cementmg operations totaled $21.6 million
versus $8.4 million in 2005. This 158% increase was due primarily to a larger equipment fleet, expanded service
area, including the deeper basin markets of northern Alberta and northeastern British Columbia, as well as the
integration of cementing operations into its sales and marketing team. During 2006, the Company completed
1,974 jobs for average revenue of $10,959 per j0b compared to 1 ,007 jobs for average revenue of $8,336 per
job in 2005,

United States Operations . -

During 2008, revenue from Calfrac’s United States opera;iorjs totaled $86.3 million, up 161% from $33.0 million
the previcus year. This increase was primarily a result of a'larger_fyacturing equipment fleet combined with
higher levels of activity. In late 2005, a fracturing spread was deployed to eastern Colorade and another deep
fracturing spread began operating in the Piceance Basin of western Colorado during March 2006. For the year
ended December 31, 2006, the Company completed 1,284 1.5. fracturing jobs for average revenue of $67,037
per job compared to 509 jobs for $64,921 per job recérded a year ago. The year-over-year increase in the
reported revenue per job was partially offset by a stronger Canadian doliar.

Russian Operations

Revenue from Catfrac's Russian operations increased $20.9 million to $22.1 million in 2006 from $1.2 million
a year ago. The Company initially deployed two deep coiled gubing units to Russia during the fourth quarter

of 2005. A third deep coiled tubing unit was added in May 2008, and in June the Company began aperating

its first Russian fracturing spread in the Khanty-Mansiysk region of Western Siberia. A second fracturing spread
began operating from Calfrac's newest Russian operating district in Purpe, Western Siberia during the first quarter
of 2007. Two additional coiled tubing units are anticipated to be deployed to Russia late in the first quarter of
2007. These expanded and more diversified operations have reacr[ed a critical mass and are expected to drive
further improvement in the Company’s future financial and operating performance in this market.
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GROSS MARGIN »

Consolidated gross margin for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased 24% to $135.4 million from
$109.1 million in 2005 primarily as a resuft of a larger fleet of equipment in all geographic segments and
strong activity levels in the deeper basin markets of Western Canada and the United States. Consolidated gross
margin as a percentage of revenue decreased to 32% from 35% in 2005 as a result of the impact of pricing
pressures in the Canadian market during the latter half of 2006 and increased revenue from Russia, which has
lower gross marging, This was partially offset by improved financial performance in the United States.

EXPENSES »

Cperating Expenses

Calfrac’s total 2006 operating expenses increased 42% to $291.1 million compared to $205.2 million in 2005
due primarily to a larger fieet of equipment and global operating presence, as well as higher activity levels and
district overhead expenses. During 2006, district expenses increased as a result of the Company's growing
scale of operations in each of its three geographic markets; more specifically, the expansion of existing
Canadian districts servicing the deeper basins of Western Canada and the opening of a new district office in
Russia. Additionally, Calfrac incurred the full year costimpact of new operaling bases that were opened in the
latter half of 2005 in Strathmore, Alberta; Grand Junction, Colorado; and Noyabrsk, Russia.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

During 2006, Calfrac’s selling, general and administrative ("SG&A") expenses declined 4% to $28.4 million

" compared to $29.5 million in the previous year primarily relating to lower stock-based compensation expenses,
which decreased to $2.9 million from $4.3 million recorded in 2005. As a percentage of revenue, SG8A
expenses decreased to 7% in 2006 compared to 9% in 2005. During 2005, the Company’s higher relative stock
price resuited in higher than normal expenses related to performance and deferred share units.

interest, Depreciation and Other Expenses

Net interest expense increased to $2.3 million durinQ 2006 compared to $0.1 million of net interest income
in 2005 as a result of higher long-term debt incurred primarily to finance the Company's capital program.
A public offering of Calfrac’s shares in August 2004 for net proceeds of $26.8 million resulted in a stronger
cash position and higher interest revenue during 2005 as compared to 2006.

In 2006, depreciation expense increased 50% or $8.6 million to $25.7 million primarily as a re§ult of the
deployment of four fracturing spreads, three coiled tubing units, four cementing units and other related equip-
ment as well as a full year of depreciation relating to 2005 equipment additions.
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INCOME TAX >

During 2006, the Company recorded an income tax expense of $9.0 million compared to $2.5 milfion a year
ago. The current tax expense for 2006 was $7.5 million, an increase of $6.4 million from 2005. As a resuit

of the business combination with Denison Energy Inc. {“Denison”) in 2004, Calfrac significantly reduced its
current income tax related to Canadian operations during 2005 and 2006. The increase in the current tax provi-
sion for 2006 was mainly attributed to the increased profitability of the Company’s U.S. operations. For the year
ended December 31, 2006, Calfrac recorded a future income tax expense of $1.5 million, up from $1.4 miltion
in 2005. This provision is largely related to the drawdown of tax pools as a result of the Company’s profitability.

NET INGOME »

For the year ended December 31, 2006, Calfrac's net income was $72.5 million or $2.00 per share (basic}
compared to $60.1 million or $1.66 per share (basic) in 2005, This growth in earnings was primarily due to
improved financial performance from the Company's Canadian deep basin and United States operations,
alarger and more diversified fleet of equipment and less weather related issues than in 2005.
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CASH FLOW »
The Company's cash flow from operations before changes in non-¢ash working capital was $101.9 million in
2006, an increase of $21.3 million or 26% from $80.6 million recorded the previous year. This increase was
primarily a result of: :

> consolidated revenue growing 36% or $112.1 million to $426.4 million
that was partially offset by: .

> operating expenses that increased 42% or $85.8 miflion to $291.1 million;

> net interest expensc that rasc $2.4 million to $2.3 million; and

> a $6.4 million increase in the current income tax provision te $7.5 million.
In both 2006 and 2005, cash flow was used to partially finance the Company's capital expenditures.
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LIQUIOITY AND CAPITAL HESDURCES > . )
Years Ended December 31, 2006 2095

o) T . R i \ @l .o®

Cash provided {used in): _ ' ‘ '
QOperating activities . ) 110,518 59,005
Financing activities - . . o 42,756 (128)
Inweisting activities ' ' ' (136,881) 97,520)

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ‘ ) ' 16,393 {38,643)

Operating Activities

The Company's 2006 cash flow from operations, excluding changes in non-cash working capital, was $101.9
million compared to-$80.6 million in 2005. The increase in cash flow was primarily due to higher revenues in
all geographic markets driven-mainly by higher activity levels (with the exception of Canadian CBM and shallow
gas fracturing markets} partially reduced by increased expenses. As at December 31, 2006, Calfrac had positive
working capital of $31.2 million compared to working capital of $39.4 million in 2005. The reduction in working
capital was primarily due to higher trade payables related to the Company’s capilal expenditures.

Financing Activities

,"In 2006, total Iong-terrh debt increased to $60.0 million from $10.6 million a year ago. During the fourth quarter

of 2008, the Com“pany finalized the documentation to increase its available credit facilities to $150.0 million
with a syndicate of Canadian chartered banks. The operating line of credit was Increased from $20.0 million to
$25.0 million with advances bearing interest at either the bank's prime rate, U.S. base rate, LIBOR plus 1%

or bankers' acceptances-plus 1%. The revolving term loan was increased to $125.0 million from $50.0 million
and bears interest at either the bank's prime rate plus 0.25%, U.S. base rate plus 0.25%, LIBOR plus 1.25% or
bankers' acceptances.plus 1.25%. On-February 13, 2007, Calfrac completed a private placement of unsecured
senior notes for an aggregate principal amount of US$135.0 million. These notes are due on February 15, 2015
and bear interest at 7.75%. A3 a feault of this debt offering, the Company’s revelving term loan was reduced by

_$60.0 million to $65.0 million. A portion of the proceeds received from these notes was used to repay the

outstanding amounts related to the existing operating and revolving term credit facilities. As at the date of this
report, the Company has unused credit facilities in the amount of $90.0 million and approximately U5$50.0
million of cash invested in short-term investments.

On February T 2005, the sharenolders of the Company voted in favour of a two-for-one subdwtsmn of the
Company's common shares. Gummun shares began trading on a split basis on the Toronto Stock Exchange on

- February 17, 2005. As at the date of this report, the Company has 36,390,408 common sharés outstanding.

In May 2005, Calfrac’s Board of Directors adoptéd a semi-annual dividend policy of $0.05_per common share.
In accordance with this policy, the Company most recently paid a common share dividend on January 5, 2007

totallng $1 .B million to al! shareholders of record on December 19 2006. The Company s dividends qualify as
“eligible dlwdends as defined by the Canada Revenue Agency

man e an e - - e [ T, . PR -
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Investing Activities

During 2008, net cash used for investing activities ingreased to $136.9 million from $37.5 million in 2005. For
the year ended December 31, 2008, capital expenditures totaled $155.5 million, up from $37.6 million a year
ago. This increase in capital expenditures was primarily due to:

> the construction and deployment of four multi-pumper conventional fracturing spreads, with
one spread allocated to each of the Company's Canadian and Russian markels and two spreads
serving the 1L§, market;

> the construction and deployment of two deep coiled tubing units to Canada and one decp coiled
tubing unit to serve the well services market in Western Siberia;

> the completion of four cementing units to serve the deeper basin markets of Western Canada; and

> construction costs related to the remaining two additional fracturing spreads, two coiled tubing
units ang four cementing units from the 2005 capital program,

During December 2006, the Company entered into a long-term contract with a leading independent U.S. oil and
gas company for fracturing services in Arkansas and eastern Oklahoma. Under the terms of this contract,
Calfrac will provide a multi-pumper fracturing spread for a two-year term with minimum work commitments
that will be serviced by Calfrac’s existing flieet of equipment as well as equipment being manufactured pursuant
o the Company’s 2007 capital program. This contract is consistent with Calfrac’s philosophy of having a pre-
scribed level of its equipment fleet operating under long-term contracts. In addition, the Company was awarded
a one-year contract with a new customer in Purpe, Russia. This contract includes the provision of a multi-
pumper fracturing spread, deep coiled tubing unit and additional support equipment. At the end of the first
quarter of 2007, it Is anticipated that Calfrac will be operating 27 fracturing spreads, 16 coiled tubing units and
17 cementing units.

On February 11, 2005, the Company acquired the remaining '30% interest in Ram Cementers Inc. (“Ram”},
. thereby making Ram a wholly owned subsidiary of Calfrac. Subsequent to this acquisition, Ram was wound-up
. into Calfrac and all operating, marketing and financial activities became fully integrated within the Company.

With its current working capital position, available credit facilities and anticipated cash flow from operations,
the Company expects to have adequate resources to fund its financial obligations for 2007.

CONTRACTRAL OBLIGATIONS AND CONTINGENCIES >

Payment Dug by Perlod

Less than 1-3 a-5 Atter

Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years

{000s) ® 23 7] ® [}
Long-term debt 60,000 - - 19,200 40,800 -
Qperating leases 26,137 6,649 6,688 5,363 7,437
Purchase obligations 18,373 16,925 . 1,448 . - -
Total contractua! obligations 104,510 23,574 ' 27,336 46,163 7,437

Calfrac has varipus contractual obligations related to debt, teasing bf vehicles and office space and raw material
purchase commitments as outlined above,
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Ruésian Value Added Taxes

As described in note 15 to the annual consolidated financial statements, Calfrac is involved in legal proceed-
ings against the Russian government's tax authorities with respect to the recovery of certain Value Added Taxes
("VAT"} paid when new equipment from North America was imported inte the country. The Company believes
that it is entitled to recover these previously paid VATS against the VAT amounts cotlected from Russian cus-
tomers for the provision of pressure pumping services. As at December 31, 2008, the total recoverable amount
of Russian VAT receivable was $4.5 million, During 2006, the Comp_any was successful in similar proceedings
and believes that the recovery of these amounts will be resolved within the next 12 months.

Greek Legal Proceedings

As described in note 15 to the annual consolidated financial statements, the Company is involved in @ number
of legal proceedings in Greece. Management evaluates the likelihood of potential liabilities being incurred and
the amount of such liabilities after careful examination of available information and discussions with its legal
advisors. As these proceeding have yet to reach a status where the direction of a court's decision can be
determined with any reliability, management is unable to evaluate its potential exposure to these legal proceed-
ings at this time. The Company does not expect these claims to be material.

EVALUATION OF DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING »

The President & Chief Executive Officer {“CEQ") and Vice President, Finance & Chief Financial Officer {“CF0")
of Calfrac are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (“DC&P") and
internal control over financial reporting (“ICFR") for the Company.

DC&P is designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in documents filed with securities regula-
tory authorities is recorded, processed, summarized and reported on a timely basis, and is accumulated and
communicated to the Company's management, including the CEQ and CFO, as appropriate, to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure. ICFR is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with GAAP.

In accordance with the requirements of Multilateral Instrument 52-109 “Certification of Disclosure in Issuers’
Annual and Interim Filings,” an evaluation of the design and operating effectiveness of DC&P was carried out
under the supervision of the CEQ and CFO as at the end of the period covered by this report.

Based on this evaluation, the GEO and CFO have concluded that, subject to the inherent jimitations noted .
below, the Company's DCBP is designed and operating effectively to provide reasonable assurance that material
informaticn relating to the Company, including its consolidated subsidiarigs, is made known to them by others
within those entities.

The Company's management, including the CEO and CFO, does not expect that the Company's DC&P will prevent
or detect all misstatements o instances of fraud. The inherent limitations in all control systems are such that
they can provide only reasonabte, not absolute, assurance that all control issues and misstatements or instances
of fraud, if any, within the Company have been detected. Likewise, ICFR, no matter how well designed, has
inherent limitations. Therefore, ICFR can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement
preparation and may not prevent or detect all misstatements,

There was no change to the Company’s ICFR that occurred during the most recent interim period that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company's ICFR.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES »

Changes In Aceounting Policies

No changes in account:ng principles were adopted in 2006

Recent Aceountmg Proncuncements

Management is assessing new Canadian and U).S. accounting pranouncements that have been issued and are
not yet effective. These new pronouncements are set out betow.

: +  InJanuary 2005, the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants issued Handbook Section 3855 “Financial
Instruments - Recognition and Measurement,” Handbook Section 1530 “Comprehensive Income” and Handbook
Section 3865 “Hedges.” In the year ending December 31, 2007, Calfrac will adopt these new standards that -
require the presentation of a separate statement of comprehensive income under specific circumstances. The
Company does not expect that the adoption of these leICIES will have a material impact on its consolidated
financia! statements.

A In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB"} issued FASB Interpretation No. 48,

‘ “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — An Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109" (“FIN 48™). FIN 48
provides guidance for recognizing and measuring uncertain tax positions, as defined in SFAS-109, "Accounting

* for Taxes.” FIN 48 prescribes a threshold condition that a tax position be recognized in the financial statements.

" . Guidance is also provided regarding de-recognition, classification and disclosure of these uncertain tax posi-
tions. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The Company has not yet
determined the impact on its finanoial position, results of operations or cash flows from FIN 48.

~ In February 2006, FASB issued SFAS No. 155, “Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financia! Instruments — An
Amendment of FASB Statement Nos. 133 and 140" (“SFAS 155"). SFAS 155 simplifies the accounting for certain
hybrid financial instruments under SFAS 133 by permitting fair value remeasurement for financial instruments
containing an embedded derivative that otherwise would require separation of the derivative from the financial
instrument. SFAS 155 is effective for all financial instruments acquired, issued or subject to a remeasurement
event occurring in fiscal years beginning after September 15, 2006. The Company does not expect that SFAS
155 will have a matenal impa’cion its financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

in September 2006, FASB issued. SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS 15677). SFAS 157 defines
fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value under U.5. GAAP and expands disclosures about
; : fair value measurements. The statement is effective for fair value measures already required or permltted by
. other standards for financial statements issued for fiscal years begl_nmng after November 15, 2007 and interim o
periods within those fiscal years. The Company has not yet determined the impact on its financial position,
; * results of operations or cash flows from SFAS 157.

Critical Accounting Po!icies and Estimaies'

This MD&A is based on the Company's annual consolldated financial statements that have been prepared in
accordance with Canadian GAAP. Management is requured 0 make assumptions, judgements and estimates

in the application of GAAP. Calfrac's significant accounting policies are described'in note 2 to the annual
consolidated financial statements. The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires that certain
estimates and judgements be made concerning the reported amount of revenues and expenses and the carry-
ing values of assets and fiabilities. These estimates are based on historical experience and management's -
judgement. Anticipating future events involves uncertainty, and consequently, the estimates used by manage-
ment in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements may change as future events unfold,

f
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additiona! experience is acquiréd or the environment in which the Company operates changes. The following
accounting policies and practices involve the use of estimates that have a significant impact on the
Company’s financial results.

DEPRECIATION

Depreciation of the Company's property and eguipment incorporates estimates of useful lives and residual
values. These estimates may change as more experience is obtained or as general market conditions change,
thereby impacting the operation of the Company's property and equipment,

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

As described in note 8 to the annuat consolidated financial statements, the fair value of stock options are esti-
mated at the grant date using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, which includes underlying assumptions
related to the risk-free interest rate, average expected option iife, estimated volatility of the Company’s shares
and anticipated dividends.

INCOME TAXES

As described in notes 9 and 10 to the annual consolidated financial statements, the amount of the future tax
asset and deferred tax credit in respect of the income tax pools available to the Company have been based on
tax filings to date. The income tax rates used to calculate the amount of the future asset have been based on
available information on future income tax rates, The income tax authorities have net audited any of these
pools so far as they relate to the Company.

RISK FACTORS »

" Calirac's consolidated financial results are affected by numerous risks, including those listed below and those
identified in the Company’s most recently filed Annua! Information Form available at www.sedar.com.

Valatility of Industry anditlons

The demand, pricing and terms for fracturing, coiled tubing, cementing and other well stimulation services
targely depend on the level of exploration and development activity for North American and Russian natural gas
and, to a lesser extent, oil. Industry conditions are influenced by numerous factors over which the Company has
no control, including the level of oll and natural gas prices, expectationé about future oil and natural gas prices,
the cost of exploring for, producing and delivering oit and natural gas, the decline rates for current production,.
the discovery rates of new oil and natural gas reserves, available pipeline and other oil and natural gas trans-
portation capacity, weather conditions, political, military, regulatory and economic conditions, and the ability of
oil and natural gas companies to raise equity capital or debt financing. A material decline in global oil and natural
gas prices or North American and Russian activity levels as a result of any of the above factors could have 2
material adverse effect on the Company's business, financia! condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Seasonality

Calfrac’s financial results are directly affected by the seasonal nature of the Canadian oil and natural gas
industry. The first quarter incorporates the winter drilling season when most of the activity takes place. During
the second quarter, soft ground conditions typically curtail oilfield activity in all of the Company's Canadian
operating areas such that many rigs are unable to move about due to road bans. This period, commoniy
referred to as “spring breakup,” occurs earlier in the year in southeastern Alberta than it does in northern
Alberta and northeastern British Columbia. Consequently, this is the Company's weakest three-month revenue
period, Additionally, if an unseasonably warm winter prevents sufficient freezing, Calfrac may not be able to
access wellsites, and as a result, the Company's operating results and financial condition may be adversely
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affected. The demand for fractﬁring and other well stimulation services may also be affected by severe winter
weather in North America and Russia. In addition, during excessively rainy periods in any of.the Company's
operating areas, equipment moves may be delayed, thereby adversely affecting revenues. The volatility in the
weather and temperature can therefore create unpredictability in activity and utilization rates, which can have
a material adverse effect on Calfrac’s business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows,

Sources, Pricing and Availability of Raw Materials and Component Parts

The Company sources its raw materials, such as proppant, chemicals, nitrogen, carbon dioxide, diesel fuel,
"and component parts, such as colled tubing, from a variety of suppliers in North America and Russia. Should
Calfrac's current suppliers be unable to provide the necessary raw materials and component parts at a price
acceptable to the Company, or otherwise fail to deliver products in the quantities required, any resulting delays

- in the provision of services could have a material adverse effect on Calfrac’s business, financial condition,

results of operations and cash flows.

Operational Risks

"Calfrac’s operations are subject to hazards Inherent in the oil and gas industry such as equipment defects, mal-
function and failures, and natural disasters that result in fires, vehicle accidents, explosions and uncontrollable
flows of naturat gas or well fluids that can cause personal injury, loss of life, suspension of operations, damage
to formations, damage to facilities, business interruption and damage to or destruction of property, equipment
and the environment. These hazards could expose the Company to substantial liability for personal injury,
wrongful death, property damage, loss of oil and gas production, pollution and other environmental damages.
The Company continuously monitors its activities for quality control and safety, and although Calfrac maintains
insurance coverage that it believes to be adequate and customary in the industry, such insurance may not be
adequate to cover potential liabilities and may not be available in the future at rates that the Company considers
reasonable and commercially justifiable. ‘

Liabilities From Prior Operations

The Company transferred the Canadian ¢il and naturai gas assets, mining leases, mining environmental services
and refated assets and liabilities of Denison to two new public companigs that provided indemnities to Calfrac
for all claims or losses relating to Denison’s prior business, except for matters related to specific liabilities
retained by the Company. Despite these indemnities, it is possible that Calfrac may be found responsible for
claims or losses relating to the assets and liabilities transferred by Denison and that the claims or losses may
not be within the scope of the indemnities or the indemnifying party may lack sufficient finangial resources to
satisfy its obligations pursuant to the indemnities. Because of the nature of Denison's former operations, these
claims or losses could include substantial envirenmental claims. The Company cannot predict the outcome or
ultimate impact of any legal or regulatory proceedings that may relate to Denison’s prior ownership or operation
of these assets. ' ’ :

Greek Legal Proceedings

The Company is involved in several legal proceedings with former employees of Denison Mines Inc. relating to
the cessation of its oi! and natural gas operations in Greece during 1998 and 1999, The Company intends to
defend itself against the claims of the employees, however the direction and financial consequences of decisions
in these proceedings cannot be determined at this time. '
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Competition

Company participates in a highly competitive ir.ldustry. The principal competitive factors in the markets in which
Calfrac operates include: product and service quality and availability, technical knowledge and experience,
reputation for safety, and quality. The Company competes with regional, national and multi-national companies
that have greater financial and other resources than Calfrac. These companies offer a wide range of well stim-
ulation services in all geographic regions in which Calfrag operate's. As a result of competition, the Company
may-suffer from a significant reduction in revenue or be unable to pursue additional business opportunities.

Foreign Exchange

The Company incurs a significant amount of its expenses in U.S. dollars, and és a resutt, these expenditures
are directly affected by the Canadian/U.S. dollar exchange rate, which fluctuates over time. Russian revenue
is earned in U.S. dollars, but is paid in Russian rubles converted to U.S. dollars at the official conversion rate
in Russia on the day prior to payment. Conversion rates of the Russian ruble to or from U.S. dollars will also
affect the Company’s net income. This exposure is mitigatéd by the Company’s operations in the United
States and Russia.

Mitlgation of Risks Factors

The Company expects that its strong financial position, experienced management team with significant
investments at risk, innovative equipment and services as well as its long-term contractual relationships with
certain customers will enhance its ability to weather the downturns in industry drilling activity and untoreseen
adverse events. -

Quarterly Revenus  miios)
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis : B .

|
|
Quarters Ended Mar. 31 Jun. 30 Sep. 30 Dec. 31 Totah !

(000, except per share and unit data) ] ® ® 1] &
{unauditech
m .
Revenua 126,010 66,973 115,112 118,322 426,418
Gross margin ™ . . 49,927 14,446 36,500 34,488 135,362
Net income 34,556 1,569 19,418 16,907 72,450
| Per share -— basic . 0.95 0.04 054 047 2.00
| - diluted _ . 094 0.04 0.53 0.46 1.8
| Cash flow from operations @ 41,656 7,208 27,560 25,507 101,932
| Per shara — basic 1.15. 020 - 076 0.70 261
| ~ diluted : 13 - 0.20 0.76 0.70 279
I EBITDA & . . 1_12,735 8.?61 25,614 28421 109,533
Per share - basic 1.18 0.24 0.82 0.78 3.02
- diluted 1.16 0.24 0.81 0.78 3.00
Capltal expenditures . 50,631 36,501 23,931 44,415 155,478
Waorking capital ‘ 370N 28741 - 31,158 31,225 31,225
Shareholders' equity : 271,084 267,559 - 287,616 303,510 303,510
g Fracturing spreads o
' Conventlonal fracturing 18 19 19 21 21
Coalbed methane ' 4 L} 4 4 4
i Total L 22 o2 23 ri 25
' ' ~ Goiled tubing units ) ’ 12 14 14 14 14
Cementing units (% 9 1" 1 13 13
1. Gross mangn is defined a8 ravenue less Huting o ion and lization. Giress margin Iy & measyry that does nol have any standardized mean-

ing prescrbed under GAAR, and accorningly, mmmmmnmhmmcmumﬂmﬂu

2. Cash llow is defined as "funds provided by operations,” as refiected In the consolidatad statement of cash flows. Cash fiow and cash flow per share ane measures that pro-

_vide sharenciders and potentlal Investora with additional information regarding the Company's liquidity and its eblity m generate funds to finance its operations.

Managament Ltilizes these measures to Bssess the Company'y ability 10 finance operating activities and capital expenditures. Cash fow and cash fiow per share are not
that have any maaning prescriced under GAAP, and accordingly, may nat ba comparable 1 similar measures used by other companies.

3, EBITDA i3 defingd B3 incoma betors interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization. EBITDA I presented because it ks fraquenity used by securities anatysts and others for
evaluating companies and thakr abliity to zervice debt. EBITDA ks a measure that does not have ay standardized maaning prescribed uncer GAAP, wmdiw may not
be to Eimilar used by oiher
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Quarters Ended Mar 31 T .30 Sep. 30 Dec. 31 Tota

{0005, except per share and unit dat) - T ®. ® ® ® ®
{tmaudited) . B
Revenue ’ Yo 80604 - 44819 77,377 111.634. 314325
Bross marginm ' ' : 32437, 7,690 25604 ' 43,336 109,008
_ Wet incorne (loss) ‘ . . 21670 . {1.876) 12,947 27,372 60,113 :
Pershare —basic : : 060 (0.05) 0.3 0.75 1.66
- dilsed B 0.59 {0.05) 035 075 164
Cash tlow from operations @ . 26,015 2,280 18,503 33,794 80,592
Per.share - basic : : 072 0.06 0.51 093 2.3
~ diluted. ‘ 071 . 0.06 0.51 0.92 2.20
EBTOA® : 25339 1,907 18,234 34,131 79,811
Per share - basic 0.70 0.05 0.50 0.94 220
- giluted ‘ 069 0.05 0.50 0.93 . 218
Capital expenditures . : 22,108 25,653 29,241 20,612 97,614
Working capital 49,103 22,301 12,962 39,396 39,396
Shareholders' equity ' : 197,091 192,508 207,679 234,021 234,01
Fracturing spreads (v . ’ '
Conventional fracturing , T13 13 13 7 C17
Coalbed methang" ‘ . 3 4 4 - 4 44
CToml  F ' . 16 17 17 2 Pl
Coiled tubing units i) - 1 1 1" n "
Cementing units ’ 5 6 8 9 9

. Gross margin is dafined as revenua less operating expenses exciuding depreclation and amortization, Gross margin is a measure that does not have any standardized mean-
ng prescribed under GAAP, and accordingly, may not ba comparabls to similar maasures used by other companies.

2. Gash flaw is defined a3 “funds provlded by operations,” as reflected in the coosalidated statement of cash fiows. Cash fiow and cash faw pes share arg measures that pro-
vide sharehokiers and potential investors with addiional information regarding the Cnmparvys liquidity and its ability .o generate funds to finance its operations.
Management ulitizes these measures 1 assess the Company’s ability 1o finance ing and capital itures. Gash flow and cash flow per sharu are not
measures that have any standardized meaning prascribed under GAAP, and sccordingly, may not be colrwable to similar measures used by ofher companies.

3. EBITDA is defined as income before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization. EBITDA i presented becauss I is frequently used by securities analysts and others for
evaluating companies and their ability to service debl. EBITDA is a measure ma! does not have any standardized meaning prescribed under GAAP, and accordingly, may not
be comparable to similar maasures used by other companles

FOURTH QUARTER 2006 PERFORMANBE SGMMABV > :
For the three months ended December 31, 2006, the- Company

> increased revenue 6% to $118.3 m:llmn compared to $111.6 m:iiwn in the same period of 2005;
= recorded net income of $16.9 mitlion or $0.47 por share {basic), a decrease of 38% from the $27.4
mitlion of 40,75 per share {basac) recorded in the fourth quarter of 2005;

" = realized cash flow fmm operatisns hefore cnanges in non-cash working ca;}mi ‘of $25.5 miltion or
© $0.70 per share thasic) compared to $33.8 mlllmn or $0.93 per ‘share {hasic) in the same ti:ree-
month period @ year ago; and

"= increased income tax provision 63% to $3. 2 mzllmn due lo mgher prufitabiiﬁy ai U5, npemtzans

Canadian Operations

Revenue from Canadian operations for the fourth quarter of 2006 decreased 17% to $79.8 million compared to
$96.0 million in the same quarter of 2005. Canadian fracturing revenue for the quarter totaled $68.8 million, a
decrease of 25% from the $91.5 million earned in the comresponding period of 2005. This decrease was primarily
due to lower CBM and east central Alberta drifling activity compared to a year ago. During the fourth quarter of
2008, Calfrac completed 1,244 Canadian fracturing jobs for average revenue of $55,295 per job compared to
2,063 jobs for average revenue of $44,346 per job in-the same peripd of 2005. Improved per job revenues were
primarity due to a substantial increase in the amount of work completed in the deeper, more technically chal-
lenging basins of norther Alberta and northeastern British Columbia as well as higher book prices.
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‘Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the three months ended December 31, 2006, revenue from qgnadian coiled tubing operations increased
195% to $5.2 miltion compared to $1.8 million for the same period in 2005, During the feurth quarter of 2008,
the Company completed 1,922 jobs for average revenue of $2,694 per job compared to 1,723 jobs for average
revmué of $1,020 per job in 2005. The increase in the average revenue per job was due primarity to the
deployment of two coiled tubing units during the second quarter of 2006 into the deeper, more technically chal-
lenging basins of Western Canada. During the 2005 three-month period, the Company's Canadian coiled tubing
fleet was focused on shallow gas operations, which traditionally earn lower revenue on a per job basis.

Revenue from Calfrac’s cementing operations was $5.9 million, a 112% increase from the $2.8 million
recorded in the fourth quarter of 2005. During the 2006 three-month period, the Company completed 480 jobs
for average revenue of $12,234 per job compared to 289 jobs for average revenue of $9,604 per job in the
comparable period of 2005. The improved financial and operating results were due primarily to an expanded
equipment fleet serving the deeper basin markets of northern Albéna and northeastern British Columbia
combined with a more integrated sales and marketing approach.

United States Operations

During the fourth quarter of 2006, revenue from the E:ompany's United States operations doubled to $29.0 million
from $14.4 million recorded in the same period of 2005. For the three months ended December 31, 2008,

the Company completed 385 U.S. fracturing jobs for average revenue of $75,427 per job compared to 233 jobs
for average revenue of $61,816 per job in 2005. The increase in total and per job revenues was due primarily
{o stronger activity tevels in the Piceance Basin of western Colorado and a larger fleet of equipment operating
in the United States in the fourth quarter of 2006 compared to the.corresponding three-month period in 2005.
The ingrease in the reported revenue from the Company's operatmns in the United States was partially offset
by a stronger Canadian doflar.

Russian Operations

The Company's revenue from Russian operations in the fourth quarter of 2006 increased 30% to $9.4 million
from $7.3 million in the third quarter of 2006 due primarily to higher fracturing activity levels. As Calfrac com-
menced Russian coiled tubing operations late in 2005, the prior year’s fourth quarter results were not
significant for analytical purposes.

GROSS MARGIN » ‘

Fourth quarter consolidated gross margin was $34.5 million in 2006, a 20%_decrease from the $43.3 million
recorded in the corresponding period in 2005. As a percentage of revenug, consolidated gross margin was
29% for the three months ended December 31, 2006 compared to 39% a year ago. The decrease in consoli-
dated gross margin was primarily a resutt of competitive pricing pressures in Canada and higher Russian
revenues that have lower gross margins. This reduction was somewhat otfset by improved financial results
in the United States.

EXPENSES -

Operating Exﬁenses

During the fourth quarter of 2006, operating costs increased 23% to $83.8 miflion from $68.3 millien in the
corresponding three-month period of 2005 due primarily to a'lartjer fleet of equipment, increased lavels of
activity in the United States and Russia, and higher district expenses as a result of a larger scale of operations
in the Company's three geograp'hic markets, In 2006, Calfrac apened a new district office in Khanty-Mansiysk,
Russia and expanded its Grande Prairie and Red Deer, Alberta bases to better serve the Company's growth into
the deeper and more technical basins of northern Alberta and northeastern British Columbia.
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SG&A Expenses

SG&A expenses were $7.9 mlliron for the quarter ended December 31, 2006 compared to $9.1 million in 2005.
As a percentage of revenue, SG&A expenses for the fourth quarter of 2006 declined to 7% compared to 8%

in the corresponding period a year ago. The decrease in SG&A expenses during the fourth quarter of 2006 was
primarily related to a reduction in bonus expenses dug 1 lower Company profitability partiaily offset by higher
SG&A costs related to the growing United States and Russian operations and an increase in stock-based
.compensation expenses. In the fourth quarter of 2006, stock-based compensation expenses were $0.9 million
compared to $0.3 million in the same period of 2005. ° 4

Interest, Depreciation and Other Expenses '; _ )
The Company recerded net interest expense of $702,000 for the quarter ended December 31, 2006 compared
to $67,000 in the comparable period of 2005. During 20086, higher long-term debt levels were required to

partially finance Calfrac’s capital expenditures, which resulted in increased interest costs.

Depreciation expense in the fourth quarter of 2006 g"rev\r 61% to $7.6 million from $4.7 million In the corre-
sponding gquarter of 2005. The increase in deprecratmn expense is directly retated to the Company's larger
fleet of equipment operating in North America and Russia’ and the full impact of 2005 capital expendrtures on
depreciation expense. R c e

N

INCOME TAX -

The Company recorded income tax expense of $3.2 million for the quarter ended December 31, 2006 compared
to $2.0 miflion in the same period of 2005. Current tax expense for the quarter was $2.8 million compared to
$018 million in 2005, which was largely attributed to profitability of the Company’s U.S. operations. Calfrac
recorded a future income tax expense of $0.3 million for the three months ended December 31, 2006 compared
to $1.1 million recorded in the fourth quarter of 2005: The future income tax provision for the fourth quarters
of 2006 and 2005 was primarily refated to the d@wdowr'r of the Company's tax pools as a result of profitability
in the quarter as well as the timing of deductibility of certain expenses for tax purposes.

NET INCOME » - _

During the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company's net income totaled $16.9 million or $0.47 per share {basic),
a 38% decrease from the $27.4 million or $0.75 per share (basic) recorded in the same quarter a year ago.
This decrease was primarily related to lower profitability in Canadian operations due to competitive pricing.
pressures and lower CBM activity levels. ’

CASH FLOW >

Cash flow from operations before changes in non-cash working capital for the three months ended December
31, 2006 decreased 25% to $25.5 million or $0.70 per share (basic) compared to $33.8 million or $0.93 per
share {basic) in 2005. T

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESQURLCES ~

During the 2006 three-month period, the Company inr:ur_red capital expenditures of $44.4 million compared

to $20.6 milfion in the same beriod of 2005. The majority of these costs related to the completion of the
Company's 2006 capital program, which inciuded the deployment of two fracturing spreads and two cementing
units during the quarter, as well as the construction of two conventional fracturing spreads, two coiled tubing
units and four cementing units that are expected to be deployed in the first quarter of 2007,
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

ouTLOOK > ' o o
Calfrac believes that the long-term fundamentals for natural gas prices are strong, but concerns surrounding
short-term natural gas pricing may negatively impact 2007 drilling activity levels In Western Canada, specifically
in the CBM market. The Canadian drilling forecast for 2007 from the Petroleum Services Association of
Canada estimates that 21,500 wells will be drilled during the year. Although this is a reduction from the

ir

record drilling levels experienced in the 1ast several years, it still represents historically strong activity levels. -

The Company is focused on the growing pressure pumping markets of the deeper, more technical areas of the
Western Canadian Sedimentary Basin. Oespite the weakness in near-term natural gas prices, activity levels in
the deeper regfons of northern Alberta and northeastern British Columbia were strong throughout 2006 and are
expected to remain steady in 2007. New coiled tubing and cementing equipment related to the Company's
2006 capital program was deployed in the fourth quarter and additional units are expected to become opera-
tional by the end of the first quarter of 2007 to service these deeper regions. Calfrac anticipates that the fow
levels of activity experienced in the Canadian CBM market during the past year will continue to be mitigated by
the Company's contracts related to two fracturing spreads servicing these operations. Calfrac also expects that
the utilization of its shallow gas fracturing spreads will be strong for at least the first quarter of 2007 as a
result of its contractual retationship with a major customer. -

The strong performance of Calfrac's United States fracturi‘ng operations was a major driver of the Company’s
2006 financial results. Unlike the Canadian market, dnllmg actlwty levels in the U.S. Rocky Mountain region
have remained robust, primarily in the Piceance Basin of western Colorado. Fracturing activity in eastern
Colorado and the Denver Julesberg Basin gained momentum throughout the year with the number of jobs
increasing during the fourth quarter of 2006. Calfrac’s newest operating base located in Beebe, Arkansas will
open by the end of the first quarter of 2007, thereby further diversifying the Company’s fracturing operations
within the United States market. One multi-pumper fracturing spread will serve the Fayetteville and Arkoma
Basins in Arkansas as well as eastern Cklahoma under the terms of a long-term contract with a leading U.S. oil
and gas company. From this operating base, there is potential for additional growth as more equipment is
deployed into the area to better serve this new market. In 2007, Calfrac anticipates that this important
geographlc segment will contmue to generate strong financial and operatlng results.

Dunng the last halt of 2005 the Company operated one fractunng spread and three coiled tubing units in
Russia. In early 2007, an additional fracturing spread was deployed to a new operating base in Purpe, Western
Siberia. Two additional colled tubing units are expected fo be operational by the end of the first quarter of 2007.
Building on the momentum of Russia's improved operating and financial performance during the fourth quarter of
2008, Calfrac believes that these operations have attained sufficient critical mass and are well positioned for
future growth and profitability. The expanded equipfnent fleet, combined with the Company’s relationships with
two of Russia's largest oil and gas companies, is expected to drive improved financial and operating perform-
ance from this geographic segment throughaut the upcoming year and provide & more significant contribution
to Calfrac’s consolidated financial results.

The Company's financial position was strengthened further as  result of the closing of its recent US$135.0
million debt financing. The offering provides the Company with additional financial flexibility to grow organically,
and alternatively, may also allow the Company to pursue strategic acquisition opportunities that may arise in
the future. :

Calfrac will continue to maximiig equipment utilization and profitabili'ty by redeploying equipment to higher
activity regions within its global operating reach. )
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ADVISORIES ~

Forward-Looking Statements _ e

In order to provide Calfrac shareholders and potential investors with information regarding the Company and its
subsidiaries, including management's assessment of Calfrac's future plans and cperations, certain statements
made in this Annual Report may contain words such as “anticipate,” “can,” “may,” “expect,” “believe,” “intend,”
“forecast,” or similar words suggesting future outcomes or statements regarding an outlook, which constitute
forward-looking statements or information {“forward-looking statements”). These statements may include, but
are not limited to, future capital expenditures, future ﬁn.ancial resources, future oil and gas well activity, out-
come of specific events and trends In the oil and gas industry, Readers are cautioned that the foregoing list of
significant factors is not exhaustive. These statements are derived from certain assumptions and analysis made
by the Company based on its experience and interpretation of historical trends, current conditions, expected
future developments and other factors that it believes are appropriate in the circumstances. These statements
are subject to a number of known and unknown riéks and uncertainties, which are discussed previously in this
report, that could cause actual results to differ matefiaﬁy from the Company’s expectations. Although Calfrac
believes that the expectations presented by these fprwafd-looking statements are reasonable, there ¢can be no
assurances that actual results or developments anticipated: by the Company will be realized or such expecta-
tions will prove to be correct. Furthermore, the forward ‘Iooking statements contained fn this Annual Report are
made as at the date of this report and Calfrac assumes, no obligation to update publicly, except as required by
applicable securities laws, any such forward- Iookmg mformatlon whether as a result of new information, future
events or otherwise, The forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report are expressly qualified
under this cautionary statement. . " L

Non GAAP Measures

Certain measures in this Annual Repon do not have any standardized meaning as prescribed under Canadlan
GAAP, such as gross margin, cash flow from operatlons cash flow, cash flow per share {basic), cash flow per
share (diluted), EBITDA, EBITDA per share {basic) and EBITDA per share (diluted), and therefore, are considered
non-GAAP measures. These measures may not be comparable to similar measures presented by other entities.
These measures have been described and presentéd in this Annual Report in order to provide shareholders and
potential investors with additional information. regardlng the Company s liquidity and its ability to generate
funds to-finance its operatmns Management’s use of these measures has been disclosed further in this Annual
Report as these measures are discussed and presented

* v
_:

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION -

Further information regarding Calfrac Well Services Ltd. can be accessed on the Company's website at
www.calfrac.com or under the Company’s public filings found-at www.sedar.com.

e I

;o \

DOUGLAS R. RAMSAY « . =< TOM J. MEDVEDIC
President & . . = v Vice Prasident, Finance &
Chief Executive Officer *" . _ ChiefFinancial Officer
February 26, 2007 o

Calgary, Alberta
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FORM 52-109F1 - CERTIFICATION OF ANNUAL FILINGS

I, Tom J. Medvedic, Vice President, Finance & Chief Financial Officer of Calfrac Well Services Ltd.,
certify that:

1, I bave reviewed the annual filings (as this term is defined in Multilateral Instrument 52-109

Certification of Disclosure in Issuers” Annual and Interim Filings) of Calfrac Well Services Lid.
{(the "issuer") for the financial year ending December 31, 2006;

Based on my knowledge, the annual filings do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact
or omit to state a material fact required to be stated or that is necessary to make a statement not

misleading in light of the circumstances under which it was made, with respect to the period
covered by the annual filings;

Based on my knowledge, the annual financial statements together with the other financial

information included in the annual filings fairly present in all material respects the financial

condition, results of operations and cash flows of the issuer, as of the date and for the periods
presented in the annual filings;

The issuer’s other certifying officers and [ are responsible for establishing and maintaining

disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting for the issuer, and
we have:

(2)

designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused them to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance that material information relating to the
issuer, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which the annual filings are being prepared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused it to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial

reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with the issuer's GAAP; and

(©)

evaluated the effectiveness of the issuer’s disclosure controls and procedures as of the
end of the period covered by the annual filings and have caused the issuer to disclose in
the annual MD&A our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and

procedures as of the end of the period covered by the annual filings based on such
evaluation; and

I have caused the issuer to disclose in the annual MD&A any change in the issuer's internal
control over financial reporting that occurred during the issuer's most recent interim period that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the issuer's internal control
over financial reporting.

March 19, 2007
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Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer . E: M
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News release via Canada NewsWire, Calgary 403-269-7605

Attention Business Editors
Calfrac Well Services Ltd. Fourth Quarter 2006 Edrnings Release and
Conference Call

CALGARY, ‘Feb. 22 /CNW/ - Calfrac Well Services Ltd. {"Calfrac")
(TSX: CFW) intends to release its Fourth Quarter 2006 results before the

markets open on Thursday, March 1, 2007. A conference call has been scheduled
for 10:00 a.m. MST (12:00 p.m. EST) on Thursday, March 1, 2007, If you wish to
participate in the conference call, please call (800} 732-1073 or
(416) 644-3434 prior to the start of the call and ask for the Calfrac Well

Services Ltd. conference call. A webcast of the conferencé call may be
accessed via 'the Company's website at www.calfrac.com. An update regarding the
Company's activities will be presented by D.R President and

A replay:of the conference call will be available for review until
March 9, 2007. To listen to the recording, call (877} 289-8525 or (416)

640-1917 and ask for reservation 21218774 followed by the pound key
$SEDAR: 00002062E

¢ .R. (Doug) Ramsay, !
C.E.O. Following this update there will be a question and answer period

‘ . /For further information: on this conference call:; Calfrac Well Services
Ltd., (403) 218-7491, Lorraine_ Graham/

{CFW.)}
CO: Calfrac Well Services Ltd

CNW 16:0le 22-FEB-07
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RECEIYED  @omputershare

iy o 01 ARR -4 A %07 Investor
. SEDAR PROFILE # 2062 _Computershare Trust Company of Canada  Services
LESICE G IMTERHATI LM sComputershare Investor Services Inc.
:\".UR PORATE FIHAHCE - www.computershare.com .
’ Canada
Australia '
Channel Islands
Hong Kong
Germany
Ireland
New Zealand -
Philippines
South Africa
United Kingdom
USA

March 6, 2007 -

'i'o: All Canadian Securities regulatory authorities

Subject: Calfrac Well Services Ltd.

Dear Sifs: -

We advisé the following with respect to the upcoming Meeting of Holders for the subject
Corporation:

' 1. Meeting Type : Annual Genera! Meeting

2. Security Description of Voting Issue :  COMMON

| .3 ~'CUSIP Number : 129 584 108
- - ISIN : CA 129 584 108 6
- 4. Record Date for. Notice of Meeting : March 30, 2007
Record Date for Voting : March 30, 2007
5. Meeting Date : May 9, 2007
6. 'Meeting Location Calgary, Alberta
Sincerely,

.-Coimputeérshare Trust Company of Canada /
‘Computershare Investor Services Inc.

Agent for Calfrac Well Services Ltd.
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FORM 13-502F1
CLASS 1 REPORTING ISSUERS - PARTICIPATION FEE

Reporting Issuer Name: : Calfrac Well Services Ltd.

Fiscal year end date used to calculate .
capitalization: . December 31, 2006

Market value of listed or quoted securities:

Commeon Shares

Total number of securities of a class or series
outstanding at the end of the issuer's most
recent fiscal year B 36,388,408(1)

Simple average of the closing price of that

class or series as of the last trading day of

each month of the fiscal year (see clauses

2.11{a)(ii)(A) and (B) of the Rule) - $28.37(ii)

Market value of class or series (i) x (ii) $1,032,339,134(A)
(Repeat the above calculation for each class , ' N

or series of securities of the reporting issuer

that was listed or quoted on a marketplace in

Canada or the United States of America at .
the end of the fiscal year) ' N/A

Market value of other securities:
(see paragraph 2.11(b) of the Rule) o : N/A

Capitalization
{add market value of all classes and series of
securities) - $1,032,339,134

Participation Fee

{From Appendix A of the Rule, select the

participation fee beside the capitalization

above) $29,700 !

New Reporting issuer's reduced
participation fee, : :
if applicable (See section 2.6 of the Rule) N/A

Late Fee,
if applicable (As determined under section
2.5 of the Rule) N/A

—END |




